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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is one of
the largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacturers in the world.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of high-end
knitwear for the customers by the method of combining OEM and
ODM.

The Group’s fabrics production base is located in Ningbo Economic &
Technical Development Zone, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
and Tay Ninh Province, Vietnam, and the Group has strategically
set up garment factories in Ningbo and Anging of China, Ho Chi
Minh City and Tay Ninh Province of Vietham and Phnom Penh of
Cambodia. The Group also established sales offices or representative
offices in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Osaka. The Group currently
has over 95,820 employees. The area of the factories is over 6.17
million sg.m. and floor area covers over 4.56 million sg.m., which can
produce various knitwear of about 490,000,000 pieces.

The Group focuses on producing knitted sportswear, casual wear
and lingerie wear for major international renowned clients including
NIKE, UNIQLO, ADIDAS and PUMA. The products’ markets are
widely spread in Mainland China, Japan, Asia Pacific, Europe and
the US.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in November
2005 with an aim to be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer
in the world. The stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou
International was included in Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang
Seng Composite Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang
Seng Composite MiddleCap Index, all effective from 8 March 2010.
Shenzhou International has also been included in MSCI Index since
1 June 2013. Meanwhile, Shenzhou International has been included
in Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series since September
2015. Furthermore, the Group has become a constituent stock of
Hang Seng China Enterprises Index (“HSCEI”) from 5 March 2018
and a constituent stock of Hang Seng Index from 10 September
in the same year. In April 2018, the Group was selected by China
Exchanges Services Company Limited (“CES”) as a constituent
stock of the CES Belt and Road Index, in recognition of the Group’s
contribution to the Belt and Road Initiative.

With effect from March 2021, Shenzhou International was included
in the Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Top Shareholding 50
Index.
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In 2010, Shenzhou International was recognised by Forbes Asia
as one of the “Best Under A Billion” Companies. Shenzhou
International was selected by Finet and QQ.COM as one of the
“Top 100 HK Listed Companies” in 2012, 2015 and 2016. In
addition, Shenzhou International was recognized as one of the
“2015 Best Listed Company in Corporate Governance” by Ta Kung
Pao in November 2015, and was awarded “Best Investor Relations
Listed Company 2017” prize by Ta Kung Pao in 2017. Meanwhile,
Shenzhou International was awarded “The Largest Capitalization
Private Company Award” in Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong
Kong Ranking by Yazhou Zhoukan in 2015 and 2018. In addition,
Shenzhou International was awarded “ENTERPRISE AWARD 2016”
in the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards 2016. In 2017,
2019 and 2020, Shenzhou International won “Best IR Company
(Large-cap)” at the third, fifth, sixth and seventh Hong Kong Investor
Relations Awards organised by Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association (HKIRA).

In addition, Shenzhou International was named as one of the
“Asia’s 50 Top Listed Companies 2018” by Forbes Asia in 2018.
Meanwhile, Shenzhou International was awarded “Listed Companies
Awards 2018 (Apparel)”
2018. Furthermore, Shenzhou International was awarded “ListCo
Excellence Awards 2018” by am 730, PR Asia and Roadshow
in 2018. Shenzhou International was awarded “The Hong Kong

by Hong Kong Business Magazine in

Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award for
Sustainability Excellence” by The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies in 2018, awarded “2018 Golden Lion Award: The Best
Listed Company” by Sina Finance, and awarded “The 8th China
Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards: Best Investment Value Award
for Listed Companies” by Ta Kung Pao.
International received the “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise 2020”
award under the blue chip category from Economic Digest in 2020.

In addition, Shenzhou

In 2019, 2020 and 2021, Shenzhou International was named as one
of the winners in the “Listed Company Awards, respectively, by Hong
Kong Economic Journal.
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Financial Highlights

BELFFTEMHEN

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

BE+_R=+-HLEE/R+-A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E--& “ZT%E “T-hE —Z-N\& St kS
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
TEMBER Key Financial Information
(AR¥F7) (RMB’000)
HER Sales 23,845,006 23,030,648 22,665,272 20,950,205 18,085,247
MRS RRAIFIE Profit before income tax 3,823,316 5,512,426 5,571,743 5,090,346 4,288,231
FEFB Profit for the year 3,371,679 5,082,645 4,958,536 4,492,543 3,759,951
BREER AEEFE Profit attributable to
owners of the parent 3,371,702 5,106,736 5,095,206 4,540,487 3,762,721
FRBEE Non-current assets 15,622,465 13,297,911 11,360,620 9,411,627 8,886,726
TEEE Current assets 26,509,441 23,553,850 20,494,238 18,140,427 15,206,479
i) =L Current liabilities 13,532,431 8,852,625 5,584,718 4,919,626 4,265,355
MEEERE Net current assets 12,977,010 14,701,225 14,909,520 13,220,801 10,941,124
REE Total assets 42,131,906 36,851,761 31,854,858 27,552,054 24,093,205
BEERRDEE Total assets less current liabilities 28,599,475 27,999,136 26,270,140 22,632,428 19,827,850
gy Total equity 27,783,063 27,270,830 25,191,327 22,454,279 19,824,653
RehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 6,687,623 8,227,060 5,060,896 3,565,916 2,471,401
TERBLE Key Financial ratios
EFIE%) Gross profit margin (%) 24.3 31.2 30.3 316 31.4
FHITEE%) Net profit margin (%) 14.1 221 21.9 21.4 20.8
BAREEIEE%) Gearing ratio (%)™ 38.1 24.2 15.8 1.3 10.9
ML Current ratio 2.0 2.7 3.7 3.7 3.6
FEWRT 2 B (H) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 59 62 58 56 55
FEZBES (H) Inventory turnover period (days) 116 116 122 124 120
B3 5E - Note:

1. BXBERXIAEAEMEEEEMER Y 1. Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings and total
EE=o equity.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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REMBNINNAERHELE

REVENUE BREAKDOWN OF THE GROUP BY
PRODUCT CATEGORY

BE+T-B=+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

BT & _ECEE “Z-hE —E-N\& —E—tH
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
AREFR % AEEFT % AR®EFT % AREFT % AREFT %
RMB’000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %
BER By products
B8 Sportswear 17,612,128  73.9 150940917  69.2 16,321,975 720 14275643 681 12,048,896  66.6
RESHE Casual wear 4,720,735 19.8 4480518 195  5387,683 238  5167,355 247 4600534 254
R7sE Lingerie wear 1,040,246 4.4 1,082,917 45 802,852 35  1,328006 6.3 1302580 7.2
Hinstas Other knitwear 471,897 1.9 1576296 638 152,762 0.7 179,201 0.9 133,237 08
HEEmE Total revenue 23,845,006 100.0 23,030,648 1000 22,665272 100.0 20,905,205 100.0 18,085,247  100.0
1.9% 0.7%
a4 6.8% 3.5%
‘ 19.8% 4.5% 19.5% ‘ 23.8%
73.9% 69.2% 72.0%
0.9% 0.8%
6.3% 7.2%
' 24.7% ' 25.4%
68.1% 66.6%
. {KFEI%E Casual O #EE)4F Sports A1<3E Lingerie ‘ HAh&H 45 Other knitting

B [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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REVENUE BREAKDOWN OF THE GROUP BY
MARKET

BE+-B=+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E--&F “EZTZE “T-hE ZE-)N\F ZE—tF
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ARETR % ARETR % ARETR % ARETT % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
M5 By markets
BfRH & Revenue from
international
markets
BUN Europe 4,732,599 19.8 3,679,117 16.0 3,890,278 17.2 3,795,982 18.1 4,031,077 22.3
ESTE us 3,805,130 16.0 3,115,229 13.5 3,475,427 156.3 3,252,725 15.5 2,337,903 12.9
HA& Japan 3,346,908 14.0 4,795,807 20.8 3,542,572 15.6 3,236,002 15.5 3,129,042 17.3
HitiE% Other countries 4,392,024 18.4 4,117,871 17.9 4,614,239 20.4 4,353,084 20.8 3,742,637 20.7
NIHE Revenue from
domestic
markets 7,568,345 31.8 7,322,624 31.8 7,142,756 31.5 6,312,412 30.1 4,844,588 26.8
SHETEME: Total revenue 23,845,006 100.0 23,030,648 100.0 22,665,272 100.0 20,950,205 100.0 18,085,247  100.0

O B $5 & Domestic Sales

15.5%

18.1%

Wy

15.5%

30.1%

20.8%

O HEZ Other

Countries

22.3%

17.3%

O £ US

B [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021 g

17.2%

S

12.9%

15.6%

20.7%

. BUM Europe

26.8%




REIEH
Corporate Information
MZZ2__F=B=+H8 (®EEEITHEH)

it iE

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

P % TE
RN EE ER A RAT

EFg
WITEF
BRESLE (ZR)
R E
BARE
IEREE
REH L+

BIFERTES

BEmiLE

SRIBE o4

BELLt (RIS —F=A—HEZMD
RESLEE (WIS —F=A—HEZMD
BESE (W_E-_—F=F—H#MT)
RERLE RIS —F=A—H&MD

NEME
PR E S

REAR
IEMEL
PRABE S

(as at 30 March 2022 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
FONEIPREEIZER AR A E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Xu (resigned on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Wang Cunbo
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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(as at 30 March 2022 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

KEY BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Xu (resigned on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng (Chairman) (appointed on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Chen Xu (Chairman) (resigned on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Ma Renhe
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)

Nomination Committee

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

Mr. Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS
K&L Gates
Morrison & Foerster

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



REIEH
Corporate Information

WRZBE__F=B=+0 ((RBEERI{THH)) (as at 30 March 2022 (the “Latest Practicable Date”))

RR{DBREECERE PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

RNDEBRESLEEEDE HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

EBPREBESERLRBRAE
FEET

ERAEHR183
EXilsl
17181712-17165% 54

FEFERIRIT
hEIRTT (BE) BRAF
PERITRRMBRAE
RBRITRMARRE
ERIRTTRNABRAT
PEZRRITIRVDBRLF
PERITRHODABRLF
BERTHERAS
PETERITROBRLF
EBRRERRITRODARAT
BITIRTT (BB) BRAH
EBLBEERITHERAT
RERITERAT

REERBRRIZER

iPREEE AR

AGIE RS

www.shenzhouintl.com

=153 4 5%

2313

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER

iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313
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Chairman’s Statement

E &% Ma Jianrong
# X g ¥ [FChairman of the Board /

BERE . Dear Shareholders:

FEABREXFAMNBEREFIZRBRAT (2 On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”)
NENWEEG ((EE2g 5 EZE)) MM of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
EMANTDRENBAT HBIAEE 3 | am pleased to announce the 2021 annual results of the Company
TEEH) B —GFE2F%4E > MAESM and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for your review.

AR EER o

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
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HEEREFIFRER SHEXREERE-
TEC-FNRAEEAELRERBANR
BrHH BREEIE—FRELIWN
REBET AEEABBEHEBEREEIRIE
WRHNE BERAZNREETNRRER
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E-HMRBEESTBEER FEBIEATER
FHOREBRECERRZBEFER A
SREEBSIMAERR Z BN ZH!

BEE_ZT_—F+_RBA=Z+—HL=E
ErAEBE2FHEBNEARE
23,845,006,00070 RCEZZTEE LFT
#3.5%;, HE_ T _—F+-_HA=+—HL
FENESRABBEBE ARG BEANARE
3,371,702,00070 BREBE_ZE-_ZEF+H
=+—HIEFEEMNHARS5,106,736,000
TRETHN34.0% ERERENARE
224 B E_E_—F+_RHB=+—H
I XERNRERBSEBYANARE
6,687,623,0007T °

In 2021, COVID-19 has continued to spread around the world, and
has seriously affected the stability of the supply chain of textile and
apparel industry. Manufacturing industries in some foreign countries
have suspended or reduced production, as such, some orders
were flowed back to Mainland China. Apart from the decline in
capacity utilization rate and increase in the expenses used on anti-
epidemic, the operating environment has exerted further pressure
on the textile and apparel industry. The costs of raw materials,
labor, energy have increased significantly, together with unfavorable
factors like appreciation of RMB, increase in transportation costs
and the shortage of power supply, most enterprises have been
operating hard. 2021 is also a very challenging year for the Group
since its establishment, but we adhered to the business philosophy
of “employees first and customers priority”, the Group actively
responded to the pressure brought by the pandemic and the
operating environment, made its best efforts to ensure the health
and safety and income of our employees, and reduced the impact
of delay in order delivery on our customers. Despite the slowdown
in growth and decline in performance during the year, the Group’s
management team’s efforts in capacity expansion, upgrading and
transformation, efficiency improvement and lean management are
also worth affirming. We will continue to strengthen our foundation,
keep enhancing our competitiveness in the industry and made
better planning for our development in the future, and hope that we
can continue to receive the encouragement and support from all
shareholders!

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the annual revenue of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB23,845,006,000,
representing an increase of approximately 3.5% as compared to
2020. Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB3,371,702,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 34.0% as compared to
approximately RMB5,106,736,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020, realized an earnings per share of RMB2.24. As at 31
December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately RMB6,687,623,000.

EF 3 1 R 52 [ #2 A& 5 IR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

ERNAEEMBERABRIESFERLSSE
(B AL PEEERBNRERPRESR
0578 ERFHEIREZKRESK1.06
B 2FAFKEAER.63ETT

TR -FE PEREERNEOEEER
EERIEH24% B8 TE -2 —HFUKRY
NEEFEEERNBE EETLFAERE
TEREEXGF HINEERA TE2RA
ARBRETEINERAMREMER FTE
R B E Ath 4 B [0 = o B K o 857
RNETEZHERARREE R BEKE L
RRERNGERARTE SHEENER
BMERERE BEEBIERHEEES
D iR > EIMLESE E B R EE1E
[R5 A R EIAYET B8 3 K th B] A & 31 X [a]
FRmEERK BAl 2 KEBBEIEE
T EERBERBRAKTESHFERNK
FERG T —%E Byl - 0 3 45 BUS 18 2% ~ RE
BRER > XIBMT 2KEZREHNTEE
M-BATmHLE MaEBERE UK
BB RAVTEHIERSS - WRJ AESIEER KA
4 o

In view of the Group’s solid financial position and its annual
operating results, the Board of Directors of the Company
recommended a final dividend of HKDO0.57 per share, together with
the interim dividend of HKD1.06 per share paid, the total dividend for
the year amounted to HKD1.63 per share.

In 2021, the export value of China’s apparel products increased
significantly by approximately 24% year-on-year, changing the
trend of continuous negative growth in export value since 2015.
However, this did not mean the competitiveness of China’s apparel
industry has improved significantly, but was mainly attributable to
the impact of the pandemic on the apparel supply chain of overseas
countries, which has resulted in the flow back of order from other
manufacturing countries to Mainland China. Although the overall
sales revenue of the whole industry in China increased, the actua
profitability of most enterprises was still under pressure due to
factors such as rising costs and exchange rate fluctuations. With the
gradual easing of pandemic control measures in overseas countries
and the continuous recovery of overseas supply chain capacity, the
orders previously flow to China may gradually flow back to Southeast
Asia and other countries. At present, with the potential slowdown
of global economy, higher inflation level in major economies
has suppressed consumption demand to a certain extent, while
geopolitical conflicts and the change of relationship between major
countries have also increased the uncertainty of the global trade
environment. In the domestic market, the spread of COVID-19 and
the expected weakening of economic growth may also lead to a
contraction in demand.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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As a major garment manufacturing country in Southeast Asia,
Vietnam’s textile and garment export value increased by
approximately 9.9% in 2021 as compared with the previous year,
while the import of fabrics from other countries increased by
approximately 20.6% as compared with the previous year. The
pandemic has once caused many enterprises in Vietham to suspend
operation or reduce production. At the same time, Vietnam’s apparel
supply chain was highly dependent on other countries, resulting in
a higher growth rate of raw material imports than that of finished
products exports. Since October 2021, the Viethamese government
has gradually eased epidemic prevention and control measures,
production capacity of the apparel supply chain has been gradually
restored. As vaccination rate in Vietnam increased, the Vietnamese
government has also shifted its epidemic prevention direction from
“zero infection” to “live with the virus”, the possibility of another
round of large-scale lockdown and operation shutdown in the future
has significantly reduced. At present, the number of new infected
cases in Vietnam is still high, though the infected cases have shown
slight symptoms and recovered rapidly in general, the prolonged
epidemic will still bring certain pressure on the stability of corporate
employees and new employee recruitment.

Besides the weakening in global demand, the supply of production
capacity in the textile and apparel industry is also facing great
challenges. On one hand, the supply chain is still recovering, and
on the other hand, capacity expansion in the industry has slowed
down. The COVID-19 pandemic is still a major variable affecting
economic growth. The uncertainties caused by the pandemic on
industrial chain support, logistics and transportation, and employee
recruitment have increased the risk of a drop in capacity utilization
in the supply chain, which has brought certain challenges to the
recovery of supply capacity and capacity expansion of the industry.
The prolonged pandemic will also slow down the economic recovery
process, even lead to the closure and exit of some enterprises and
limited the education for some people, which will affect the effective
supply of labor force and the cross-border flow of personnel, thus
reducing enterprises’ willingness to expand production capacity.
Challenges such as rising raw material prices, tight labor supply,
urgent need for low-carbon transformation will exert additional
operating pressure on textile and garment enterprises. High-quality
and stable supply chain enterprises will have greater opportunities
to increase their market share amid general shortage in supply in the
industry.
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Under the challenging and ever-changing business environment,
the Board of the Company attaches great importance to the risk
management in respect of corporate operation, and always takes the
impact on the long-term development of the Company as the basis
for decision making. Meanwhile, the Company continued to ensure
each of its professional committees has adequate and necessary
secured resources to perform their respective duties. The Board also
cooperated closely and maintained effective communication with
each professional committee, thus achieving impressive results on
various projects that we worked on. All members of the Company
have been in pursuit of excellent corporate governance and a fair
and just decision-making process to ensure maintenance of a highly
transparent administration to provide all shareholders and investors
with an open channel for communication.

I would like to express my sincerest gratitude to each of our directors
for their relentless efforts over the past year, and all members of
the management and all staff for their dedication during the year.
Although the past year was difficult, our active response has not
only maintained a high degree of stability of employees, facilitated
rapid resumption of production after the pandemic and effectively
protected the interests of our customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders, meanwhile, it has also enhanced our lean management
and sustainable development ability. | hope all my colleagues will
face the difficulties, be confident, stay calm and make progress,
and make better planning for the long-term development of the
Company! | would also like to express my sincere gratitude to our
investors, customers and suppliers for staying and navigating the
way through the challenges with the Company during this difficult
time.
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Under the current uncertain operating environment, the Company
will continue to prepare for challenges ahead and make every
effort to ensure the safety and stability of our supply chain. We will
actively push forward high-quality development and our plan to
establish global presence, and develop the Company into the most
competitive technology-based and green apparel manufacturer in the
industry.

We believe the core of corporate governance is “to observe,
summarize useful information, getting well prepared and take
pinpoint action”. While attaching great importance to learn and adopt
good practice externally, we should also strengthen our foundation
internally, strive to improve our ability to create value, and use
brighter development of the Company as a return to our investors for
their trust and support!

Ma Jianrong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

In 2021, the impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
(the “pandemic”) on the supply chain has further increased, and the
overseas supply chain has experienced a wide range of temporary
suspension of production or reduction of production. As a result, a
large number of orders have been transferred to Mainland China.
However, the operating environment of domestic enterprises has
not improved, especially the following aspects have been subject
to greater pressure: the prices of raw materials and energy have
increased significantly; disruption in global logistics transportation has
led to a surge in freight prices; the continuous appreciation of the
exchange rate of RMB against USD; power curtailment occurred in
Mainland China in the second half-year; the pressure on recruitment of
enterprises increased and the labor cost continued to rise.
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According to the statistics of China Customs, the total export value
of China’s textile and clothing (including textile yarns, fabrics and
finished products, as well as garments and apparel accessories,
referred to the same as below) in 2021 was USD315.47 billion,
representing an increase of approximately 8.4% as compared to the
previous year, which was the record high in the industry’s export
value. The continuous growth in export was mainly due to the
decline in supply chain capacity in overseas countries as a result of
the pandemic, and the demand for a large number of orders shifted
to Mainland China. Out of the total export value, the export value of
textile products was USD145.2 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 5.6%, which was mainly due to the sharp
decline in the export of anti-pandemic materials such as masks and
protective clothing. However, the export value of yarns and fabrics,
which are the main raw materials for clothing, increased significantly,
representing an increase of 43.6% and 34.4% respectively as
compared with last year. The export value of garments and apparel
accessories was USD170.26 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 24.0%. Among which, the export value
of knitwear was USD75.35 billion, representing a significant year-
on-year increase of approximately 42.0% and accounting for 44.3%
of the total export value of garments (2020: 37.5%). In 2021, the
export value of apparel products to the four major markets, namely
the United States, the 27 European Union countries, Japan and the
United Kingdom (together accounted for 55.0% (2020: 55.9%) of the
total export value of China’'s apparel products for the year. Among
which, the export value to the United States amounted to USD41.13
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 36.7%; the export
value to the 27 European Union countries amounted to USD33.67
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 21.9%; the export
value to Japan amounted to USD14.93 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 6.3%; and the export value to the UK amounted
to USD6.94 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.0%.
In addition, China exported approximately USD49.65 billion of
textile and garment products to ASEAN, representing an increase of
25.0% over last year, of which approximately USD35.61 billion was
export of textile products, representing a year-on-year increase of
24.1%, and approximately USD14.04 billion was export of garment
products, representing a year-on-year increase of 27.1%. During
the year, affected by the aggravation of the pandemic, the ASEAN
apparel producing countries have experienced a substantial increase
in the import of textile yarns and fabrics from China due to the
decline in the supporting capacities of their industrial chains.
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In respect of the domestic consumer market, according to the
information published by the National Bureau of Statistics, out of
the retail sales of products by enterprises above the designated
quota in 2021, the total retail sales of apparel, footwear, headwear
and knitwear amounted to approximately RMB1,384.25 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 12.7% (among which, the
retail sales of apparel amounted to approximately RMB997.46
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 14.2%). In addition,
the amount of national online retail sales of products in the wearing
segment increased by approximately 8.3% year-on-year. Despite the
recovery and growth of the domestic consumption from the previous
year, with the pandemic repeating in China, and the demand for
consumption in the domestic market is likely to fluctuate.

According to the statistical information released by the General
Administration of Customs of the PRC, the total value of China’s
foreign trade import and export in 2021 was USD6,051.49 billion,
representing a significant increase of 30.0% as compared with
2020. Among which, the total export value was USD3,363.96 billion,
representing an increase of 29.9% as compared to 2020; the total
import value was USD2,687.53 billion, representing an increase of
30.1% as compared to 2020. During the year, China’s import and
export surplus amounted to USD676.43 billion, representing an
increase of USD152.44 billion or 29.1% as compared to USD523.99
billion in 2020. Among which, the trade surplus of textile and apparel
was USD294.24 billion, accounting for 43.5% of the total external
trade surplus (2020: 50.9%). Textile and apparel products remained
the major component of China’s trade surplus.
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According to the preliminary statistics of the National Customs of
Vietnam, in 2021, the export value of Vietnam’s textile industry
was approximately USD38.37 billion, representing an increase of
14.4% as compared with last year. Of which, the export value of
textile and clothing was approximately USD32.75 billion with an
increase of 9.9% from the previous year and the export value of
yarn was approximately USD5.61 billion with an increase of 50.2%
from the previous year. The export value of Vietnam’s textile and
clothing to the US, Japan and Korea amounted to USD16.09 billion,
USD3.24 billion and USD2.95 billion, respectively, of which the
export value to the US and Korea increased by 15.0% and 3.3%,
respectively, as compared to 2020, and the export value to Japan
decreased by 8.3%. The major exporter of Vietham’s yarn is China,
with an export value of approximately USD2.98 billion in 2021,
accounting for 53.2% of the total export value of Vietnam’s yarn,
and representing an increase of 39.0% as compared to last year.
In 2021, the total amount of fabrics imported from other countries
in Vietnam was approximately USD14.32 billion, representing an
increase of 20.6% as compared with last year. Among which, the
value of fabrics imported from Mainland China was approximately
USD9.07 billion, representing an increase of 24.7% over the
previous year, accounting for 63.3% of the total value of fabrics
imported from Vietnam. In addition, the value of fabrics imported
from Korea and Taiwan was approximately USD1.80 billion and
USD1.73 billion, accounting for 12.5% and 12.0% of the total value
of fabrics imported from Vietnam, respectively. Due to the impact of
the pandemic on the supply chain, the growth of Vietnam’s textile
and clothing exports to economies entered into the major free trade
agreement was not obvious. In 2021, the export value of Vietnam’s
textile and clothing to the EU (twenty-seven countries) and the UK
was approximately USD3.24 billion and USD590 million, respectively,
representing an increase of 5.8% and 6.7%, respectively, as
compared with the previous year; Vietham exported approximately
USD4.99 billion of textile and clothing to CPTPP member countries,
representing a decrease of 0.2% over the previous year. However,
with the alleviation of the impact of the pandemic on the supply
chain and the reduction of import tariffs for countries that have
entered into relevant free trade agreements year by year, the export
of Vietnam’s textile and clothing will likely enter a period of rapid
growth.
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On 1 January 2022, the Regional Comprehensive Economic
Partnership (RCEP) came into effect. The first batch of countries
to come into effect include six ASEAN countries, namely Vietnam,
Cambodia, Singapore, Thailand, Brunei and Laos, and four non-
ASEAN countries including China, Japan, Australia and New
Zealand. Thereafter, effective for Korea and Malaysia on 1 February
2022 and 18 March 2022 respectively. The effectiveness of RCEP
is conducive to the complementation of industrial resources among
member countries, promoting cooperation in the whole industry
chain from raw materials, equipment to supply chain support, and
increasing market share in member countries.

At the end of 2021, the middle exchange rates of RMB against USD,
EUR, GBP and JPY appreciated by 2.3%, 11.2%, 3.3% and 14.1%
respectively as compared with the end of 2020. The pressure on
the profitability of export enterprises was further increased due to
the appreciation of RMB exchange rates. Since the reform of the
RMB exchange rate formation mechanism in 2005 and until the
year-end of 2021,
a cumulative appreciation of 29.8%. During the year, the People’s

the exchange rate of RMB to USD experienced

Bank of China reduced the reserve requirement ratio twice by
0.5 percentage points each.
rate (LPR) decreased by 0.05 percentage points in December
2021; in January 2022, the one-year LPR further decreased by
0.1 percentage points, and the over five-year LPR decreased by

In addition, the one-year loan prime

0.05 percentage points. The consecutive decreases in the reserve
requirement ratio and LPR in the past two years have effectively
alleviated the financing pressure of enterprises.
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According to the results of the seventh census in 2020, the
population of the age group from 15 to 59 in Mainland China was
894.38 million, accounting for approximately 63.35% of the total
population, representing a decrease of approximately 45 million as
compared to the sixth census in 2010, representing a decrease of
6.79 percentage points of the total population; the population of the
age group of 60 and above accounted for approximately 18.70%
of the total population, representing an increase of approximately
86 million as compared to the sixth census, and an increase of
5.44 percentage points in the total population. According to the
information published by the National Bureau of Statistics, the total
number of births in 2021 was 10.62 million, representing an increase
of 480,000 as compared with the end of the previous year. Both the
number of births and new population in the year was the lowest in
the recent decade. Due to the deepening of the ageing population
and the decline in the total labor force, the recruitment pressure
of enterprises continued to increase, and the labor cost continued
to rise. Meanwhile, it will also prompt enterprises to accelerate the
application of automation equipment and focus on the improvement
of total factor productivity.
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According to the information published by the National Bureau
of Statistics, China’s cotton planting area in 2021 was 3.03
million hectares, representing a decrease of 140,000 hectares as
compared with last year. The annual cotton output was 5.73 million
tons, representing a decrease of 3.0% as compared with last
year. According to the information published by the United States
Department of Agriculture (USDA) in February 2022, it is estimated
that the global cotton production in 2021/22 will be approximately
26.16 million tons, representing an increase of approximately 1.82
million tons or approximately 7.5% as compared with 2020/21.
The global cotton consumption in 2021/22 will be approximately
27.09 million tons, representing an increase of 740,000 tons or
approximately 2.8% as compared with 26.35 million tons in 2020/21.
The global cotton carry-over inventory will be 18.36 million tons,
representing a decrease of approximately 4.9% as compared with
the end of last year, and the inventory consumption ratio will be
approximately 68%. China’s cotton inventory is estimated to be
approximately 7.88 million tonnes, accounting for approximately
43% of the global inventory. China’s cotton consumption accounts
for about 32% of the world’s total consumption and cotton import
accounts for about 20% of the world’s total import. In 2021,
China imported a total of 2.15 million tons of cotton, representing
a decrease of 0.6% over the previous year. Among which, cotton
imported from the US amounted to approximately 829,000 tons,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 15.1%. The United States
was the largest source of cotton imported from China, followed by
Brazil and India, which imported approximately 644,000 tons and
approximately 411,000 tons respectively, representing a year-on-
year increase of 4.2% and 62.4%. After experiencing a low level in
2020, cotton prices continued to rise in general during the year, with
an overall increase of over 50% as compared to the beginning of the
year. Due to the impact of the pandemic, the global consumption
demand for apparel has slowed down, and the production and
consumption of cotton will remain relatively stable. However,
affected by the increase in cotton plantation costs and the increase
in chemical fiber prices due to the increase in crude oil prices, it is
expected that the cotton price will not drop significantly in the short
term.
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On 24 October 2021, the Chinese government issued the “Action
Plan for Peak Carbon Emissions by 2030”, which set out the main
goals of carbon emission reduction: by 2030, the proportion of
non-fossil energy consumption will reach approximately 25%,
and the carbon dioxide emission per unit of GDP will decrease by
more than 65% as compared with 2005, successfully achieving
the carbon peak target by 2030. In addition, the key tasks were
clarified, in which the requirements for the industrial sector were to
accelerate the green and low-carbon transformation and high-quality
development, and strive to take the lead in achieving carbon peak.
On 27 October 2021, the State Council Information Office published
a white paper titled “China’s Policies and Actions in Response
to Climate Change”, introducing China’s progress in addressing
climate change, sharing China’s practices and experience in
addressing climate change to enhance the understanding of the
international community, and promoting the joint efforts of the
international community to address global climate change. China is
the world’s largest producer and exporter of textile and clothing. As
an important industry in the industrial field, the textile and clothing
industry will face great pressure on emission reduction in the process
of achieving the goal of “carbon peak and carbon neutrality”. To
this end, the textile and clothing industry needs to accelerate the
transformation, reduce greenhouse gas emissions through product
innovation, process improvement, equipment replacement, energy
substitution and other measures, and realize the transformation of
enterprises from labor-intensive industries to technology-intensive
industries.
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At present, the pandemic is continuing to spread around the
world, and there is great uncertainty in the process of supply chain
restoration. The pandemic affects global consumer demand and
also affects production and supply. With the easing of the pandemic
control measures in overseas countries, the production capacities of
the overseas apparel supply chain will gradually recover. Meanwhile,
due to the rapid transmission of the virus and the increasing
pressure on the import of the pandemic, the frequent dispersal of the
pandemic in Mainland China has caused an impact on the stability
of the domestic supply chain. The return of overseas orders to China
may no longer continue. Recently, the price of bulk raw materials
has increased substantially. Under the combined effect of the
pandemic, the inflation pressure of major developed economies has
become obvious, their monetary policies have shifted from easing to
tightening, and the uncertainties of recovery of consumption demand
in the international market has increased. The domestic sales market
in China is expected to maintain a recovery growth, but the growth
rate is also showing signs of slowing down. At present, the industry
will continue to face various risks and challenges due to the severe
geopolitical conflicts, frequent international trade frictions and poor
global logistics.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the decrease in capacity utilization rate and the
increase in production costs have exerted pressure on the Group’s
profitability, especially there was a significant decline in profitability
in the second half of the year. In the second half of 2021, the
Group achieved a gross profit of approximately RMB2,417,480,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 40.1% as compared with
the same period last year, and the gross profit margin decreased by
12.2 percentage points to approximately 19.4% as compared with
the same period last year. Such decrease is mainly attributable to the
combine effect of various factors, including: a drop in the Group’s
capacity utilization rate as a result of suspension of operation of
the Group’s fabric factory and garment factory of our Vietnam base
in the second half of the year due to the pandemic; significant
increase in raw material prices, especially cotton price increased
at a faster pace in the second half of the year; rising labor costs;
and increase in energy prices and strong RMB. During the year
under review, sustainable development of the enterprise continued
to be our Group’s main focus, we have invested more resources in
employee care, capacity expansion, improvement and renovation,
and efficiency enhancement, and have achieved good results.
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Although the pandemic has exerted great pressure on the operation
of enterprises, health and safety of our employees is always the
Group’s top priority. During the epidemic, the Group proactively
implemented various epidemic prevention measures and actively
cooperated with the local government on epidemic control. During
overseas outbreak in 2021 and the outbreak happened in China in
early 2022, the Group continued to pay wages to employees during
production suspension to assure they have income to maintain a
normal life amid the pandemic. Our Vietnam base was affected by
the epidemic the longest time, besides distributing anti-epidemic
materials to and arranging vaccination for our employees, the Group
paid extra production subsidies and accommodation subsidies to
working staff who were eligible to work pursuant to the government’s
epidemic prevention policies during the epidemic, and provided
free meals, welfare materials and daily necessities to them. For
Chinese employees stationed overseas, the Group introduced
In addition, the
Group increased its investment in the construction of high-quality

special allowance policies during the pandemic.

dormitories to further improve the living conditions of its employees.
Despite the increase in labor costs in the short term, the care for
employees has effectively improved the stability of employees,
and helped us swiftly resume operation after the pandemic,
and minimized the number of orders delayed as affected by the
pandemic.

The Group’s new garment factory projects in Cambodia and
Vietnam continued to make progress, which has assured that
we have enough capacity to support our business growth in the
future. As of the end of 2021, the Group’s new garment factory in
Cambodia has more than 11,000 employees, and the production
efficiency is gradually improving. The civil engineering work at our
new garment factory in Vietnam has basically been completed
and we have finished equipment installation for nearly half of the
workshops, new staff recruitment will be started by stages. At
present, the new reclaimed water recycling project at our fabric
factory in Vietnam is under construction, which not only promotes
the recycling of resources and reduces sewage discharge, but also
provides resource for us to expand our fabric production capacity.
It is expected that by the end of June 2022, the fabric production
capacity of our Vietnam base is likely to increase to 400 tons per
day, which can support the fabric demand of new garment factories
overseas accordingly.
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During the year, upgrade and improvement work at our fabric
factories in China continued, which has significantly increased our
fabrics production capacity and has also effectively alleviated the
pressure on the Group’s fabric production capacity during the time
our Vietnam factories suspended production. In addition, through
promoting the use of energy-saving equipment, improving our
production process and enhancing our capacity utilization rate,
the resource consumption level of our fabric factories in China has
further decreased, especially the electricity, natural gas and steam
consumption per output unit have decreased by approximately 10%
year-on-year. At the same time, the Group further optimized our
energy consumption structure, an addition of approximately 59,000
sg.m. of roofs were used for the construction of photovoltaic power
generation project. In addition, we have purchased 15,000,000 kWh
of green electricity from external parties through market transactions
for production.

Although there was a decrease in the Group’s overall production
capacity utilization rate due to the suspension of operation of our
overseas bases, the production efficiency of all production units
of the Group continued to improve, especially the productivity per
person of the major production processes in our domestic bases
increased significantly as compared with last year. The following
measures have contributed to
the improvement of the Group’'s
production efficiency: the use of
more automated equipment and the
improvement of equipment utilization
rate; continuous upgrade and
improvement of equipment; active
cooperation with customers and
promoting Design for Manufacturing
(“DFM”) during product development
stage, which can make the
production of a product easier and
shorten the production of each unit
through refining the design of the
product without compromising the
functions, appearance and reliability
of the product; encouraging and
guiding all of our staff to participate
in micro-innovation, which has
brought great contribution to us
when aggregate.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



BIEEwmR A

Management Discussion and Analysis

Bt %5 [cl g8

tHERR

HE_Z -S4+ "_A=-+—HLEEFEEN
HEFELN A NRH823,845,006,0007T » B &
EEEZFE+_A=+—HLEEENY
AR #23,030,648,00070 I TH AR
814,358,0007T > IB1BAY A3.5% c X BEAXRFE
HEREENFEZRRAS AEEZTESE
KIGRIERE BEERESIER HZE
BEZEE AERBIEMBIERE @
BT K IE RREEARIEEE
BMEEEEEE BRETAERZEERF
BE N NRBHEEETIIARE
EXERw BB Mo

UTREEB "S- —FER-_T_TFE
REmBRDMBHERILER

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales was approximately
RMB23,845,006,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB814,358,000 or approximately 3.5% from approximately
RMB23,030,648,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The increase in sales for the year was mainly attributable to the
satisfactory growth in the Group’s order demands and the expansion
of the production capacity. However, as our fabric factory and
garment factories in Vietnam, garment factories in Cambodia have
temporarily suspended operation for some time as a result of the
pandemic, the Group’s production capacity utilization rate has
decreased. In addition, unit price for order denominated in RMB also
decreased as affected by strong RMB.

The comparison of sales breakdown by product categories between
2021 and 2020 of the Group is as below:

HE+T_A=+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—EZ-F %R 2E)
2021 2020 Change

ARETT % AREFRT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

BER By products
EEH Sportswear 17,612,128 73.9 15,940,917 69.2 1,671,211 10.5
NGES Casual wear 4,720,735 19.8 4,480,518 19.5 240,217 5.4
M8 Lingerie wear 1,040,246 44 1,032,917 45 7,329 0.7
Hst 4 Other knitwear 471,897 1.9 1,576,296 6.8 (1,104,399) (70.1)
HERE Total revenue 23,845,006 100.0 23,030,648 100.0 814,358 3.5
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales of sportswear
products was approximately RMB17,612,128,000,
an increase of approximately RMB1,671,211,000 or approximately
10.5% from approximately RMB15,940,917,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase in sales of sportswear products

representing

was mainly attributable to the recovery of demand for sportswear
products in the US and European markets.

Sales of casual wear products increased by approximately
RMB240,217,000 or approximately 5.4% from approximately
RMB4,480,518,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB4,720,735,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in sales
of casual wear products in China and the US markets, which was
offset by the decrease in sales in Japanese market.

Sales of lingerie products increased by approximately
RMB7,329,000 or approximately 0.7% from approximately
RMB1,032,917,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB1,040,246,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021. The revenue from sales of lingerie products remained stable
and the major markets of such products were Japan and China.

Sales of other knitwear products decreased significantly
by approximately RMB1,104,399,000 from approximately
RMB1,576,296,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB471,897,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in the
sales of mask products to approximately RMB279,462,000 for the
year, representing a decrease of approximately RMB1,132,374,000
as compared to that of previous year. Without taking into account
the impact of mask products, revenue from other products increased
by approximately 17.0% as compared with last year.
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The comparison of revenue breakdown by markets between 2021
and 2020 of the Group is as below:

HE+T_A=+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E”—F s 2E)
2021 2020 Change
ARETT % ARETT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
BmiE By markets
B Europe 4,732,599 19.8 3,679,117 16.0 1,053,482 28.6
E{Ei| us 3,805,130 16.0 3,115,229 13.5 689,901 22.1
H#& Japan 3,346,908 14.0 4,795,807 20.8 (1,448,899) (30.2)
Hith Others 4,392,024 184 4,117,871 17.9 274,153 6.7
BRIHE Sub-total revenue from
international market 16,276,661 68.2 15,708,024 68.2 568,637 3.6
B Py 3 & Revenue from domestic
market 7,568,345 31.8 7,322,624 31.8 245,721 3.4
SHE M Total revenue 23,845,006 100.0 23,030,648 100.0 814,358 3.5
BE_Z_—&F+-H=Z+—HIEE" > For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s sales in
AEBREBNTENHEERENA AR  the European market was approximately RMB4,732,599,000,

4,732,699,00070 REBE—_ZE_ZF+_H
=+—HIEFEEMNHARS 679,117,000
7o AT # AR #1,053,482,0007T » 118
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representing an increase of approximately RMB1,053,482,000 or
approximately 28.6% from approximately RMB3,679,117,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales of sportswear in the European
market.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s sales in the
US market was approximately RMB3,805,130,000,
an increase of approximately RMB689,901,000 or approximately
22.1% from approximately RMB3,115,229,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020. Such increase was mainly attributable to the

representing

increase in sales of sportswear in the US market.

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Japanese market was approximately RMB3,346,908,000,

the Group’s sales in

representing a decrease of approximately RMB1,448,899,000 or
approximately 30.2% from approximately RMB4,795,807,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the significant decrease in the mask products
exported to the Japanese market during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s sales in
other overseas markets was approximately RMB4,392,024,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB274,153,000 or
approximately 6.7% from approximately RMB4,117,871,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in garments exported to Australia, UAE
and other markets.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s sales in
domestic market increased by approximately 3.4% as compared
with last year. Among the sales from domestic market, sales from
apparels was approximately RMB7,395,394,000, representing an
increase of approximately RMB264,990,000 or approximately 3.7%
from approximately RMB7,130,404,000 last year. The increase in the
sales of domestic market was mainly attributable to the increase in
sales of domestic brands.

Cost of sales and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, cost of sales of
the Group was approximately RMB18,055,359,000 (2020:
RMB15,836,040,000). The gross profit margin of the Group in
2021 was approximately 24.3%, representing a decrease of
approximately 6.9 percentage points from approximately 31.2% in
2020. The significant decrease in gross profit margin for the year
was mainly due to: 1) our fabric factory and garment factories in
Vietnam, garment factories in Cambodia have temporarily suspended
operation for some time as a result of the pandemic, resulting in
a decrease in the Group’s production capacity utilization rate, as
well as an increase in expense related to the pandemic; 2) there
was a significant increase in various production costs during the
year, including raw materials such as yarn, energy and labor, while
the selling price of the orders did not pass on the impact of cost
increases in a timely manner; and 3) the Group’s sales were mainly
denominated in USD, and the continuous appreciation of RMB
against USD had a negative impact on profit.
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Equity attributable to owners of the parent

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the parent amounted to approximately RMB27,770,579,000
(2020: RMB27,276,060,000), in which non-current assets were
approximately RMB15,622,465,000 (2020: RMB13,297,911,000),
net current assets were approximately RMB12,977,010,000 (2020:
RMB14,701,225,000), non-current liability were approximately
RMB816,412,000 (2020: RMB728,306,000) and equity attributable
to non-controlling interests were approximately RMB12,484,000
(2020: RMB-5,230,000). The increase in equity attributable to
owners of the parent was mainly attributable to the increase in
retained earnings for the year.

Liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities was approximately
RMB3,594,348,000, while it was approximately RMB5,754,570,000
in 2020. The cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at
31 December 2021 was approximately RMB6,687,623,000,
in which approximately RMB1,360,631,000 was denominated
in RMB, approximately RMB4,286,417,000 was denominated
in USD, approximately RMB981,439,000 was denominated in
EUR, approximately RMB29,781,000 was denominated in HKD,
approximately RMB26,689,000 was denominated in Vietnamese
dong and the remaining balance was denominated in other
currencies (2020: RMB8,227,060,000, in which approximately
RMB1,102,217,000 was denominated in RMB, approximately
RMB6,495,183,000 was denominated in USD, approximately
RMB592,917,000 was denominated in EUR, approximately
RMB16,858,000 was denominated in HKD, approximately
RMB17,305,000 was denominated in Vietnamese dong and the
remaining balance was denominated in other currencies). The
balance of bank borrowings was approximately RMB10,588,679,000
(2020: RMB6,608,303,000, of which the short-term bank borrowing
was approximately RMB6,210,429,000, and long-term bank
borrowing was approximately RMB397,874,000), of which the short-
term bank borrowing was approximately RMB10,212,171,000, and
long-term bank borrowing was approximately RMB376,508,000.
The Group’s net borrowings (bank borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents) as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB3,901,056,000, while the Group recorded net cash (cash
and cash equivalents less bank borrowings) of approximately
RMB1,618,757,000 as at 31 December 2020, net borrowings
increased by approximately RMB5,519,813,000 as at 31 December
2021, such increase was mainly attributable to part of our deposits
being frozen temporarily which was classified as pledged deposits,
as well as the increase in bank borrowings of the Group during the
year, which was mainly used for the construction of new production
capacity of overseas factories and the renovation and upgrade of
domestic factories.
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Equity attributable to owners of the parent amounted to
approximately RMB27,770,579,000 (2020: RMB27,276,060,000).
The Group was in a good cash flow position, with a debt to equity
ratio (calculated based on the percentage of total outstanding
borrowings over equity attributable to owners of the parent) of
38.1% (2020: 24.2%), up by 13.9 percentage points as compared
with the end of last year. As at 31 December 2021, in addition
to cash and cash equivalents, the Group also held other deposit
financial assets of approximately RMB10,737,994,000, which can be
used as the source of capital for debt adjustment.

As a part of the overall treasury management policies of the Group,
the Group purchased financial products from various licensed banks
of China (including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and fixed deposits) to maximize the return brought by idle money
of the Group through legal and low risk channels. The results of
applicable size tests for purchasing the financial products were lower
than 5%. Thus, the purchases were not subject to the notifiable
transaction requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The
purchase of such financial products was approved by the investment
and lending committee established by the Board to monitor the
implementation of treasury management policies of the Company.
Please refer to notes 23 and 24 to Financial Statements for details of
such financial products.

Pledge of assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2021, a fixed deposit equivalent to
approximately RMB510,056,000 (original USD80,000,000) placed by
the Group with a bank was pledged for a loan granted by a policy
bank in China. Besides, we have contracted with a domestic bank
to use deposit denominated in EUR amounted to approximately
RMB2,990,959,000 (original EUR414,277,538) to settle certain
foreign exchange swap held by the Group, such portion of EUR
amount has been frozen, of which RMB448,468,000 (original
EUR62,117,313) has been frozen until 20 January 2022 and
RMB2,542,491,000 (original EUR352,160,225) has been frozen until
1 April 2022. Other than that, we have no pledged or restricted
asset.
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Financing costs and tax

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
increased by approximately RMB35,786,000 to approximately
RMB144,036,000 from approximately RMB108,250,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly attributable to the

our financing costs

increase in the Group’s loans amount during the year as compared
to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the income tax expense
of the Group was approximately RMB451,637,000, which
increased by approximately RMB21,856,000 from approximately
RMB429,781,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020, which
was mainly due to the decrease in profits of the Group’s overseas
subsidiaries as a result of the impact of the pandemic; our overseas
subsidiaries were in preferential income tax period and enjoyed
lower tax rate as compared with the average tax rate of the Group;
and two of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries started to pay
corporate income tax during the year, while they were exempted
from tax during the previous year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in USD, while its
procurement was mainly settled in RMB, the Group’s costs and
operating profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations
to a certain extent. The Group adopted corresponding policies in
light of the existing fluctuations of exchange rate between USD and
RMB to hedge against certain risk exposure in respect of foreign
exchange. The amount applied for hedging depends on the Group’s
revenue, procurement and capital expenditure in USD, as well as the
market forecast of fluctuations in the exchange rate of USD against
RMB.
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In order to avoid any decrease and volatility in value of future
cash flows caused by any change in exchange rate of RMB
against USD, the Group has arranged certain amount of loans
denominated in USD and loans denominated in HKD with linked
exchange rate with USD. Amongst total bank borrowings as at 31
December 2021, loans of approximately RMB4,368,760,000 were
denominated in USD (calculated based on the original currency of
approximately USD685,220,000) and loans of RMB1,389,920,000
were denominated in HKD (calculated based on the original currency
of HKD1,700,000,000) (31 December 2020: loans of approximately
RMB3,527,582,000 were denominated in USD (calculated based on
the original currency of approximately USD540,634,000) and loans
of approximately RMB1,430,720,000 were denominated in HKD
(calculated based on the original currency of HKD1,700,000,000)). In
addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Group still possessed certain
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts, pursuant to which,
the Group contracted to sell foreign exchange of USD540,000,000
to various banks and receive corresponding amounts in Renminbi at
an average settlement price of approximately RMB6.6095 per USD1.

EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed approximately
95,820 employees in total. During the year, the total staff costs,
including administrative and management staff, accounted for
approximately 31.7% (2020: 26.7%) of the Group’s revenue.
The total staff costs as a proportion of the income increased by
approximately 5 percentage points as compared with last year,
which was primarily attributable to the temporary suspension of
operation of overseas factories as affected by the pandemic, and
that the Group had been paying salaries to employees during the
production suspension period, and expatriate Chinese employees
were entitled to special allowance during the pandemic. The
Group remunerated its staff according to their performances,
qualifications and industry practices, and conducted regular reviews
of its remuneration policy. Employees may receive discretionary
bonuses and monetary rewards based on their annual performance
appraisals. In addition, the Group also offered staff rewards or other
forms of incentives to motivate their personal growth and career
development. For instance, the Group offered training to its staff
continuously to enhance their technical and product knowledge
as well as their understanding of quality standards in industry, and
all of the new employees of the Group were required to attend an
introductory course, while there were also various types of training
courses available for all employees to attend.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant
and equipment, and prepaid land lease payment amounted to
approximately RMB2,187,942,000, of which approximately 55% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
39% was used for construction and acquisition of new factory
buildings and prepaid land lease payment, and the remaining
balance was used for the purchase of other fixed assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contracted capital
commitments of approximately RMB657,314,000 in connection with
the acquisition and construction of the land use right, property, plant
and equipment, which will be mainly financed by internal resources
and bank borrowings.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

As at 31 December 2021,
approximately USD283,000,000 in the new garment factory in

the Group has accumulatively invested

Phnom Penh, Cambodia. At present, the plant and dormitory
of the new project in Phnom Penh are substantially completed
and gradually put into operation. As at 31 December 2021,
approximately 11,200 employees were recruited for the new factory.

In addition, the Group started to construct a garment production
facility in Vietnam at the end of 2019. It is estimated that
approximately USD100,000,000 will be invested in this new garment
production facility. Such amount will be used for lease of land,
construction of plants and supporting facilities, and purchase of
machinery and equipment. As at 31 December 2021, a cumulative
amount of approximately USD62,000,000 has been invested, the
civil works of the new garment factory in Vietnam were substantially
completed. The new garment factory has two production workshops,
among which the installation of equipment in one of the workshops
has been completed and it will start recruiting new employees by
stages. The project is expected to be funded primarily by the cash

reserve of the Group.
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In December 2021, Ningbo Ruiding New Materials Co., Ltd. (22 &%
B MEA R AT) (“Ningbo Ruiding”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an equity transaction agreement with
Anging City Construction Investment and Development (Group)
Company Limited (ZEMHTERXIKEERE (EE) BRAE)
(“Anging City Construction”), pursuant to which Ningbo Ruiding
acquired 17.28% equity interests in Anhui Huamao Group Company
Limited (Z#ZEXREEHR2E) (“Huamao Group”) held by Anging
City Construction at a consideration of RMB480,000,000; in
addition, Ningbo Ruiding entered into a share transfer agreement
with Wuhan Dangdai Science & Technology Industries (Group)
Company Limited (B2 E AR EEXEBRMDERAT) (“Wuhan
Dangdai”), pursuant to which Ningbo Ruiding acquired 3.77%
equity interests in Huamao Group held by Wuhan Dangdai at a
consideration of RMB104,722,200. The registration of the above
equity transfer was completed on 28 December 2021, and Ningbo
Ruiding holds total of 21.05% equity interests in Huamao Group.
Huamao Group holds 46.40% equity interests in Anhui Huamao
Textile Company Limited (Z#ZEZFHERKRMD B RAR) (“Huamao
Textile”), a company incorporated in the PRC and listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000850). As a result, the
Group indirectly holds approximately 9.77% equity interests in
Huamao Textile. Huamao Textile is principally engaged in the textile
business and is one of the yarn suppliers of the Group.

Apart from these, the Company did not have any significant
investments, acquisitions and disposals during the year ended
31 December 2021. Please refer to the announcement dated 17
September 2018 and the Interim Report 2021 of the Company for
the details of the above project in Phnom Penh, Cambodia and the
announcement dated 17 October 2019 and the Interim Report 2021
of the Company for the details of the above project in Vietnam.
Please refer to the announcement dated 8 December 2021 of the
Company for the details of the above acquisition of equity interests in
Huamao Group.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 38.1%,
calculated based on the ratio of the total outstanding borrowings to
the equity attributable to owners of the parent.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

At present, the spreading of COVID-19 pandemic around the
world has brought uncertainty to the stability of the supply chain,
intensified geopolitical conflicts and the rise of trade protectionism
has made the prospect of global economic recovery more uncertain.
Developed economies have no choice but to start tightening their
monetary policies amid inflation pressure, which has affected the
recovery of consumption power and consumer confidence, thus
increased the uncertainty of the growth of textile and apparel trade
exports. The trade environment and cost differences has weakened
the export competitiveness of China’s products, which led to a
shifting of demand from China to overseas countries. The global
layout of the industrial chain and the cross-border collaboration of
supply chain have become a trend in the development of the textile
and garment industry, brand customers also establish global supply
chain network to diversify procurement risks.

High-quality development and establishing global presence are
the development strategies of the Group, which are also important
initiatives to cope with the operating pressure faced by the industry.
The Group’s high-quality development focuses on quality and
efficiency enhancement, innovation-driven development, energy
conservation and emission reduction. For establishing global
presence, it refers to build up a production model that with domestic
bases as the core and use overseas bases as support, which will
help to enlarge the market share of the Group.

Increasing automation, optimization of production process and
improvement of production efficiency not only can set us from the
constraints of labor and other essential resources, but are also
necessary in the face of rising manufacturing costs and unfavorable
trading environment. The Group will further the automation of
the industry chain and build up an intelligent warehousing and
logistics system to improve the efficiency and accuracy of material
distribution. Building on the modular sewing in our garment
manufacturing process, we will further work on the automation of
sewing process and enhance the intelligence of supporting materials,
so as to reduce work intensity and improving output per person.
While expanding the scale of equipment automation, the Group will
promote the whole life cycle management of equipment and improve
the comprehensive utilization rate of production equipment.
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The Group will further strengthen research and development
and innovation to adapt to the trend of consumption upgrading,
improve our ability to develop new products with new materials and
new technologies, in particular, to reflect the added value of new
products in terms of quality, functions and environmental protection.
At the same time, the Group will consolidate and enhance our
basic production ability, strengthen the management of material
consumption, improve the full kits rate of raw material, promote
the co-ordination and matching of production capacity of upstream
and downstream processes, and reduce material loss and idle
capacity. We will further improve the talent identification and training
mechanism, increase talent reserves, optimize the internal training
platform, and enhance the team’s innovation awareness and ability.

The Group will continue to promote the digital transformation of
enterprises, aiming to improve production efficiency and the level
of refinement, flexibility and intelligence of production methods, and
promote the collaborative innovation of equipment, software and
information technology. We will improve the application of digital
equipment at enterprise level, enhance the online rate of digital
equipment and expand the automatic collection scope of production
line data. Besides, we will integrate and optimize our system
software, accelerate the upgrading and transformation of enterprise
network, and promote the application of new network technologies
and equipment, such as the Internet of Things and smart sensors.
The Group will also establish a digital ecosystem, realize the
matching of our production system with the demand from external
supply chains and customers, so as to improve the responsiveness
of the supply chain to demand.

The Group attaches great importance to and promotes sustainable
development, and has expedited the construction of a green
manufacturing system covering the whole industry chain, including
green materials, green processes, green production, and circulation
development. The Group has implemented countermeasures to
meet the goal of “emission peak and carbon neutrality” in advance,
including research and development and introduction of low-
carbon technologies, optimization of energy structure, strengthening
delicacy management of production process, promoting the
application of high-efficiency energy-saving equipment, implementing
intelligent energy management, and strengthening resource
recycling. The green production model has not only become an
important consideration in selecting supply chain for global textile
and garment buyers, it is also an important component for textile
and garment enterprises to enhance their competitiveness in the
industry.
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The Group will further promote the global layout of our production
bases, optimize the diversified base layout of supply chain and
the vertical integrated production model, so as to better meet the
needs to diversify procurement risks and shorten order delivery time
of the Group’s customers. We will drive lean manufacturing and
green manufacturing at our overseas bases, and help to improve
the quality and efficiency of our overseas factories by exporting
management and technical talents to overseas and strengthening the
training of overseas local talents. With the support of our domestic
bases and leveraging on our digital infrastructure, we will vigorously
improve our ability in global collaborative manufacturing and sharing
of management resources, and reduce the pressure brought by the
demand for talents overseas. The Group will strengthen its cross-
border resource integration capabilities, make use of domestic and
foreign resource advantages, and achieve continuous improvement
of our value chain.

In view of the epidemic continue to grow in Mainland China, the
Group will remain cautions and maintain flexibility to a certain extent
in recruiting staff in Mainland China, with priority given to ensuring
the safety and stability of supply chain. In terms of overseas bases,
the Group will utilize the production capacity of our new factories
in Cambodia and Vietnam as soon as possible, recruit additional
employees in an orderly manner, and accelerate the efficiency
improvement of new factories.

The Group will continue to focus on enhancing its competitiveness
and value chain, and will accelerate the establishment of a high-
quality development model integrating technology, fashion and
sustainable development. Adhere to the demand-oriented and
innovation-driven principle, we strive to provide customers with more
comprehensive services, and create better returns for shareholders.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In order to cooperate with the PRC local government in respect
of the measures taken to contain the 2019 novel coronavirus, the
Group’s production line in Ningbo, China has suspended operation
partially starting from 1 January 2022. Production has been resumed
in an orderly manner starting from 16 January 2022. The impact
of the suspension of production line in Ningbo on the Group’s
overall operation is limited, and has no significant impact on the
financial position of the Group. For more details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 3 January 2022, 10 January
2022 and 16 January 2022. Save as disclosed above, there were
no events after the reporting period that had significant impacts
on the Group after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
announcement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently
stable cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of the Company through the provision of continuous
training for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covers all of the code provisions and most of the recommended
best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since
9 October 2005. The Company had complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2021.

Terms of Reference of Board Committees

In order to comply with the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the
terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company are
regularly revised based on amendments to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. Such terms of reference and the list of Directors and their
roles and functions are published on the websites of the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), respectively.
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Responsibilities of Directors

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 set out in the CG Code. The
Company arranged for continuous professional development on
the update of the Listing Rules and the related legal and regulatory
requirements for the Directors.

Independent non-executive directors

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board had complied
with (1) the requirement that the board of a listed issuer must include
at least three independent non-executive directors under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (2) the requirement that at least one
of the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and
(3) the requirement that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of his or her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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EERHE_Z_—F+_-_HB=+—HIEE A summary of training received by the Directors during the year

ERESEINHME2UWT ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Exps sEaNEE R (F5E)
Name of Directors Types of training (Notes)
BITES

Executive Directors

BERTE A&B
Mr. Ma Jianrong

mRAMITE A&B
Mr. Huang Guanlin

BLCMEE A&B
Mr. Ma Renhe

EFERTE A&B
Mr. Wang Cunbo

RZHet A&B

Ms. Chen Zhifen

BiIERITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BEmTLE A&B
Mr. Jiang Xianpin

SRINAE o4 A&B
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

REERE (WS —F=F—BEZMD A&B
Mr. Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)

REAZtT (BB —F=A—HEZMD A&B
Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)

BRELEE (W2 —F=F—H&MD B
Mr. Chen Xu (resigned on 1 March 2021)

RIERLEE (M2 —F=A—HED B
Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

MEEE - Notes:

Al HERARABLZHZHEE A:  attending seminars organized by the Company

B: MEAMLTRAUKEMBEREELRESE B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
HERMERNMAS S EEMEN development of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements
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Corporate governance functions

The Company adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions on 26 March 2012 in compliance with the
code provision A.2.1 set out in the CG Code, effective from 1
April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate
governance functions, the Board shall be responsible for developing
and reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and making recommendations;
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and the
Group’s compliance with the CG Code.

Communications with shareholders

Pursuant to the code provision F.2.2 set out in the CG Code, the
Company invited representatives of the external auditors of the
Company to attend the AGM of the Company to be convened on 30
May 2022 to answer shareholders’ questions relating to the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
and procedures with effect from 26 March 2012 for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director. The shareholders’
communication policy is to ensure that Shareholders’ views and
concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly
reviewed to ensure its effectiveness. The policy and the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.
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THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

As at date of this report being submitted to the Board, which was 30
March 2022, the Board comprised five Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors, whose biographical details
and family relationships among certain Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Members
of Senior Management” on pages 173 to 182. There are no other
material financial, business or relevant relationships among the
Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities
of the Board include formulating the Group’s business strategies and
management objectives, supervising the management and evaluating
of the effectiveness of management strategies.

The day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Directors or officers in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the operating condition,
business activities and development of the Group. Independent
professional advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their
request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.
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Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of
this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANAGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the significant operational decisions of the Group,
while the Group General Manager is responsible for managing the
day-to-day operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Ma Jianrong
is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Huang Guanlin is the Group
General Manager.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Independent Non-executive
Directors accounted for approximately 44.4% of the members of the
Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors are outstanding
executives or experts in the textile industry and business sectors
who bring with them expertise in different areas. They provide
adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the overall
interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent
and objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and
decisions. The Board considered that Independent Non-executive
Directors can enhance the effectiveness and decision-making of
the Board by providing independent view, objective judgement and
constructive challenge to the Board and management of the Group.
All Independent Non-executive Directors have submitted annual
written confirmation of their independence and compliance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.
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Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to Directors to ensure timely access to the relevant information
for discharge of their duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are also sent to all Directors for
their comment and records, respectively.

The Company held five full Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2021, with all the existing members of the Board
attended.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

BOARD DIVERSITY

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members
of the Board, the Board adopted a board diversity policy. It is
the policy of the Company to consider a number of factors when
deciding on appointments to the Board and the continuation of
those appointments. Such factors include gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Board will review the board
diversity policy on an annual basis so as to develop and review
measurable objectives for the implementing the board diversity policy
and to monitor the progress on achieving these objectives.
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Having reviewed the Board composition,
the importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level
and shall continue to take initiatives to identify female candidate(s)
to enhance the gender diversity among the Board members. Our

the Board recognises

diversity philosophy including the gender diversity was generally
followed in the workforce throughout the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.
78% of Directors and 28% of our total workforce were male. We will

As of the date of this report, approximately

continue with our endeavor to increase female representation in our
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been structured to include a majority
of independent non-executive Directors as members in order to
reinforce independence, while the Audit Committee only comprises
independent non-executive Directors. All of the Committees are
governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website www.hkexnews.hk.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As at the
publication of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director, and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng,
Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Ms. Liu Chunhong, three independent non-
executive Directors. On 1 March 2021, Mr. Chen Xu resigned as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
was appointed to fill the vacancy. Hence, Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Meanwhile, Ms.
Liu Chunhong was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 March 2021.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. No Director
will take part in any discussion on his or her own remuneration. The
details of the Directors’ fees are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates and factors such
as each Director’s workload, responsibility, and job complexity are

taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held two meeting in 2021 which all the
members attended. At the meeting, it reviewed the remuneration of
Directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration by band of the ten members of the
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out
on pages 173 to 182 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out below:

. A
[ EFSHON L5 o) Number of

Remuneration band (RMB’000) individual

1,000F 2,000 1,000 to 2,000 3
2,000 & Above 2,000 7
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 October
2005. As at the publication of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises Mr. Ma Jianrong, an executive Director, Mr. Liu Xinggao,
Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng, three independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Ma Jianrong is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. On 1 March 2021, Mr. Qiu Weiguo resigned
as a member of the Nomination Committee. Meanwhile, Mr. Liu
Xinggao was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 March 2021.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as Directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board accordingly; regularly review the
structure, size and diversity composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board for any proposed changes.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy. Pursuant to
the nomination policy, in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee will take into
account the following factors of the candidate, including but not
limited to:

° reputation for integrity;

° accomplishment and experience in the manufacturing industry,
in particular, in the textile and garment manufacturing sector;

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and

° diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings with full attendance
in 2021. At the meeting, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case
of an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject to
re-election by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for specific terms of not more than three
years. Any further appointment of an Independent Non-executive
Director, who has served the Board for more than nine years,
shall be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As at
the publication of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
Independent Non-executive directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin,
Ms. Liu Chunhong, Mr. Liu Xinggao and Mr. Zhang Bingsheng. Mr.
Jiang Xianpin is the chairman of the Audit Committee. His expertise
in accounting, auditing and finance enables him to lead the Audit
Committee. On 1 March 2021, Mr. Chen Xu and Mr. Qiu Weiguo
resigned as members of the Audit Committee. Meanwhile, Ms. Liu
Chunhong and Mr. Liu Xinggao were appointed as members of the
Audit Committee with effect from 1 March 2021.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices, risk management and internal controls. These include
determining the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing
the Group’s interim and annual financials and assessing the
completeness and effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and
financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG
Code and are subject to amendments in response to the regulatory
requirements from time to time (including the Listing Rules).

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



EEERHRS

Corporate Governance Report

BEZZEEEMRAARTEER RIMNEZH
MMERAFEERERAEBMRNZ TR
AR AEP) > M5 amiz 8 B EE s mal & iE
RMHBREEEE (BRBEHGE T " —
F+ZA=ZT—HLEEFEEZFHRR) - F
W BREEETTEIIBRBMBIT _RE
o E2ENENALREUSREFEFRE
StEHe

TRETSEEFN_Z_—FRHERRE
FRE EFTERNEFEZETTANF
B-BEFETHNEREFEER100.00% e

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and
the external auditors of the Company the annual results and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
statements matters including the review of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021. During the year, the Audit
Committee also met with the external auditors twice with full
attendance, to discuss the audit procedures and accounting issues.

Details of Director’s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
Committee Meetings held in 2021 are set out in the following table.
The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board meetings was
100.00%.

HE/ BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
EEAhF BERZEYg HMEEE RLZEE RRBEAG
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

HITES
Executive Directors
BEEES 5/5 - - 2/2 1/1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BREMEE 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
BLCHxE 5/5 - 2/2 - 11
Mr. Ma Renhe
ITEREE 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. Wang Cunbo
WZHut 5/5 - - - 1/1
Ms. Chen Zhifen
BIERTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BEREE 5/5 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
RIRELRE 5/5 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Zhang Bingsheng
A\EFZEE 4/4* 2/2 - 1/1* 1/1
Mr. Liu Xinggao
B L 4/4* 2/2 1/1* - 1/1

Ms. Liu Chunhong

* BESEERIBEALLIN B —F=
AAEZE SULBEEEREA R -

*

Mr. Liu Xinggao and Ms. Liu Chunhong were appointed in March 2021,
as such, their total number of meetings were different.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility of risk management and
internal control system and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility to assess and determine the nature
and degree of risks that it is willing to take in achieving strategic
goals as well as to maintain an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system and to ensure accurate
reporting of the Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the
public in a timely manner.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage and enhance operating effectiveness and
efficiency, to safeguard assets against misappropriation and
unauthorized disposition, to maintain appropriate accounting
records and financial reports that are true and fair, and to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system aims
at providing a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and managing rather than eliminating
operational risks.

The overall risk management process of the Company is integrated
in the day-to-day operations of the Group and the management
is entrusted with duties to analyze, identify, monitor, evaluate
and respond to risks associated with the business activities and
operations of the Group. The management will evaluate risk levels
acceptable for the Company, set up and formulate contingency plans
to minimize impact of unpredictable events and report its findings to
the Audit Committee and the Board, who ultimately determine the
nature and extent of significant risk that the Company is willing to
take in achieving its business objectives and direct the Group’s risk
management strategies.
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The Internal Audit Department is tasked with performing internal
control functions of the Company and plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The Internal
Auditor reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted
access to information that allows it to review all aspects of the
Company’s risk management, control and governance processes.
On a regular basis, it conducts audits on major activities and
process of the Group’s business and support units. It also conducts
special reviews or investigations of areas of concern identified
by the management or the Audit Committee. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee, Directors and key senior
management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for proper
implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
Directors and senior management directly and periodically.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts annual review
on the risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021,
operations and compliance, as well as risk management functions,

which covered controls over financial reporting,

and considered that the system of internal controls in operation in
the Group have been in place and functioning effectively.

Assisted by the Audit Committee, the Board assessed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group by reviewing the investigation results of management
report and internal audits, and considered that the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was effective and adequate.

The Group has formulated procedures on the handling and
disclosure of inside information which provides a general guide
to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. The procedures
help ensure that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any officer of the Company should be promptly
identified, assessed and reported to the Board if required, and
that inside information of the Company is disclosed promptly in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations when necessary.
To further enhance the internal control of the Company, the
Company has adopted a written inside information disclosure policy
on 27 March 2017 to standardize the responsibility and procedure of
information disclosure.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Audit Committee
will, prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The remuneration related to the audit services and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to RMB3,535,000 and RMB875,200
respectively. The remuneration related to non-audit services mainly
refers to tax advisory fee.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of the Securities
Trading Code is provided to all Directors upon their appointment.
Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days prior to the
Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results and 60
days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s annual
results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed to deal in
the Company’s securities prior to the announcement of its results
(the period during which the Directors are prohibited from dealing
in shares) and that all transactions must comply with the Securities
Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed
their strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the Securities
Trading Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information or inside information due to their positions
in the Company, and hence, are required to comply with dealing
restrictions under the Securities Trading Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji, is responsible for
facilitating the Board process, as well as communications among
Board members, with shareholders and management. Mr. Chan’s
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Members of Senior Management” section on pages 173 to 182 of
this annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders
and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and investors through various channels in an on-going
manner and provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive
information about the Group’s strategies and development.
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The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press releases and presentations material can be retrieved through
our Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure the speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet. If
necessary, hard copies of those website information listed above are
available free of charge upon request to the Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a policy of open communication and fair
disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. The Company
understands that more disclosure does not necessarily result in
increased transparency. The integrity of the information provided is
essential for building market confidence.
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The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4920, email at
2313ir@shenzhougroup.com or raising questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requesting

of such requisition.

member(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requesting member(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

During the period from 1 January 2021 to the date of this annual
report, there was no material change in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT AND ITS ASPECT

This sustainability report outlines the approaches, commitment
and strategies of the Group’s major subsidiaries in respect of
environmental protection, social responsibility and operating
governance. The reporting period of this report is from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2021. The data disclosed in this report is provided by
the respective human resources, administration, finance, energy and
other relevant departments, and has been prepared and collected by
sustainable development department. Unless otherwise stated, the
contents disclosed in this report included each of major branches and
production bases of the Group in China, Vietnam and Cambodia.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. During the reporting period, the
Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”.

PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS AND
SELECTION OF MAJOR ISSUES

In order to ensure the effective implementation of our environmental,
social and governance policies, the Group attaches great importance
to the opinion from every stakeholder. Stakeholders includes internal
stakeholders like Directors, management and staff of different levels,
as well as external stakeholders like shareholders, customers,
suppliers, banks, every government authority and local community
organizations. Internal meetings, interviews, internal publications,
staff performance review, training courses organized by Shenzhou
School of Management are the Group’s major communication
channels with its internal stakeholders. While for our external
stakeholders, the Group uses meeting, site visit, annual general
meeting and Group’s announcement as communication channels.

After comprehensive consideration, we will present our policies
on resources utilization, energy conservation and emission
reduction, remuneration package, working environment, training
and development of our staff, social engagement, procurement
chain management, anti-corruption, lean production and innovation,
investor relationships, etc, and their effectiveness. All stakeholders
are welcome to express their opinions.
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VISION

Shenzhou’s position for its future corporate development is to be
committed to “becoming the best tech apparel operator in the
world”. Shenzhou is Asia’s biggest vertically integrated garment
enterprise, with a complete operation system including research
and development, design, production and logistics. The future
development strategy of Shenzhou is not only to pursue the
continuous growth of the scale of the enterprise, but also to focus
on the comprehensive uplift in the corporate competitiveness,
especially the improvement in innovation, automation, digitalisation
and environmental protection.

MISSION

“Committing to green technology and creating a better lifestyle” —
Environmental protection is primary social responsibility as well as
the basis of long-term viability for any enterprises. The Group shall
always remain devoted to environmental commitments, from which
corporate sustainability can be realized. Comfort is not merely a
tactile sensation from our knitwear, but also a state of living that we
so fervently pursue. By creating a life of comfort, we seek to make
the enterprise one with nature.

BN E SRR E
Shenzhou Group Strategy House

FES AR RIERF REFES
Vision: become the best tech apparel operator in the world
3-9] oﬁﬁfﬁs HF{HAERE =3
PRODUCTIVITY INVESTMENT  DIGITAL SUPPLY CHAIN PEOPLE
BUFR BEt EE AR
INNOVATION AUTOMATION SPEED SUSTAINABILITY

fiEan

IBARG e BIERTFEE

Mission: Commit to green technology and create a better lifestyle

BB NS RE B8, WE

Core values: Integrity / Responsibility / Learning / Efficiency
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group recognizes the importance of enhancing its own
environmental and social responsibility to maintain business
sustainability. In determining its operation strategy, therefore, the
Group considers risks and opportunities affecting the environmental,
social responsibility and governance (“ESG”) issues, which will
provide guidelines for its daily business operations. The Group has
established a Sustainable Development Committee (“Sustainable
Development Committee”) chaired by the Chairman of the Board.
Meanwhile, we have also appointed the head of our Administration
Department to organize the daily operation of the committee and
report to the Board on a regular basis.

The Board endorses the Group’s commitments to ESG responsibility,
and assumes full responsibility for ESG strategies and reporting. The
Board reviews the ESG performance of the Group annually, identifies,
evaluates and manages important matters related to environmental
protection, social responsibility and governance, and oversees and
approves annual ESG report.

In charge of assessing and determining the ESG risk exposure,
the management of the Group also ensures the Group establishes
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems and reports to the Board the risks and opportunities related
to ESG, and provides confirmation on the effectiveness of the ESG
system.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.

The Introduction of Shenzhou’s Environmental
Protection:

Environmental protection is one of the key policies of the
government. In recent years, the Chinese government
has strengthened its effort in environmental protection
policy through reform of the supply side, which restricts
and eliminates the outdated production facilities that have
negative impact on the environment. The Chinese government
continuously improved environmental protection legislation,
and many environmental protection regulations were being
promulgated and implemented, including Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law on
Appraising of Environment Impacts of the People’s Republic
of China, Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China, Solid
Wastes Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Administrative Measures
for Carbon Emission Rights Trading (Trial), Regulations on the
Administration of Pollutant Discharge Permits, etc. Such laws
highlighted the supervision of environmental protection and
monitoring of discharged pollutants by local governments. In
addition, our overseas factories strictly complied with their
respective local laws and requirements to implement various
measures regarding environmental protection and social
responsibility. Meanwhile, the Group established its science-
based carbon emission reduction targets pursuant to “SBTi
Criteria 4.2” in 2021.
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On 24 January 2021, the State Council promulgated the
“Regulations on the Administration of Pollutant Discharge
Permits” (BE755F I E181£4)), which came into effect on
1 March 2021 and serve to regulate the act of discharging
pollutants and control the discharge of pollutants through
strengthening the management of pollutant discharge permits.

On 22 February 2021, the State Council promulgated the
“Guiding Opinions on Accelerating the Establishment and
Improvement of the sound Green and Low-Carbon Circular
Development Economic System” (BERINIREIE 24 EE
MBERZERCER/AMNIBEERTR), with an aim to provide
guidance to various entities for participation in and improvement
of the production system, circulation system and consumption
system under the sound green and low-carbon circular
development, accelerate the green upgrade of infrastructures,
and build a market-oriented green technology innovation
system. The textile and apparel industry should proactively
respond to and participate in this green action plan initiative to
form a green, environmentally friendly and novel industry chain
by achieving breakthroughs primarily on energy conservation,
environmental protection, clean production, and clean energy.
The more stringent environmental protection regulatory
requirements will motivate the textile and apparel industry to
pay attention to and invest in environmental protection, and at
the same time facilitate the supply-side reform of the industry
brought about by environmental protection.

The Group will continue to strengthen its sustainable
development capabilities and promote the synergy between
high-quality industrial development and high-level protection
of the ecological environment in order to procure the industry
to follow a green and low-carbon development approach.
In the next few years, through further optimising the energy
consumption structure gradually, especially by increasing
the proportion of clean energy consumption such as wind
power and solar power, as well as continuously improving
craft process and enhancing the industrial application of
environmental protection equipment, the Group will promote
resource conservation and recycling, enhance the efficiency of
resource utilization, improve the standard of clean production
along the entire industry chain, and strive for reduction in
carbon emissions year by year.
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The main resources used in the process of the Group’s
production is water, electricity, steam, natural gas, coal and
biomass. The Group primarily produces greenhouse gases due
to energy consumption in the production process, greenhouse
gasses emissions include Scope 1: direct emissions (natural
gas, biomass fuel and coal) and Scope 2: indirect emissions
(electricity and steam). Fabric production is the main process
of energy consumption. The main wastes generated from
production are wastewater, waste gas and solid waste etc.

Given the continuous technology advancement of production
equipment and continuous development of renewable energy
in recent years, the problem arose from the governmental
limitation on environment emission index following the increase
in productivity of fabrics has been solved.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with
all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharge into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.
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2.

Use of Resource
2.1 Water Resource

In 2021, water consumption of the Group for the year
is 27,271,199 tons, which increased by approximately
8.59% when compared with last year. The water
consumption of the Group was mainly attributable to
dyeing factories. The fabric output in 2021 has increased
by 21.5% as compared with 2020. Due to the persistent
use of environmental friendly raw materials by the
Group, improvement in dyeing process, introduction
of environmental friendly equipment and the use of
reclaimed water after treatment, water consumption
nevertheless recorded continuous decrease. The Group
has wastewater treatment facility in China and Vietnam
respectively to treat discharged water. Meanwhile, the
Group has recycled facilities in Mainland China, with a
capacity of 15,000 tons of reclaimed water per day, and
we have consumed a total of 3,392,466 tons of reclaimed
water. Through sewage spilt-flow in the production
process, lightly polluted water for dyeing is recycled after
treatment with a usage rate of approximately 30%. Thus,
it effectively lower the consumption in water resources
and the volume of direct wastewater discharge, and
dyed polluted water is discharged after strict treatment.
In addition, the reclaimed water recycling facilities at the
fabric factory area in Vietnam are under construction and
are expected to be available for use before the end of
2022. The increase in reclaimed water was due to the
fact that currently only the fabric factory in Ningbo used
the reclaimed water recycling system and the production
capacity of the fabric factory in Ningbo in 2021 increased
as compared to 2020, which resulted in a corresponding
raise in total water consumption following such increase
in production capacity.
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The Group planned to increase the efficiency in water
usage of fabric units by 20% before 2025, as compared
with 2020, through methods such as equipment
upgrading, water conservation technology research,
construction of reclaimed water recycling facilities in
Vietnam, improved management, etc. in the upcoming
years.

BRI &2 HIFEKE

Water consumption by source
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2.2 Direct Energy
2.2.1 Natural gas
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Currently, Ningbo factories are completely using
natural gas as basic fuel, thus effectively alleviating
the adverse impact on the atmosphere. In 2021,
the Group consumed a total of 69,003,695 m® of
natural gas, representing an increase of 28.91%
as compared to the corresponding period last
year, with approximately 157,308 tons of carbon
dioxide equivalents emitted. The increase in gas
consumption volume was due to the fact that
natural gas was mainly consumed by the fabric
production site in Ningbo, the production capacity
of which in 2021 increased as compared to 2020.
As such, the total natural gas consumption volume
of the Group raised as compared to 2020.
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Biomass and Coal

In 2021, the total consumption of environment-
friendly biomass and coal was 198,926 tons,
representing an increase of 2.36% as compared
to that of last year, because the heat value of the
coal is slightly lower than the one in previous years,
resulting in a slight increase in consumption of coal,
with approximately 400,447 tons of carbon dioxide
equivalents emitted. All of the garment factories
of the Group had completed the coal phase-out
process last year. Coal was consumed only by the
fabric factory in Vietnam by the end of 2021.
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2.2.3Diesel fuel and gasoline*

During the year, the Group used a total of 1,717,391
litres of diesel fuel for motor vehicles, which emitted
1,280 tons of carbon dioxide equivalents, and used
174,705 litres of gasoline in total with 108 tons
of carbon dioxide equivalents emitted. The total
carbon dioxide equivalents emitted was 1,388 tons.
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2.3 Indirect Energy
2.3.1 Electricity

The total consumption of electricity of the Group in
2021 was 759,710,330 kWh (in which 740,152,712
kWh was purchased grid electricity, 15,000,000
kWh was purchased as green electricity and
4,557,618 kWh was self-generated solar power for
internal use), representing a year-on-year increase
of 12.28%, which was equivalent to 403,487
tons of carbon dioxide equivalents emission. The
increase in use of electricity was mainly attributable
to the increase in overall output in 2021. In 2021,
the fabric output of the Group was 237,218 tons,
representing an increase of 21.50% as compared to
that of last year. The electricity consumption of the
fabric factories was 541,179,614 kWh, representing
an increase of approximately 11.15% as compared
to last year.
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In 2021, the volume of outsourced steam
was 1,100,549 tons, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 23.27%, with
approximately 286,104 tons of carbon dioxide
equivalents emitted. The increase in outsourced
steam was due to the fact that outsourced steam
was mainly consumed by the fabric production site
in Ningbo, the production capacity of which in 2021
increased as compared to 2020. As such, the total
outsourced steam consumption volume raised as
compared to 2020. The steam purchased for the
Ningbo plant is purchased from a nearby power
plant. This part of the steam is the by-product of
power generation process.
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Please refer to the following table for the
intensity of direct energy consumption, indirect
energy consumption and water consumption in

BRTXR: 2020 and 2021:
—Z2TEHF —E—fF
2020 2021
FEKENRE (W, T14) 57.1 55.7
The intensity of water consumption (Tons/k pieces)
BHEERHEENRE-MR QLA K/ T4 121.7 140.8

The intensity of direct energy consumption

— Gas (m¥k pieces)
BHEERHEENRE - EME MRS RE (M, FH4) 0.4 0.4
The intensity of direct energy consumption

— Biomass fuel & Coal (Tons/k pieces)
BiEEREEENRE-8H (TREE /T4 1,637.8 1,550.4
The intensity of indirect energy consumption

— Electricity (kWh/k pieces)
BB REEENRE %5 (M T4 2.0 2.2
The intensity of indirect energy consumption

— Steam (Tons/k pieces)
“S LB EENRE - COe (M, F4) 2.64 2.56
The intensity of carbon dioxide equivalent emission

sk : REZEABEHES Note: Intensity represents the ratio between total
HEFEHHRENEE consumption and total production of knitwear each
[e3=pd = year.

TEI—FoEEREKE In 2021, despite the increase total water
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—RIEIKEN B R B S Tt
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consumption following the increase in output,
the decrease in water consumption intensity is
attributable to the modification and upgrade of
a series of water and electricity conservation
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BNRAREFIRETS
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equipment, such as the upgrade of dyeing and
finishing facility and the usage of continuous
washing equipment, etc. The slight increase in the
intensity of consumption of other energy was due
to the impact of the pandemic on the operating
process of the factories last year. The consumption
of fixed energy increased as well. Through measures
such as purchase of green electricity, the addition
of photovoltaics, the transition from steam to
electricity and refined management, the intensity of
total carbon emission, however, is reduced by 3%
compared to 2020.
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The Group promised to join the climate action. Both

scope 1 and scope 2 emission reduction plans

of the Group have been built in accordance with

science-based target.

Scope: Absolute Carbon Emission of scope 1
and scope 2 within the Group boundary

Baseline Year: 2020

Objective: to reduce the emission within the
scope by 42% in 2030 as compared with
2020

Authorised Unit: World Resource Institute
(attachments as below)

Disclosure Platform: CDP

Major Measures: Continuous efficiency
upgrading, vigorous development of renewable
energy such as rooftop solar power, proactive
purchase of green electricity, making our best
effort to realise the transformation of energy
structure from coal to biomass with local
resources.
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EMISSIONS

In the current year, the Group’s operation has no significant
impact on the environment and natural resources. Therefore,
Aspect A3 (Environment and Natural Resources) and its KPI
A3.1 (Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them) are not applicable to the Group and are not
disclosed in this ESG report. In terms of the relevant policy
in environmental protection and natural resources, the waste
water, waste gas and noise of the Group comply with emission
standards. In terms of the emission of waste water, the current
emission of waste water of the Group is better than standard.

The Group pays attention to the control of pollutants in the
whole process and attaches importance to the environmental
protection performance of raw materials provided by suppliers
in determination of suppliers. Each production department
continues to improve technique and tries to enhance the level
of environmental protection in technique. It optimizes energy
structure and gradually increases the use of clean energy.
It upgrades old equipment promptly through introduction
of advanced and greener equipment with low consumption
to reduce the consumption of resources and emission of
pollutants. The Group targets to maintain the levels of various
waste emissions intensity lower to the current levels within the
next 3 years.

In the final treatment of pollutants, it strictly complies with
relevant requirements of government and ensures compliance
with standards in emission.
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3.1 Emission of Sewage

The Group adopted the following measures, which
included but not limited to the reduction of water
consumption and sewage volume by carrying out actions
such as technological innovation of dyeing process,
upgrade and technological improvement of dyeing and
finishing facilities as well as measures such as continuous
washing after printing and digital printing in order to reach
the target of the decreasing emission of sewage.

The Group is studying the layered treatment for waste
water, to reach the target of further lowering the waste
water discharge and recycling for reuse. The technology is
set to be applied in the reclaimed water recycled facilities
under construction in Vietnam.

The Group has set up integrated sewage treatment
facilities in its Ningbo and Vietnam production bases
since construction completed to comply with the
emission standards before discharging. It carries
out regular inspections according to the Ecology
Environmental Protection Bureau’s requirements. The
respective environmental protection authorities have
installed online detection devices at the sewage outfalls.

The frequency of inspection on wastewater discharge of
the Group is: realtime monitoring for on-site inspection;
once every three months for sample inspection.
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AERETE_T - —FEEMEKEE
WE 521,311,934 i EEE
HIN4.57%° EEKBEME EFHRY
BEREERELEEFFTIEM
SERRBEREERLEMNT
21.5%°

The Group has discharged 21,311,934 tons of waste
water in 2021, representing an increase of 4.57%
compared to that of last year. The increase in volume
of waste water discharged was due to an increase in
production capacity of fabrics in Ningbo. The total fabric
output of the Group increased year-on-year by 21.5%.

BRI E

Volume of waste water discharged
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BEEERFRBEER ]
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BFE-ROBERIFBERA - X
R %2 855 1E 88 I JE B R B9 BE L TE AR
EARG O HIMEIEERIFK
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21,311,934

BEK ()
Waste water (Tons)

“E-—FHNE

Volume of discharge

in 2021

3.2 Emission of Waste Gas

The air pollutant generated from production process of
the Group are mainly smoke and dust, sulphur dioxide
and nitrogen oxide. The Group also conducts online
monitoring on smoke emission to ensure compliance
with the emission standards before discharging. The
respective environmental protection authorities have also
installed online monitoring devices at our smoke outfalls.
At our Ningbo factory area, the frequency of inspection
on smoke and gas emission is: real-time monitoring for
on-site inspection; once every three months for sample
inspection.

In the fabric production site in Vietnam which primarily
used coal, emission was monitored and controlled
for major equipment which emitted waste gas in the
production site such as boilers, setting machines and
drying machines through quarterly waste gas emission
inspections and the online monitoring system installed
at the boiler chimneys. The purpose was to ensure
compliance with the requirements on sulphur dioxide,
nitrogen oxide and other waste gas emission under local
laws.
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E- 2 —FRAECYIEEK
EA143.30  RZTEZFFH
133.56% > TR AR T
NEZRAREREATHRIX
ARMBEZET AP
Bo

The Ningbo factory area fully used natural gas boilers
in 2021, which enhanced the efficiency of the boilers
effectively, and stopped the use of fuel like coal and
biomass etc.

The main sources of sulphur dioxide emissions are
coal boilers and biomass boilers. The Group emitted
295.94 tons of sulphur dioxide in 2021, representing a
decrease of 3.08% as compared to that in last year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the effective control
management of sulfide emissions by the fabric factory in
Vietnam.

The main sources of nitrogen oxide emissions are
coal boilers, biomass boilers and natural gas boilers.
143.30 tons of nitrogen oxide were emitted in 2021,
representing a decrease of 33.56%, which is particularly
significant, as compared to that in 2020. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the installation of nitrogen oxide
neutralisation devices in natural gas boilers of the fabric
factory in Ningbo.
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The main sources of smoke and dust emissions are coal
boilers and biomass boilers. The Group emitted 48.19
tons of smoke and dust in 2021 representing a decrease
of 9.28% as compared to that in 2020. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the improvement in smoke and dust

B HIE B iR Ff o emissions control in each area.
“ERB SR
Volume of sulphur dioxide discharged
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30533
390 295.94
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80 < b
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“ECEFHNE “ECFHNE
Volume of discharge  Volume of discharge
in 2020 in 2021
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Volume of nitrogen oxides discharged
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The statistics calculation included hazardous wastes and
non-hazardous wastes emissions of the whole Group for
2021 has been conducted.

In 2021, the emission of hazardous wastes of the Group
was 1,006 tons in aggregate, representing a decrease of
approximately 30% as compared to that of last year and
the major emissions are wasted oil, wasted fluorescent
light and wasted ink as well as empty used plastic drums
for storing chemicals.

In addition, the Group has also set up storage areas for
non-hazardous wastes, which were eventually passed
to qualified organisations for eligible processing. The
total amount of non-hazardous wastes discharged was
159,173 tons in 2021, which increased by approximately
9% as compared with same period last year, mainly due
to the increase in total production volume of garment.
Non-hazardous wastes include recyclable plastics, paper
product, waste fabrics, domestic waste, kitchen waste,
sludge and cinder.

The volume of sludge of production sites in Ningbo
decreased by 50% due to the installation of Fenton
system in fabric factory in Ningbo in 2021. The hazard
wastes, such as chemical packaging material in Vietnam
and Cambodia were handled by the qualified companies,
but some portions of chemical packaging materials in
Ningbo district were handled by the suppliers and some
portions were handled by the qualified companies.
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The Group conducts a classification and treatment
process for all solid waste, part of which will be recycled
and reused to minimize its pollution to the environment.
QOur Group classifies all non-hazardous solid waste
(except for cinder and sludge) into four categories in the
below table according to the relevant Regulations for
Waste Classification and Management in the production
sites and the relevant offices in China, Vietham and
Cambodia. As the production capacity of the Group
increased in 2021, the total volume of various recyclable
wastes increased, and at the same time raised the
recovery rate.

25 &l

Category

Examples

Source of waste

“ECEF 2%
EE(W EE(ME) RE
Weight in Weight in

2020 (tons) 2021 (tons) Handling

BB IRRZERAELR
Reusable or recyclable
paperboards and papers

IENRATERZEAY

Reusable or recyclable waste fabric

BRANEZ FERED
Reused or recycled
non-hazardous waste

BEBFRALRZFEREN

Non-hazardous waste that cannot be

BiR BAR ERS EE
Waste paper boxes, waste
paper cones, waste paper cores,
waste papers

Waste fabric, pied hair

BT BRE
Plastic wire cores, plastic bags

B E R
Household garbage

reused or recycled

A ZEZ—FE AEBNKAR
BEYR A H£4933,2810F > 5 _E
FEEEFATHE A%  TEER
AEEAHLEFA SB8EYRHN
HEUWRE LA BREAZH#E
T BN R IR -

i FERETER 14,482.22 18,650.35  BAEZHENEN
Knitting, dyeing and garment Sold to third party(ies) for
making process recycling
e RERETER 32,124.04 49,566.60  EXEEMN
Knitting, dyeing and garment Recycled by seller(s)
making process
i FEREKER 2,097.36 301650  BAFE=AHETER
Knitting, dyeing and garment Sold to third party(ies) for
making process recycling
EERBAE 10,756.45 12,981.33  HE BENREE=F
Canteen and office B BERORE
Disposal of household
garbage and food waste
were contracted to third
party(ies)

In 2021, packaging materials of the Group’s garment
totalled approximately 33,281 tons, representing an
increase of approximately 8.15% as compared to that
of last year, which was attributable to the increase in
packaging materials due to the growth in production
volume. However, most of the packaging materials are
recycled.
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TEIERERIIE T —FREIKEE Please refer to the following table for the intensity of
BE &' EHERE - a81tY discharged volume of waste water, sulphur dioxide,
HRENEEHHRE  CREYHE nitrogen oxides, smoke and dust, hazardous waste and
WEMFECREYHEHRENRE non-hazardous waste in 2020 and 2021:
BE2RETR

ZTTEE —T-—F

2020 2021

BEkBEMENRE (T, T4) 46,320 43,494
The intensity of discharged volume of waste water (kg/k pieces)
“EEMEBIRENRE (Fx,/TH) 0.69 0.60

The intensity of discharged volume of sulphur dioxide

(kg/k pieces)
AR ENRE (T, T4) 0.49 0.29
The intensity of discharged volume of nitrogen oxides

(kg/k pieces)
EERENRE (T T4) 0.12 0.10
The intensity of discharged volume of smoke and dust

(kg/k pieces)
BERENHRENRE (T, T4) 3.27 2.05
The intensity of discharged volume of hazardous waste

(kg/k pieces)
FEEREREEY CRIEENSE BEMEnNaE (T, T4 135.14 171.68
The intensity of discharged volume of

non-hazardous solid waste (except for cinder and sludge)

(kg/k pieces)

fEr: REZFEAEENENS Note: Intensity represents the ratio between total discharged
FHAERENBREEEZL volume and total production of knitwear each year.

4. HRETHEE 4. Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
AREERATEBEREFENEEL The Group believes that the ability in enhancing efficiency and
AFIBRMIRH BB RTREENITE continuing to invest in environmental protection will become the
PEIEFN 58 F B o R E BB I B K major entry barrier and competitive advantage of the industry in
BEMZELEENAMENE—F I8 the future. As a result, the Group will make every effort to further
EoRELEEHEERENINEE improve the utilization efficiency of water and other resources
WARBBRENSZEE THREER S0 as to alleviate the adverse impact of production activities on
HEESNEBEME the surrounding environment, we will promote clean production

throughout the entire production process and we will ensure
that the end consumer products are environmental friendly.
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SEBE_ZE_—FBENEBEEES
759,710,330 F B/ NBF > HApi@im
ERINENZEEE5740,152,712F
RN FREEN SRS
272403,487HF » HEFH915,000,000F
R/ NEEM4,557,618T RF/ A E
ENHEEBEAEREMEBELXGAE
HEEARERELS BOHEEN_SR
EBEMEE 412,047 KEERR
2021 FEHEFERLLAZEILAEEN
2.6%  AEBIEAFERERIESK
FFEEE K4 220,569,874F R 45/
Bfoltbsh > AEBEAFEREF KA
B4 2152352 F R/ Al R 1B R
KABBHE,452,653 T R/ NE &
HAELZE1,605,005F F4F/ )\ o

4.1 EBZEEY
rEBEAFEMBHNEAE
73,0632 & £254,093F 75 K B9
BIPK2, 707 FHKMWEL S F
AMEFAIENEE R EHEHN
RIFEMEIMmM N —%F
AEEBBEGSE RAER
EBEOBETERASEREE H
B @R TGRS UHEHT
ZHAMAZBREE BER
BENREXEBARANTETR AR
ANAEERMHERNER

The Group’s total electricity consumption in 2021 was
759,710,330 kWh, of which 740,152,712 kWh was grid
electricity purchased through power plants with 403,487 tons
of corresponding carbon dioxide equivalents emitted, and
the remaining 15,000,000 kWh and 4,557,618 kWh was from
the purchased green electricity and the self generated by the
rooftop solar equipment respectively, reducing 12,047 tons
of corresponding carbon dioxide equivalents emissions. The
consumption of green electricity by the Group accounted for
2.6% of total electricity consumption in 2021. The electricity
of the Group used for treating waste water was approximately
20,569,874 kWh for the year. Moreover, the electricity
consumption of the Group for reclaimed water and clean
water in the current year was approximately 152,352 kWh and
1,452,653 kWh, respectively, which equals to 1,605,005 kWh
in aggregate.

4.1 Increase in green vegetation

The Group planted 73,063 trees in the current year,
covering lawns of 254,093 m? and Radix Ophiopogonis
of 2,707 m2. The increase in trees and lawns was
mainly attributable to the new factory in Vietham and
Cambodia. In 2021, the Group upheld traditional virtues
and demonstrated the spirit of teamwork through tree
planting activities. At the same time, we delivered
positive green energy and procured more people to
participate in activities related to promotion of green ideas,
environmental protection and nature conservation, with an
aim to make proper contributions to the Company’s green
development.
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4.2 BiREIRHEIE B 5% 4.2 The table of Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction Program
s UAERTEAMNGERERS Set out below is our energy consumption efficiency
ZIE LB RN R . targets, and the initiatives we have adopted to achieve
those targets:
# BB Programs M Relevant | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 202 2022 DIVl Benciits B2

5 EK/ERRE30%
HOARBES 7 i 3 iy ‘
! 110 dyeing machine upgrade Water/Energy ggg/uce RS L)
0

R £k /RED%
ARBEEHAEER HikEsE ‘
2 40 dyeing machine upgrade for highelastic fabric Water/Energy E;duce TR L)
0
aEano
3 5 SRRRER dd gizfzﬂv%i?eﬁener consumption b
50 dyeing machine investment Water/Energy 0% o plon by
0
4
4 WRBER L Eﬁeﬁu/fzﬁvbvi::/rc/ener consumption
Yarn-dyeing machine upgrade Water/Energy o P
by 31%
SREHAR BB RETRNE HaEHK
5 Sampling machine upgrade & workshop Water /Ene: Enhance sampling efficiency, energy
reconstruction o efficiency and water conservation
ERHEEN ik HHER RENE
6 . . o Reduce energy consumption and
Setting machine upgrade Energy ) "
improve efficiency
7 A E BET HKEE #k40%
Garment Washing workshop retrofit Water/Energy Reduce water consumption by 40%
P = [
Condensed / Cooling water recycling Water/Energy J g. aup Pg
(water conservation)
RABENZ BOERE, BOERE
9 EHEBEBCIRMRRE EiliC3 1
Replace Biomass boiler to nature gas boiler Water/Energy Enhance hoiler efficiency, reduce solid

waste and waste gas emissions

EMBRAERED @R -

. . HiE30%
10 Increase the capacity on waste heat recovering .
eyl Energy Reduce energy consumption by 30%

BRERARAR k3 Hi5526%

Compressed air system upgrade Energy Reduce energy consumption by 25%
" EXEEERTR gk BEREEN ANER
Wastewater pipe re-laying Water Carry out during equipment upgrade
. y o BLLREER HELE
e ] x . ‘ I
13 \m?%fﬁ?\m V?lztr Avoid evaporating, emitting, dripping or
pp ying leaking, and for easier maintenance
KEEDIEF20
BkEENRKEREN R s :@ﬁq\:}f?bjﬂﬁiﬂ %
14 WWTP upgrade and recycled water capacity Brkait AVEEAH
extension Water/EWN Enhance the ability to reuse water by
20%, reduce sludge discharge
15 TERRERG (FRED) B BEHR BEEVOCH K
New tail gas treatment (high temperature setting) EVN. Green emissions, reduce VOC emission
e . . BOEE RESKEENR
16 EQMEWKPHEMD% Atk Reduce sludge, and enhance sewage
limewater PH Adjustment in WWT process EN. e B
B HELERENR
17 ECHBRAAR pitzd Reduce energy and water
Aeration system upgrade in A/O process EN. consumption, and enhance A/O
process performance
" ZAEPRE gk ik
Steam Valve insulation Water Reduce energy consumption
1 Cadira K& R RHE R gk K
Cadira saving water active dyestuff promotion Water Reduce water consumption
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20

21

22

28

24

25

26

27

28

29

5.

HTERERKE Bk
continuous wash-off machine for printing Water/Energy
BEEBENER ik
High efficiency motor replacement gradually Energy
i EEE HkEE
automatic switch for drain valve Water/Energy
XARREERTNGEIN b7
NOX neutralized by ammonia in natural gas boilers EVN.
ERFER-AE AR
renewable energy in Ningbo-wind power Carbon
KR BIHERE) b
Polar PV Carbon
PS¥iia k3
Post dying process Energy
FRERIEAR G AOEEY
Wastwater treatment process update by FENTON Waste
RO m@AX ik

RO Recycle Water Water
RESS k3
Green Power Purchasing Energy

Completed
TERY
EiRe R BEE B

5.1 FEEHABEL

AEBRARNONBEERE
B REMER ERERRS
BREERE R M B RE BB T 1F o

FEBRHEEAREBEERBIER
RBABRT THED ISR
RENBBESERR FRAEE
EEREMNBERYETRERZR
KRB KARBEFMELENEZS
ENHRAEREERER

I ERBHE S BNt & K R B
BENRERR N _Z2_ZTFH
M2 EBFESNGEE
R

In progress
T

#i7k60%

Reduce water consumption by 60%
HE5-10%

Reduce electricity consumption by

B IT15%

Reduce steam consumption by 15%
AL BERELMHR

Reduce nitrogen oxide emission of
boilers

Reduce carbon emission
.. o

Phase Il Reduce carbon emission
ZREE BE10%HER (T2 HE)
Dried cloth surfaces reducing 10% of
energy (setting, drying)
BOEE RESKEENE
Reduce sludge, and enhance sewage
treatment performance

E-FEMERAEER0K10-16%
Further increase the recycling of
discharged water for 10-15%

Planned

sTEIH

Major energy saving and emission reduction projects
5.1 Optimization of Energy Structure

In the long term, the Group was committed to adjusting
the energy structure, developing renewable energy, and
transforming from traditional energy to clear energy,
striving to do energy saving and emission reduction job.

The Group entered into a framework cooperation
agreement for a distributed photovoltaic project with an
energy service company under State Grid Corporation of
China in Ningbo. A photovoltaic power station was built
on the buildings’ rooftops of the Group’s base in Ningbo
and the green electricity generated by the photovoltaic
project was to be used directly by the Group.

Also, the Group actively promoted the development and
construction of a wind power project in Ningbo region
and participated in green electricity deals promoted by
the government every year from 2020.
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5.1.1 EIELX G HE

—E_—F oAEBERE
XGBENBEEASZED
4,557,618 T B4/ NS o

BIEFZZEZ—FREAE
THARBRERBSSED
9.95MW > #9108 F 75 3K » B
—%—%EFWH%QE
2.2MWIE I T330% c =&
T ERIETEFNARK
EEEEILNM T63%-°

BRI &R K5 5E 3 B AR

PV panels in the Ningbo factory area

FBs > S ET B TERIBHEN
BIBMEMENERE
TEZHRTED A
R"EBZHNERABRER
BB ee R B LEA
B> — EACERBER

5.1.1Rooftop solar power

In 2021, the rooftop solar energy generated by the
Group for internal use reached 4,557,618 kWh.

As at the end of 2021, the total installed capacity
of photovoltaics in use reached 9.95MW and
100,000 m?, which represented an increase in
installed capacity of 330% as compared with the
2.2MW at the end of 2020. The electricity output
by photovoltaics in 2021 increased by 63% as
compared with 2020.

g B & B9 K 5 AE 25 AR

PV panels in the Vietham factory area

At the same time, the Group has planned to
conduct more feasibility analyses on the new
factory in Cambodia and the production sites in
other regions. It is expected that there will be more
rooftop solar equipment, resulting in an increase
in the proportion of electricity generated from
renewable energy and a decrease in carbon dioxide
emissions.
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ETEXEGREN R

EICES
TS

Cambodia
Feasibility study

Rooftop solar development

=
BE9,450T R4
Ningbo

Capacity 9,450kW

]

BAES00F R4
Vietham
Capacity 500kW

5.1.2EEEEH

AEMPR _S_ZTEHE
H—RBEEREQABET
a1 ZEE—H#HEL&RZ
TN FEHBEES FFH
2B & %)120,000,000F
RFNE BHEN =S
ik 2 2 BEHUR L 75,0000 &
FoZH=ZHEEAIZ
EThEFRBERSR R
BEAR—HEE BB A
REE AEBE=ZFZAE
BEMAENAEERIRIES
BRIGHZ o

5.1.2Wind power project

In 2020, the Group conducted cooperation with a
local wind energy development company. The first
phase of the project was connected to the grid for
power generation in 2014, with an average annual
output of 120,000,000 kWh and a reduction in the
corresponding carbon dioxide equivalent emissions
of 75,000 tons per year. The second and third
phases of the project are planned to be developed
and constructed around 2025, the scale of which
will be larger than that of the first phase. Through
this cooperation, the Group was entitled to the
environmental contribution index in terms of green
energy.
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51.3#BEIX G

AEEBEHR2ERANNES

R ZEBEZ—F@MIE
AR B BEEBERS
M5 H 5T 15,000,000F
A /N4 S > B D BRBE
#99,240MF o

5.1.4 SRR A FISMNEZE TZ

HEETEERS

it B B TR R B 168 AR IR
KREBE > MR AERAEE
28 o BEIR B D BN M EAR
FaERERAE LS W
KB DINEES -

5.1.3 Pilot green electricity deal

The Group proactively participated in domestic
deals green electricity, having purchased
15,000,000 kWh of green electricity in total in green
electricity deal markets, such as photovoltaics and
wind power, in Zhejiang Province in 2021, which in
turn decreased carbon emission by 9,240 tons.

5.1.4 From steam of coal-fired boilers steam and

outsourced steam to electrical steam generators
gradually

The garment factory in Vietnam has abolished the
use of coal-fired boilers and used electrical steam
generators instead. Some of the garment factories
in Ningbo have commenced to use electrical steam
generators to substitute a portion of outsourced
steam.
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5.3

5.4

BEEEITE
BRBBIEERTERENE
E’JEE@}@H’EH%T%%}EEWB%#E
R IEMF KB IEFE - BB MU IR
DT EREBRNERER  — R
SHENTERE EMTIN# 78 0] IR R
Emeo

Bak#%
G2 Ozone Wash’ Bl E& %Kk
REEE2RALH > BBG2ERN

RENRELETEK BFRYE
RBEMMRERRE BEE—
MREBBECBERTEMR ™
GeEEHERTEERLRE LT A
KoRIMET EHRERBREN
BR7]o

EERHRYT

FEE-HESEaEE 88
ARG BERER 8588
W EEEBDECATETFLE
FEFENFEYARAIE  FE

THEEIFHRE  BLELT
FEGERRE BReEERXY

10% o

5.2

5.3

5.4

Digital Print

Through digital print, more accurate and vivid colors
can be achieved and consumption of film and water
in traditional printing is eliminated. The consumption
of power and resources can be effectively reduced.
Therefore, a T-shirt with beautifully-designed printing can
also be an environmental-friendly product.

Ozone Wash

G2 Ozone Wash means ozone washing. Ozone is a
strong oxidant which discolour the clothes naturally
and forms vintage style by washing the clothes with
ozone composing of G2. Generally this effect needs
to be completed by chemical agents, however, G2
production replaces the use of chemicals and reduces
water consumption, which minimizes the pressure on
environment caused by this type of products.

Intelligent hanging system

The Group has always upheld lean manufacture. The
“intelligent hanging system” is controlled by computers
and is a transmission and logistic tool for allocating
production tasks to operators at each workstation. The
system lowers the heavy workload of operating staff
and reduces the transmission time of each working
process, which increases the production efficiency by
approximately 10%.
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5.6 Upgrade and Transform of Equipment

From 2016 to 2020, the Group had introduced and
upgraded 600 low-bath ratio dyeing tanks in the fabric
workshops in Ningbo and Vietnam, and the water
consumption decreased by 35% in five years, with a total
investment of approximately USD168 million.

In 2021, 16 production lines with integration of pressing
and softening have been established to the fabric
factory in Ningbo. With the introduction of automatic
manufacturing, the efficiency was improved, the liquid
content remained in fabric dropped, the efficiency of
subsequent drying, setting process was enhanced, and
the energy consumption has been reduced.

In 2021, for its boiler exhaust gas project, the
denitrification devices were fully covered and adopted the
SCR flue gas denitrification process to significantly reduce
the nitrogen oxide emissions and maintain nitrogen oxide
emissions below 20mg/m3.

For its setting machine exhaust gas project, the Group
fully adopted setting machine exhaust gas treatment
equipment that adopt U.S. technology in the fabric
factory in Ningbo. Such equipment use fiber bed filtration
technology and enable discharge of tail gas at a high
altitude, with a collection efficiency rate of 95%, a
particulate treatment efficiency rate of 90% and an oil
fume treatment efficiency rate of 80%. Visible smoke is
therefore eliminated.
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5.6 Cooperate with Chinese Academy of Sciences in the

research and development

The Group is committed to creating economic benefits
while it should undertakes its social responsibility in
the governance of environmental protection. Thus,
it cooperated with the Ningbo Urban Environment
Observation and Research Station of Chinese Academy
of Sciences in technology development for the treatment
of exhaust gas and recycling of heat from dyeing and
finishing processes in the textile industry. The research
and development initiative focused on the treatment
technology and process for exhaust gas treatment and
recycling of residual heat, which is expected to solve
difficulties in treating exhaust gas from the production
process in the dyeing industry. This will realizes enterprise
to govern environmental issues while achieving the aims
of saving energy and reducing emission.

The Group appointed an academician of Chinese
Academy of Engineering, as the consultant of the Group
in environmental protection. He provided consultation
services on environmental assessment policy, professional
environmental protection technology and compliance
with environmental laws to the Group. He also made
reasonable plans and arrangements for emission of
pollution under operation and carries out professional
evaluation, optimisation and planning for previous
projects.
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5.7 #EER:E 5.7 Green Certification

MR K THIERTEES B The process of the garment factory in Vietnam, from
EREER BEAE2IETS design and construction to completion, fulfils the
LEEDAARFR &0 standard of LEED GREEN GOAL.

MU TEAEENBERERKIRK Set out below is the LEED Certificate issued to the
RILEEDE £ . Group's garment factory in Vietnam:
RIFRMBENBBERKEK HE In respect of our Marvel Garment manufacturing factory
EFRTREREREEBLERES newly-built in Cambodia, energy conservation and
BERBEE - BRIIEBNRE IR emission reduction are our prior considerations for the
EREZIRTHNGESIE- design of the production site and selection of machinery.

The relevant facility project also awarded the green
certification by HSBC.
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BERmI+— RSB BE TEf S|
Advanced Unit in Pollution and Emission Reduction in the

‘11th Five-year Plan’ in Ningbo

BRI+ —H B FE TR EE (L
Advanced Unit in Energy Conservation and Consumption
Reduction in the ‘11th Five-year’ Plan in Ningbo

5.8 The Honour of Energy Conservation and emission

reduction

To boost the production capacity of the Group and
minimize the environmental impact of the production
process effectively, the Group has been committed
to environmental protection, energy conservation and
emission reduction in production. During the period
between 2009 and the year, the Group was awarded
“Advanced Enterprise in Energy Saving and Emission
Reduction in 2009”, “2011 Advanced Unit in Pollution
and Emission Reduction in Ningbo”, “2012 Circular
Economy Demonstration Industrial Enterprise in Ningbo”,
“2013 Advanced Enterprise in Water Saving in Ningbo”,
“Advanced Unit in Energy Conservation and Consumption
Reduction in the ‘11th Five-year Plan’ in Ningbo”,
“Advanced Unit in Pollution and Emission Reduction in
the ‘“11th Five-year Plan’ in Ningbo”, “Circular Economy
Demonstration Industrial Enterprise in Ningbo”, “2014
Water-saving Enterprise (Unit) in Zhejiang Province”,
“2017 Zhejiang Province Green Enterprise” and “2018
Water-saving Enterprise in Ningbo” , “2020 Top 20 High
and New Tech Enterprises in Research, Development and
Investment” and “2021 Textile and Apparel Enterprise
with Brand Competitive Advantages in China” in the
area of energy conservation and emission reduction. The
awards of the Group in energy conservation and emission
reduction are as below:

2011 B RIS F B HF TR 5T
2011 Advanced Unit in Pollution and
Emission Reduction in Ningbo

2012F B TEBRKHE RSB E
2012 Circular Economy Demonstration
Industrial Enterprise in Ningbo
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R B # I T 2B AR R HE2012 2013F HIR T EIKTIERZE
2012 Energy Conservation and 2013 Advanced Enterprise in
Emission Reduction in Knitting Industry in China Water Saving in Ningbo

20195 E B IRTTHGHA R KH

2014 AT A kB b2 (BB D) ARELEMEERSHEBSE
2014 Water-saving Enterprise (Unit) in Zhejiang Province Marvel Garment was awarded Sustainable Financing

Programme — Certificate of Participation by HSBC in 2019

20207 i i 1 FE b 25 8 A 2058 2021 P E A AR m MR B BB
2020 Top 20 High and New Tech Enterprises in Research, 2021 Textile and Apparel Enterprise with
Development and Investment Brand Competitive Advantages in China
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EBEELEHR
1.1 ESBBINT

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

1.

BE_E-_—F+”"HB=+—
H AEEEE A8AA95,820
AN FiBEREHAZBES BX
ZHABPEFRE - TRHTIZ
FEWDMH B KFE TEME K
MRILE BB D 2 BREREIS

Employees’ Basic Information

1.1 The analysis of employees’ structure
By 31 December 2021, there were about 95,820
employees working in the Group. All of them are full-time
employees, and the majority are young and middle-aged
employees. The tables below show the employee details
by age distribution, education level, job locations and

gender ratio.

EHEE4AH
A¥ BALE
Percentages
of total
HERGES S By Age Band Numbers employees
207 R AR 20 and below 7,955 8.30%
21E405% 21 to 40 71,412 74.53%
41E505% 41 to 50 14,143 14.76%
S1m R £ 51 and above 2,310 2.41%
4EET Total 95,820 100.00%
BEFH 7

Employees Age Distribution
HEE4H
A Bt
Percentages
of total
14 B Gender Numbers employees
5 Male 27,132 28.32%
oy Female 68,688 71.68%
Wz Total 95,820 100.00%

PR EE =R

Gender Ratio
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HESHEH
A BoLE
Percentages
of total
¥BERE 52 By Country Numbers employees
R A B Mainland China 47,222 49.28%
[2AE] Vietnam 28,124 29.35%
RIpHFE Cambodia 20,474 21.87%
wast Total 95,820 100.00%
EERME DM
Employees by Job Locations
hE B4 E
A¥ Bt
Percentages
of total
BHEEE 2 By Education Numbers employees
M3EaE Postgraduate 40 0.04%
¥ YN Undergraduate and college 5,293 5.52%
hEEH Technical secondary school and high school 20,016 20.89%
MR Middle school and below 70,471 73.55%
“ast Total 95,820 100.00%
BEEHBKF
Employees Education Level
HESHEE
ANE Bt
Percentages
of total
RESREESY By Type of Position Numbers employees
RHEAT Short-term position 6,427 6.71%
= Contract position 78,998 82.44%
EHT Permanent position 10,395 10.85%
4Bt Total 95,820 100.00%
BEIT{EELE
Types of Employees’ Position
Er: T -2 -RBEITHE Note: All the employees have legal contract according to nation law
BETHHERNET o 52 regardless of position types. Short-term position is referring to
ITRENEHRINR—FENE those term is less than one year. Contract position is referring
T 8N IRENHAE—FR to those term is more than one year and is subject to renewal
MEMNET 54 EIHAR AT 1R according to the wish of the employers and employees upon
BEEErREBRELR-E the maturity of the contract. Permanent position means the
HATERRBETAEANHBEN employees who have no fixed term contract. 100% of the
BT -&£EBEMEBITI100%%A employees of the Group are full-time employees. There is no

BT mBEH T part-time employee.
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1.2 ESTEEZH 1.2 The analysis of employee turnover rate

HE_Z_—F+AK HA
95,820 BRE - sTHE T~ A&
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HOL2EBE R (ZEZZF !
3.04%) c _EBE_—F > T E—
FUTEINESEARKEARY
1.94% B/ T _E_—%> 5
MRRARBL1.07% ML
BT R E #5492.55% ©

TREFZFR DR IIEHE
LB 2 (B BT o

By the end of December 2021, there were 95,820
employees in total. According to the statistics, the
Group’s monthly average employee turnover rate in 2021
was approximately 3.56%, representing an increase of
0.52 percentage points when compared with 2020 (2020:
3.04%). The turnover rate of employees who have been
employed for below one year was approximately 1.94%
in 2021. Meanwhile, the turnover rate of male employees
was approximately 1.07% while that of female employees
was approximately 2.55% in 2021.

The tables below show the average turnover rate of
employees by age distribution and job locations.

BE 39
Average
turnover
rate of
HEREEE 2 By Age Band employees
205 R AR 20 and below 0.46%
215% 240 21-40 2.84%
4155 E505% 41-50 0.27%
51 &I E 51 and above 0.04%
MEREEFE DB
Age Distribution of Employee Turnover Headcounts
BESA
Average
turnover
rate of
employees
BERE S By Country per month
el N Mainland China 3.63%
[ed=) Vietnam 2.60%
RS Cambodia 4.93%
MREEHIE 5

Employee Turnover Headcounts by Job Locations
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The benefits of the employees
The Group has successfully maintained a relatively low staff
turnover rate, thanks to the following employees’ benefits:

2.1 Coaches were chartered during Chinese New Year

holiday

During the past years, the Group arranged special
round-trip shuttle buses for employees in 14 provinces,
including Anhui, Sichuan, Chongging, Gansu, Shanxi and
Shandong. About 300 of our buses safely took about
10,000 employees home, and guaranteed food and other
supplies on the way during the Spring Festival, for which
the Group invested more than RMB20 million per year.
In 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
made various beneficial policies, including distributing
red pockets in cash and festival gift hampers, as well as
arranging vehicles for the transportation of employees
to tourists spots, in response to the advices and
requirements of the government to celebrate the Spring
Festival in local areas.
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2.3
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2.3

The Central Kitchen

The Group constructed the largest central kitchen in
Huadong region, which undertook eighteen canteens
in Ningbo factory area and supplied delicious food like
chinese meal, western meal and dim sum to nearly
40,000 employees for the purpose of providing safer,
cleaner and more delicious food to employees to raise up
their satisfaction rate and reduce turnover rate. Free lunch
is provided to staff in Vietham and Cambodia.

The education of employees’ children

The Company places great importance to educational
causes and places great emphasises on team building
of staff and education for their children. In May 2011, the
inauguration ceremony of the Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting
Co., Ltd. Education Development Fund was held at the
administration centre in Beilun region. In respect of schooling
for the children of its staff, the Company liaises with the staff
union each year to resolve practical difficulties in schooling
for children of management staff as far as possible.

In 2021, due to the expansion needs of Xin Lei Kindergarten,
the Company proactively got involved and coordinated in
satisfying the schooling needs of our employees’ children
by investing in more than RMB1.30 million to reconstruct
and refurbish GFA of 3,000 m? for the kindergarten, for the
enrollment of new children.
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2.4 The channel of employees’ communication

We have established various channels to communicate
with the Group’s staff in China, Vietham and Cambodia,
and have dedicated staff to handle their relevant
suggestion, complaints and other information directly.

Shenzhou e-Home

On 28 May 2019, “Shenzhou e-Home”, a multi-channel
staff service platform developed by Shenzhou Group on
its own was officially launched. With functions including
anonymous complaints and enquiries, information
release, online learning and questionnaires, Shenzhou
e-Home aims to provide all Shenzhou employees with
the best living and working environments, address their
concerns and listen to them, and facilitate the sustainable
development of the Group.

Mental Health Information Centre

As a labor intensive corporation, Shenzhou Group places
exceptional emphasis on and pays special attention to the
physical and mental wellbeing of its staff. The Company
established a mental health information centre, “Joyful
Community”, in October 2011. With specialists serving as
counsellors, “Joyful Community” is equipped with music
facilities for relaxation and punching facilities for venting
emotions. Through handling cases received, organising
group activities and holding seminars, the centre resolves
psychological distress and relieves emotional pressure of
staff, giving them a peace of mind.
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2.5

2.6

Salary and benefits

The Group paid competitive salary to the employees,
employees received an average salary raise of
approximately 10% to 13% each year for the past ten
years. The Group sets up Shenzhou medical room at
Ningbo factory area to conduct annual and regular body
checks for staff, two free body checks are provided to the
staff in Vietham factory area each year.

The working environment

Air conditioning facilities are being installed in workshops
in China, Vietham and Cambodia. Baby breastfeeding
facilities are provided to the female employees in each
factory area. We respect the local culture and living habit
of our staff of each region, for example, we have provided
over 3,000 chairs in Vietnam factory for our Vietnam staff
to take a nap after lunch and the dormitory in the Vietnam
production sites has installed sports equipment for the
staff to use for free.

The Group continued to increase its care for employees.
Through optimisation of canteen services and increase in
meal allowances, the Group further improved the dining
conditions of employees.

The below pictures show the staff canteen:
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Adhering to the human-oriented management approach, the
Group specially improved the accommodation environment
of employees in order to allow them to have a warmer
home-like living experience.

The 4 staff-dormitories for more than 4,000 employees
in Ningbo China have already been put into use since
2021. Meanwhile there are two new dormitories under
construction, which are expected to be available in 2022.
The dormitories are mainly for the improvement of living
environment of the couples who are the staff of the
Company, as well as that of university graduates, which
include 140 newly-added rooms for couples equipped
with kitchens and bathrooms, and 460 apartments
for university students equipped with facilities such
as independent bathrooms, refridgerators, washing
machines and lockers, etc. internally. The staff dormitories
also provide apartment-styled residential services, with
supporting facilities such as shopping malls, schools,
kindergartens, and are located only a few hundred meters
away from the nearest metro station.

At the same time, the Group has constructed 3
dormitories in Vietnam, with 316 rooms and 440 beds
available and gross floor area of 18,785 mZ.
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The Group has constructed and put into use 2 buildings
for experts, with the provision of 600 rooms and 600
beds as well as GFA of 43,583m?2, in Cambodia. At the
same time, the newly built dormitories in Cambodia
have already been available for usage, providing
accommodation for nearly 10,000 staff.

The rooms and relevant facilities of the new staff
dormitories are as follows:

2.7 Cultural activities

The Group organized some staff recreational activities
during the year to increase the sense of belonging
among the staff towards the Company, such as the most
beautiful staff election, the Chinese New Year Gala, Year-
end luncheon activity, the most beautiful staff, ball games
and sports gala, etc.

The below pictures show some of the staff recreational
activities:
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BEETELH Excellent Staff Election:

EFHEH - Organize the Chinese New Year Gala:
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: Delight Sport Gala:

ERES Festival Activities:
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ETHR=: Employee Birthday Party:

108
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Social Gathering Party:

Other Activities:
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The working condition

During the reporting period, the Group has complied with
all relevant employment laws and regulations relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare that have a
significant impact on the Group.

3.1

3.2

3.3

The working time

The Group complies with national labor laws and
regulations and arranges the dayoff and working
timetables stringently in accordance with national
requirements.

Due to the needs of continual production and operation,
approved by the labor department, the Group implements
standard working hour system, comprehensive working
hour system and flexible working hour system according
to the job nature of employee.

In addition, the working hour is stipulated by respective
department according to the season, requirement of
production and operation and characteristic of the job.

The working hour of the employees of the Group generally
starts at 8 a.m. and finishes at 5 p.m. and the normal
working hour is generally less than 8 hours. If overtime
work is needed, the daily overtime will be less than 3
hours and the monthly overtime will be less than 36
hours.

Time for rest

Time for rest of the Group’s employees is generally from
11:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. There is also time for lunch and
midday rest for employees. The employees have at least
one day off per week.

The employees of the Group are also entitled to the
national statutory holidays, annual leave, marriage leave,
compassionate leave, casual leave and sick leave etc..

Procedures for application of leave

The employees of the Group must go through the
formalities when they apply for leave and sign the
application form. In the meantime, employees should
state the nature of leave, holiday, time, reason and
handover matters and provide relevant valid certification.
After the approval of leaders, it will be reported to the
human resources office of the department for registration
and filing.
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3.4 Labor Standards

In 2003, in order to completely eradicate child
labor, underage workers and forced labor, the Group
formulated some requirements like the “Strict Prohibition
of Engaging Child Labor Administrative Provisions”,
“Underage Worker Administrative Provisions” and “Strict
Prohibition of Forced Labor Administrative Provisions”,
such requirements were published as guidelines and
distributed to human resources department at different
locations for uniform implementation. Such policies have
been consistently applied to our factories in Vietnam and
Cambodia.

3.4.1 Strict forbiddance of forced labor and child labor
Since the incorporation of the Group, there has not
been a single case of forced labor or child labor. For
the purpose of compliance with the relevant laws of
China, Vietnam and Cambodia, Shenzhou has laid
out comprehensive provisions and accountability
procedures in respect of the recruitment, labor use
and dismissal. The above administrative provisions
are implemented strictly in all departments. The
following measures reveal how the Group eradicates
child labor effectively during the recruitment
process:

New employee must provide his/her identity
document when commencing employment, so as to
verify his/her actual age.

In the recruitment interview, interviewers will
compare very carefully the photograph in the identity
document and the genuine face. If there is much
difference, or the job applicant looks significantly
younger, then the actual age shall be verified by
identification system or otherwise.
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3.4.2 #FIF 8 3.4.2 Zero discrimination
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The Group have established anti-discrimination
policy and comply with relevant legal requirements.
There has been no discrimination in Shenzhou
against race, region, gender, nationality, age,
pregnancy or disability in respect of employee
recruitment, training, salary and promotion.

3.4.3 The protection of female employees

Female employees assume a wide variety of posts
on different levels in the Group. In strict compliance
with relevant local laws and regulations, such as
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Women'’s Rights and Interests”, “Labor
Protection of Female Employees” and “Healthcare
Work of Female Employees”, the Group protects
the rights of female employees from the sources.
The Group is concerned about the problems
encountered by female employees in their work
and life and constantly improves the working
environment and condition for female employees.

The Group cared about the health of female
employees, worked hard towards disease
prevention and improved the physical fitness of
female employees. During the year, physicians
from district-level TCM hospitals visited the Group
and conducted a free consultation activity, which
demonstrated our care about the physical health
of female employees. The physicians from district-
level TCM hospitals provided free consultation
and free physical examinations for everyone,
answered in detail the questions raised by our
employees regarding prevention and treatment
of various diseases, and reminded them to have
good hygiene practices, maintain a healthy lifestyle
and develop the habit of undertaking regular
physical examinations in order to enable early
detection, early treatment and effective prevention
of various diseases. Such free consultation activity
increased the health awareness of the Group’s
female employees and achieved a certain effect
in promoting the health of the employees. Such
heart-warming activity received extensive positive
feedbacks.
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During the reporting period, the Company has
complied with all relevant employment and labor
laws and regulations relating to preventing child and
forced labor that have a significant impact on the
Company.
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3.5 BMERFFEZE 3.5 The occupational health and safety
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The Group distributes labor protection appliances and
tools to employees every year, such as masks, gloves and
uniforms.

The Group cares about the physical health of employees.
It sets up employee health records for every employee
and also organizes routine examination of occupational
diseases.

In order to further improve safety education of the Group,
it has enhanced employees’ awareness of fire safety, as
well as their awareness of preventing accidents and self-
rescue, which strengthened their ability to escape and
save themselves. In 2021, the Group organized a fire drill.
Prior to the drill, a preparatory meeting for the fire escape
drill was held with factory directors, workshop directors,
and functional department managers in attendance,
during which, security officers clarified the work division
and responsibilities of each participant based on the drill
plan. The fire escape drill was not only an effective test of
the emergency plan of the Group, it also further enriched
the survival skills of employees, improved response
capabilities of various departments for dealing with
emergencies and organizing employees to quickly and
safely evacuate. Such drills comprehensively improved
the fire awareness, self and mutual rescue capabilities of
all employees.
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o ZFEZ—FHFEHET B In addition to the basis of outstanding work on
TR*Z2EREILENER occupational safety and health, the management and
T EBREEBKREFZME Board members of the Group also participated in
120 7TIOSH (international the occupational safety and health transformational
occupation safety health)48 & leadership program organised by IOSH (international
NBEL2REEEHELIE occupation safety health) in 2021, to further increase the
H(transformational leadership awareness of occupational safety and health of the whole
program) > #E— TR A T BEE Group.

ENHEZ2RBREH -
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In order to improve the capabilities of employees to
save themselves and others, as well as to get the hang
of basic first aid knowledge, the Group and Beilun
Red Cross Society conducted first aid training during
the year. Learning first aid is important and meaningful
especially when accidents may happen at any time in
this day and age. At the same time, the Red Cross
Society of China and the Ministry of Education jointly
issued a notice to incorporate health knowledge, first
aid knowledge, especially cardiopulmonary resuscitation,
into the education content, which shows the importance
of learning first aid knowledge. In 2021, the Group
continued to liaise with Beilun Red Cross Society to
provide health first-aider training for other departments of
the Group and a total of 360 employees participated in
the training.
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A total of 103 injuries of the Group were recorded in
2021, which accounted for 0.107% of the total number of
employees and involved no significant injuries and deaths
for 3 consecutive years. Lost work days due to injuries
were approximately 15 days on average. The Group will
strengthen on-the-job trainings to raise awareness of
occupational safety. The Group supplies free first-aid kits
and medicines to employees, which plays an important
role in emergencies.

In 2021, the Group held a production safety meeting,
which was participated by chairman of the Board, various
department heads and persons in charge of safety.
The chairman pointed out that the Group has achieved
progressive improvement in production safety in recent
years and emphasised that “responsibility is the soul of
safety” and “standardisation is the foundation of safety”.
The practical experience in the three-level Culture of
Safety Maturity Assessment (COSMA) was subsequently
shared at the meeting. Improvement has been made
in three aspects, namely leadership, process and
personnel. We incorporated safety KPIs into the annual
direction, included safety work in the leader standard
work, arranged all staff to take part in safety awareness
trainings and reports of safety suggestions and enhanced
staff trainings on safe operations in order to mitigate
safety risks. In addition, chairman of the Board, signed
a “Safety Responsibility Letter” with each department
head and each department would also sign the “Safety
Responsibility Letter” level by level until team leaders.

Consulting activity of safety production:

During the reporting period, the Company has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations that relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards have a significant
impact on the Company.
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3.6 BEBELE 3.6 The management of dismissal
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If an employee of the Group is dismissed, the Group will
take relevant action or make compensations based on
the applicable local labor contract law and other labor
regulations.

Where an employee is under any of the following
circumstances, the Group may dissolve the labor contract
according to Article 39 of the Labor Contract Law: it is
proved that the employee does not meet the recruitment
conditions during the probation period; the employee
is in serious breach of the rules and procedures set
up by the employer; the employee causes any severe
damage to the employer due to gross negligence of
duties or malpractices for selfish ends; the employee
simultaneously enters an employment relationship with
other employers and thus seriously affects his completion
of the tasks of the employer, or the employee refuses
to make the ratification after the employer points out
the problem; the labor contract is invalidated due to the
circumstance as mentioned in item (1), paragraph 1,
Article 26 of the Labor Contract Law; or the employee is
under investigation for criminal liabilities according to law.
In addition, the Group will not pay relevant compensation
to the employee under such cases.
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Furthermore, if the followings have occurred during the
working period of an employee, the Group will make relevant
compensation to the employee. For example: the employee
is sick or is injured for a non-work-related reason and
cannot resume his original position after the expiration of the
prescribed period for medical treatment, nor can he assume
any other position arranged by the employer; the employee
is incompetent to his position or is still so after training or
changing his position; or the objective condition, on which
the labor contract is based, has changed considerably,
rendering the labor contract unenforceable and no agreement
on changing the contents of the labor contract is reached
after negotiations between the employer and the employee;
or if the company is under restructuring according to the
Enterprise Bankruptcy Law; or if the company encounters
serious difficulties in production and business operation;
or if the enterprise changes products, makes important
technological renovation, or adjusts business model, and it is
still necessary to lay off of employees after changing the labor
contract; or the objective economic condition, on which the
labor contract is based, has changed considerably, rendering
the labor contract unenforceable. After the dismissal of
employment relationship under the circumstances stipulated
in Article 40 and Article 41 in the Labor Contract Law, the
Group will pay relevant compensation in accordance with
Article 46 of the Labor Contract Law.

The dismissal procedures of the Group are as follow: the
group leaders and department head shall report specific
circumstance and the human resources department in
the headquarter shall determine its nature according to
the above circumstances and take the relevant actions or
make compensations.
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group have fair and adequate access to learning and
trainings as well as promotion opportunities.

4.1 Employees’ Training

The Group attaches great importance to internal and
external studies and trainings to improve employees’
education level and capabilities, and properly nurtures
talents required for the Group’s development. The Group
has established Shenzhou School of Management,
which has become the cradle that nurtures the Group’s
management talents. As at the end of 2021, trainings
were provided to 9,251 attendees.

The number of male employees who attend Shenzhou
School of Management is 3,700, representing
approximately 40% of the total male employees while that
of female employees is 5,551, representing approximately
60% of the total female employees. In 2021, the
cumulative training time of male employees was 23,089
hours while that of female employees was 44,199 hours.
During the year, considering the risks of the pandemic,
the Group started the online e-learning training courses.
The total time of online courses was 20,541 hours.
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In 2021, Shenzhou School of Management established
educational platform, research platform and public welfare
learning platform for the staff of the Group, to provide
courses of different directions to front-line staff, cadres
at basic level and directors and leaders, and enhanced
working, communication and leadership skills effectively.

The table below shows the number of trainees and
training time of employees attending Shenzhou School of
Management and other relevant training courses by job
position:

BIIAR Bt 1E 2 B Bt
Number of Training

BE TR By Job Position trainees Percentage time Percentage
SHREEE Senior Management 54 0.05% 335 0.03%
hREERE Middle Management 1,667 1.62% 24,307 1.83%
EEEEE Junior Management 7,220 7.01% 87,765 6.60%
HMET Other Employees 94,004 91.32% 1,217,358 91.54%
Mt Total 102,945 100.00% 1,329,765 100.00%
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Shenzhou School of Management was established on 21
September 2012. The training target included key staff
of the Company, reserve cadres at all levels, technical
talents and junior management officers. The teaching
staff were from external cooperating training institutions,
internal teachers and senior management of the Group.
The school formulates the curriculum according to the
training requirements of the Company and devotes to
build an enterprise university rooted in the Shenzhou
spirit. The school promises to provide an opportunity of
lifelong education for every staff of Shenzhou, to provide
cultural power and talent power for the sustainable
development of Shenzhou and to assist Shenzhou to
become a world class knitwear leading enterprise.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



B4

‘HERELARS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

AE—TSRANEBTIHEEA
EMEEKE BRAEEEE #
NEEBEL2EHEERFTZ K
S CEFHBEABTE IR &
EWETIEEABEIN - ZF
T —FAEEMBIIEEELE
TESE=ZHT7T FERETEES
EEEE - ME—RBC - BELE
E‘%\%‘J#ﬁ,_\%ﬁ s B HE e ER
MELEL - EMBERB TRIE
HAR M TERN R R EIR
P9 TH A9 47 B 1% ©

AEDZR:

In order to further improve the management standards
of the Group’s factory management personnel and
boost the Group’s performance, in response to the
call of the Group, Shenzhou School of Management
has commenced to organise “management personnel
trainings” in factories and various business departments
since 2020. In 2021, the phase three of the internal
lecturers training projects, which was mainly about high
level EQ management, integration of electronics and
mechanics, psychology in workplaces, innovative ideas,
training camps for overseas elite cadres, etc., has been
conducted. The leaders of the Group emphasised that it
is the best time to strive for great performance at work
and enhance inner-strength during the pandemic.

Internal sharing class:

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g

121



IRIG - 1 ERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BT I Skill training for employees:
BIRESH: Electrician skills test:
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4.2 HERE

4.2 The development of career
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Since December 2014, the Group has been successfully
shortlisted into the third batch of pilot enterprises for
self-assessment of enterprise engineer qualifications in
Ningbo City. The self-assessment of enterprise engineer
qualifications has realised an effective combination of
talent assessment by enterprises and talent assessment
by the government. Talents who pass the assessments
will be recognised by enterprises and received a
professional technical qualification certificate issued by
the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security.

During the 2021 self-assessment of enterprise,
29 professional technicians obtained the engineer
qualification and 13 professional technicians obtained the
assistant engineer qualification.

74 professional personnels obtained qualifications higher
than assistant engineer by other means.
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BANENEZEESTEESEERM Shenzhou's Performance Committee has set up
TRAOZ  BIUK—HEEIFEET branches in every department of the Group, establishing
BEEEENMCEZRERAILER- a standardized system whereby the development
KMSBE THEAABIITENRN of employees and the enterprise are integrated. We
Htzir BRAE8TIMEMHRE encourage our employees to engage in trainings with
BENEEHENBURAREDN regard to their own specialized duties and other industrial
BB o technologies, and provide such learning opportunities as

well as the possibilities of promotions and reassignment
to our employees.
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5.

INTERACTION IN COMMUNITY

5.1

Community Involvement

The Group considers that supporting the community
is one of the driving forces for corporate development,
as well as an important motivation for building a
“Harmonious Shenzhou”. The Group places great
emphasis on cultivating social responsibility awareness
of its staff and encourages employees to participate in
charitable community activities. Charitable donations are

applied mainly to various charity activities.

The Group has actively participated in local public welfare
and charity activities in its various production sites in
China, Vietnam and Cambodia. In 2021, the Group made
a total of approximately RMB31.71 million of charitable
donations, of which RMB30.29 million was donated for
education, RMB1.42 million was donated for poverty
alleviation and charitable relief.
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From 2019 to 2021, the Group has donated RMB100
million to the construction of Beilun Youth Square. The
purpose to construct Beilun Youth Square is to attract
more young people to study, work, live and start their
business in Beilun, the project is an important move as it
provides a decent, fully furnished place for them to live,
communicate with others, organize events and start up
business in the favorable environment and completed
facilities.

Since 2019, Beilun District Government kicked off
the “Caring Canteen” project, which is a home care
service for the elderly. Being the supplier of the service,
Shenzhou central kitchen was continuously responsible
for providing catering service to the service point of
“Caring Canteen” and provide safe and healthy food at
the cost of meat to the local elderly. This service is the
trial for the reformation of Ningbo’s home care services
for the elderly.
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UTRAEENBEE I RESN The below pictures show the Group’s care for employees
Bk : and relevant visits:
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5.2 Charity Awards

In 2021, the Group was awarded the honourary title of
“Guizhou Poverty Alleviation Advanced Group” by the
Guizhou Municipal Committee and the Guizhou Provincial
People’s Government, and at the same time the “Award
Plague of ‘Promoting Common Prosperity and Building
Blissful Home’” by the Ningbo Charity Federation (Beilun),
as well as the honourary title of “Caring Enterprise of

National Charity Association” by China Charity Federation.

The factory in Vietham was awarded the “Outstanding
Contribution Award for Caring the Staff” by local
government.
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KEEZFERBEBZFRER M The Group has devoted to blood donation over the years.
BLEE-LBESINIGAEE We have obtained various honors including Outstanding
JBR M 51 %E B8 i1 ~ 7 f {8 A 0 (2 2 Unit in Blood Donation in Zhejiang Province and
REBAUEEE Promotion Award for Blood Donation of the city.
EERMEBLEOIEMEE : Blood donation activities for charity:
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241 485,32 5 F(Textile Exchange)
ZEBE BB ZFN(Textile
Exchange)# — BN EE = JF
BRNAM EXSAREEER
BEEHEZAIFEZRB -BMN—
HEEBZSETEXER gk
HMEE BEFAALTHRZRE
Bk st w2 KRR

BEZZ—FR -AEREZEE
TOREBNEIENRBAR E
EEREMNHBEERABDMARSE
C2C (REIEE) MBRERIIRR
EmBE R PER IR M
EHEIMC20E ZBERTE
C2CIRREmMER > WiBBC2C
EmBHE - BREC2CEZER
FHRBEC2CH UL - www.c2c-world.
come

5.3 Participation in non-profit organizations

Shenzhou has become a member of Textile Exchange
since October 2011. Textile Exchange is a non-profit
organization based in the USA, the mission of which is
to promote the sustainable development of the entire
textile value chain. Shenzhou has all along been actively
participating in industry conferences, seminars and other
activities, sharing best practices with relevant parties and
discussing the future development of the textile industry.

Since 2012, guided by PUMA, our Group’s major
subsidiary, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. has
participated in the development of PUMA C2C (Cradle
to Cradle) closed-loop ecological environmentally friendly
products. From its selection of original yarns to dyeing
materials, printing materials and agents, this category
complies with the C2C environmentally-friendly product
requirements and passed the C2C product certification.
For more relevant information about C2C, please refer to
the C2C website: www.c2c-world.com.
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KEBTERTLBYNRET The Group also concerns the protection of wild life. The
EoREBME _TE—=FLNA Group became a silver member of WWF since 2013.
HABRESGMEGE -

TEAHABREEZBEELAN The below picture shows the trophy awarded to our
EEN_Z_—FEMNLSH Group by WWF in 2021.
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HEEEIE
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WMAEGCEERK SHIE—RIEE
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1.1 FEEEME
RNEREBREEEW TEFT
T EEBABREMNURERZEE
HEh A ARMNEENER; &
BAERMUINZ EEEH-

OPERATING GOVERNANCE

1.

RN LS
Shenzhou-Shanghai

RNZE
Shenzhou-Anging

B

Shenzhou-Vietnam

BN SRIE R

Shenzhou-Cambodia

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The working system of the main subsidiary of the Group
manages the implementation of key working processes, and
controls and affects the horizontal connection of working
processes at the same time, thereby creating an organic whole
with working processes.

To ensure the smooth operation of the key processes,
the Group adopts systematic management measures and
formulates a series of management systems to fulfill the
requirements of the processes and provide tactical execution.
At the same time, we utilize various measures such as goal-
oriented management to stipulate key performance indicators
to control and improve the working processes.

1.1 Major Operating Regions

Shenzhou Group currently has operations in the regions
shown in the following picture: the green color represents
the production bases of Shenzhou in Ningbo; the red
color represents the sales offices of Shenzhou; the blue
color represents the production bases located outside
Ningbo.

Shenzhou-Japan

RN EE R
Shenzhou-Ningbo

FRNE B
Shenzhou-Hong Kong

RNEEEEE
Operating Regions of Shenzhou Group
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1.2 REEIE 1.2 Procurement Management

RCE - —F o AEERBBES
HEB BHIZIRFEA > oHft
BEEERFOE DJRFEEE
FEZ URBHEERARR
Em a¥AE FERESERIR
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TIEHERASEHEMARB LU
Sh o REBEF R EREFTIEH#
BRI ZIREE ; RPIEREER
FEEE T8 EWNIRRFRME ; #B1E
SERAERE > B EINE IR R R
MR, BRENERE BB
SIEEMRF BENLESRE
LURLVERBEFEEM IS RYH
g -

1.2.1 FREETTE
REBIEEBMPZEH/ET
BEMEZRE KB M
B EEZOEMRD - Fok 8
B BREIG - WAE
oh > MUK B o BR B Al AN 4
BINREAERM B EER
BB 2B Bl A E
HEEAREEFEAER
CERBERPEFR K
BEEBETALEERGF
ZEEREZ—-°

In 2021, the Group conveyed the concepts of
environmental protection, energy saving and sustainable
management to suppliers through visits to suppliers
and site inspections, and encouraged suppliers to
adopt environmental-friendly products and use energy
efficiently so as to continuously improve environmental
performance. While identifying suppliers for cooperation,
the Group valued, apart from the quality of their products
and services, especially the degree of environmental-
friendliness of the raw materials they provided; We
required our suppliers to continuously increase the degree
of environmental-friendliness of their skills; improve their
energy structure, gradually increase the use of clean
energy; update old facilities when possible. With the
introduction of technologically-advanced facilities of
more environmental-friendly and low consumption, the
consumption of resources and emission of pollutants can
both be reduced.

1.2.1 Procurement process

Dedicated staff of the Group’s designated
departments is responsible for the procurement of
materials. The materials procured mainly include
cotton yarn, dyestuffs, trims, equipment and spare
parts, office supplies, and food. Procurement cost
control is an important measure to enhance profit on
products. The quality of cotton yarn, dyestuffs and
trims procured will directly affect the product quality
and the corporate image of the Group. Procurement
management is one of the most important aspects
affecting product competitiveness.
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BREBERBEBRAEZ Y G & To ensure the efficiency of the procurement process,
EEGEEEH > WM the Group formulates management documents such
BESIARE - TEIRASE as “Procurement Control Procedures”. The below

EREREZR . chart shows the procurement process of the Group:

iR E
Chart of Procurement Process

3R 5T 2] Demand Plan

IREBHEE

Purchase Requisition

$KEE 5T 2 Purchasing Plan

{LFERIRIZ Selection of Suppliers

EELRIBER

Determination of Purchase Price

BRI ERBRRERBEL
Entering into Framework Agreement
or Purchase Contract

s

7N

U2
Management of Supply Process

ERUK Inspection for Acceptance

3 ' & Fail —
£ Pass =& 818 Pass or Fail = 3B E Return of Goods

AE Warehousing ZEEZ Claims etc. K ZEEZ Claims etc.
147X Payment
|
L4

BMEER g5t RAESE
Financial Control, Accounting &
Internal Audit etc.

REBEIERIT L

Post Assessment of Procurement Business
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1.2.2 (A EF EE

1.2.2 Communication with suppliers

BT REFAEBRRZEH
BRIt EE 2B RS E R
EE BRHAKLESANTS
(RMNERTHER) A
2EE  RIEEA®RBSE T
RET > BIFERBREM
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B ST B R RR S IRARAN
ZERE - K{THEREA
TRMBEHEENRE I
METHAFESEMHE
BEINRBERE ARt
BHMAFEHEEER U
REZHEEBRE - M
HERMEEEEMLHE B
mMEBERBREREER
HERMFEICENLEZ
o HMAERMOVEER
BEFN BROIN —ERE A X B BE A
P REBRF - BHLDRE>
BEEMERER REL
ABIRER & T AMHEE
A - MM S RIUEE
B-SENMEEEERER L
UHEREERE—BR
By Z AR o

AT REREAESHIANE
B ERRRIHEENT
BRITD ERBERESE
HEDBRERBELR
F-EEREREREETE
HEBREXHEEERS
BN EHREAMERE
HEEETHE EERA
B 1 = LURE AR B BUR A

BT

While signing cooperative agreements, the Group
requires that the ways of cooperation of the
suppliers have to be complied with the “Code of
Conduct of Shenzhou”, which include the following
contents: prohibition of use of forced labor and child
labor, prohibition of discrimination, harassment and
bullying, anti-corruption, timely payment of salaries
as well as compliance with occupational health,
environment protection and safety standards. The
Code of Conduct clarifies our expectation towards
suppliers and sets the minimum standards we
hope each of our supplier would achieve. At the
same time these are the standards we refer to
for evaluating the performances of and selecting
suppliers. We hope to reach consensus with our
suppliers that satisfying these minimum standards
is essential for corporate long-term development
and continuous improvement. We hope our
suppliers can try their best at reducing wastes,
using resources responsibly, protecting the rights
of staff and improving the benefits of the staff and
the community as Shenzhou does. We believe that
a partnership based on transparency, co-operation
and mutual respect is an essential condition for
achieving such target.

In order to ensure the effective implementation of
the Undertaking Letter, the Group will grade the
suppliers based on their individual implementation
situation, and determine the priority of purchase
with reference to related scores during procurement.
The Group will request every major supplier to
submit social responsibility report, and conduct
assessment with the issuance of questionnaires to
each of those major supplier, and even conduct site
inspections for the assurance of implementation of
related policies.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g

135



136

IRIR « HEKRER

HS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

AEERHERE G
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HRFEHERWHEER W
162 SR » A& B 18R
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T BxEHERMRR NS
BEMEHEEEENA

The Group has signed the Notifications of
Environmental and Occupational Health to Related
Parties with the suppliers, to invite and request them
to comply with the requirements of 1ISO14001 and
ISO45001 standards, as well as national and local
laws, regulations and other requirements related to
environmental protection, occupational health and
safety, and strive for continuous self-improvement.

As for suppliers of special products, eg. suppliers of
chemicals, the related department of the Group will
verify the satisfying situation of their environmental
protection work through third-party platforms such
as ZDHC.

Topics concerned by our suppliers and the channels
we used to communicate with them are shown in
the following chart:

Rt &E

Topic Concerned

HER
Supplier

47 R 5T R
Supplier evaluation policy

BEBEM

Green products

EmE S e
Product quality and innovation

& R 21
Response to climate changes

AIRFERE
Sustainability

BEAR

Communication Channel
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HEBAE

Supplier summit

SERMIER

Cooperative technology projects
e =]

Workshops and forums

2ETRK
Factory visiting
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1.23FZRHMHILEH 1.2.3Major Raw Material Suppliers
TECFEERFENR Summary of number of major yarn suppliers of
HEBHEELR FEXR group in 2021 (by country)
Elloa))
R HEEHE Bt
Serial Number of
Number [l K& %58 Name of Country (District) Suppliers Percentage
1 R China 116 69.46%
2 i Vietnam 1 6.58%
3 FEeE Taiwan, China 11 6.58%
4 FEE B Hong Kong, China 7 4.18%
5 Zx[=H] Thailand 4 2.40%
6 52 Korea 4 2.40%
7 EH USA 3 1.80%
8 Hz Japan 3 1.80%
9 A B R P Macau, China 2 1.20%
10 o3 Singapore 2 1.20%
11 2R Italy 1 0.60%
12 = Germany 1 0.60%
13 S ik Malaysia 1 0.60%
14 CIE RS Sri Lanka 1 0.60%
4Bt Total 167 100.00%
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AEBEEFHIERMBE
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TEE EREEBEME
B Z K B iR B
BEREZEFE - REAH
RBFZIEBRIFARE
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FEEEEN—ELCE2RE
ERE BERANHERE
ERpgsE - Emfla Kk
BEOKBERRE  EREEZ

E2mEREE-

1.2.4 Chemicals Management

The Group has established a list of chemicals and
conducts management and control on dangerous or
restricted chemicals to ensure that the dyes, agents
and detergents used during production are in strict
compliance with the management and control list.
Non-tested and uncertified chemicals are not allowed
to be used in production and a stringent identification
and tracking system has been established.

The Group has developed a set of chemical
management and control process, which covers
dyestuff supplier management, incoming material
inspection, product testing and wastewater discharge
inspection, ensuring the comprehensive management

and control of chemical applications.

HNRE(CEREERE

Shenzhou Group Chemicals Management Procedure

R
MSDSKE. HERE
E=AREE —  2e
Chemic Provide MSDSK' Supply
Supplier and 3¢ party test chemicals

report upon request

l

R ERE mREE A RTEA?
She ks czes @) S ™ Online testing —> by
Check against P Confirm®
Lab environmental
standards ?
-
Eﬁ'ﬁf‘, i{ T
SR s Repaiable?
Shenzhou > Production |
Fabric/trims p
508 R
production Repair ‘_@ Destroy
i KER BRI -
B >  Water —» Montor& —» =%
2l treatment testing Pas:
Water
treatment
facility
&
Shenzhou
Garment
production

*Confirm once per product

Bt Notes:
1 BEFPERETFRE B = ARAEK

=
2. BERR VKSR (TERE) 2. Randomly testing of water and waste water (pre-treatment)

2k3
Packaging

3 i
“l @" Release

RELE

Garment —

production

1. Annual 3rd party environmental audit according to customer requirements
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1.3 RIEERE 1.3 Process management
1.3.1BEEHE 1.3.1 Quality management
REETERREBEREEF The Group conducts a full range of monitoring
KREEEEEERAENR measures in the purchase and manufacture of
2E B RIFEE o products based on a comprehensive quality

management system.

HEEFTEEE8ERER Quality control is a very important segment in the
LEMBEEZH D - HIE quality management process. It mainly embodies
BiEELREEEE RAK the supervision, inspection and testing of product
Ba o REBRILE S TS quality. The Group has established six focuses of
ZINKER quality control.

TERAEEISO 900189:E The ISO 9001 certificate of the Group is shown as
£ below:

ISO 9001 FBZ
ISO 9001 certificate
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1.3.20/ 158 EmEE

REB10ZFURGFERE
TERESNABIRBLEE
fHBYEREEControl Union e 5%
RERRTUREERES
BEITEZENEERR
RIEEBBSRE S A
REXEFEBNAFENE
e WEMERKRRERE o
BTERE—BHRIRE
ERBAREHENZE
Control Unionz5 Z# 5 — 1@
RGEERRR ZER
—EHEANINEH R Z B A
BRSO E R IR T B Z o

MTITRAEENTFREE
HENHTHEBERQRE
Control Unionf&2%Control
Unionzg &:

1.3.2Sustainable product management

For more than 10 years, the Group has continuously
received the Control Union certificate issued by
Control Union for the recognition of its organic
products and recyclable and renewable products.
The certifications understand the interrelationship
between sustainable development and the
production of textile products, so it has a unique
ability to solve the sustainability challenges
faced by enterprises and therefore ensure future
development. In order to achieve this goal and
maintain its reputation as a leading certification
institution, Control Union Certifications has in
place a global quality control system that has been
reviewed by numerous national and international
certification institutions both internally and
externally.

The Control Union certificate received by Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, from Control Union is as follows:
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1.3.3 Product recall procedure
Product recall procedure from the Quality
Assurance’s problems:

If the produced apparel do not meet or are
not acceptable by first quality standards, the
clients shall have the right to reject shipments
of apparel from the Group, which do not
conform to the client’s Purchase Order or
Quality Assurance Manual.

Where discrepancies are found, a complete
inspection of the shipment may be made by
the clients.

The clients shall charge back to the Group and
if the Group agrees, the Group would pay all
costs incurred by the clients in transporting
and handling non-conforming apparel shipped
to the clients or directly to customers.

The apparel, which do not meet or are not
acceptable by first quality standards, must be
destroyed. Factories are to communicate all of
the produced apparel, which do not meet or
are not acceptable by first quality standards,
to their clients’ Factory Merchandise Manager;
It is the Factory Merchandise Managers’
responsibility to deliver all of produced
apparel, which do not meet or are not
acceptable by first quality standards, to the
Regional offices for disposition consideration.
These certifications of destruction was sent to
the local clients’ office.
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1.34 X L RIRIFEETE

EZRIANEERAER-EE
LERETREEBEEEEARS
MHHEER AEENEE
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o RTHE :

HRERIHE
Energy
Saving and
Emission
Reduction

1.3.4 Safety and environmental protection

management process

The Group’s major subsidiaries have adopted the 1ISO
14001 and ISO 45001 management systems and
clean production audit and inspection to strengthen
environmental protection and health safety, after
considering the large number of employees and
production equipment, extensive span of control and
other facts.

The focuses of the Group’s safety and environmental
protection work as shown in the below picture:

ZE2P#E
Security
Protection

RREBR .
Safety and Eakm
. mployee
Environmental Health
Protection

BREE

Clean

Production

T2 RIRRITIEEE

Focuses of Safety and Environmental Protection Work
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TEIEAEEMISO 14001 The Group’s ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 and clean
KISO 4500115 REESE production audit and inspection certificates are
ZE W EE shown below:

ISO 14001 5 & ISO 45001 55 &
ISO 14001 certificate ISO 45001 certificate

BREEBRRWES
Clean production audit and inspection certificate

A2 RIEBFRFE NEER In terms of safety and environmental protection, the
meLa2#%s > A8E T 1F Group strengthens safety education, establishes
B ELRIREREE > I safety operation specifications for related job posts
Mg —FHmE> and enhances equipment maintenance. On the
EZEINEEBRMAREK A& other hand, considering its large workforce, the
NEITEEREZEE2 R Group emphasizes on food safety and occupational
BREEE -FE  AEEHN health administration. Meanwhile, the environment
RIEHB L2 RBERER and occupational safety and health policy of the
TEBEREE BB TR ; 54 Group is “conserve energy and reduce waste,
BEE > BAER,; 224 green plant; eliminate harms, avoid sickness; safe
EoEENE o production, persist to improve”.
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With safety, health and environmental protection
in mind, the Group has established a safety
department, an emergency response team and a
professional Three Wastes Treatment System to
reduce the use of toxic and hazardous substances
for meeting the standards of Three Wastes
treatment. These ensure the occupational health
of employees, maintain clean production, promote
energy conservation and carbon reduction,
and facilitate the response to and handling of
emergencies.

In the meantime, the Bureau of Work Safety of
Zhejiang Province awarded Standardized Safe
Production Certificate to the Group continuously
since 2016 and recognized it as Second-Class
Enterprise in Production Safety Standardization
(textile and garment). Therefore, based on checking
and controlling of potential hazards, the Group
complied with the principles of “safety first,
prevention-oriented and comprehensive governance”
and enhanced safe production to reduce accidents
and ensure personal safety and health as well as
the smooth undertaking of production and operation
activities.

The picture below is the Work Safety Standardization
Certificate:
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During the reporting period, the Group has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company in respect of
health and safety and other matters relating to
product responsibility.

1.4 The Management of Customer Relationship

The Group aims to understand all kinds of customer
requirements, expectations and concerns by listening
to them. Through the following methods, the Group has
transformed and satisfied customer requirements and
expectations and promoted its market expansion and
service improvement. Furthermore, when customers visit
the Group, the sales department will gather department
heads and the person-in-charge who are directly relevant
to attend meetings so as to develop a comprehensive
understanding of customers’ expectations. The relevant
departments will convene special meetings to seek
specific solutions for those aspects that fail to meet
customers’ expectations at the time. The persons
directly in charge of the sales, research and development
and production departments will attend regular sales
and operations meetings every week to discuss the
current problems and customers’ requirements, analyze
the causes and find solutions to meet customers’
requirements.

1.4.1 The Management of Customer Information

To prevent the leak of customers’ information, the
Company enters into confidential agreements with
specific customers and also protects the patents
of specific customers. The Group exercises strict
control over customers’ information. All information
must be filed and stored for two years, and will
be destroyed after expired. In addition the word
“Confidential” will be printed on all documents, and
it is forbidden to take away document outside the
factory.
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In terms of the policy of protecting the personal
information (privacy) of customers, the Group
establishes relevant documents of procedures,
namely the “Management System of Customer
Relationship”, to protect the customer information
from leakage. In addition, in terms of policy
of implementing and monitoring the personal
information (privacy) of customers, every business
department has its relevant procedural documents,
such as “Customer Asset Control Procedure”
and “Process Related to Customers Control
Procedure”, only senior staff is allowed access to
relevant customers’ information, and the person-
in-charge of respective department conducts
regular maintenance and review of the information
of customers to prevent the leak of personal and
private information of customers.

During the reporting period, the Company has
complied with all relevant health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy laws relating to
products and services that have a significant impact
on the Company.

1.4.2 Customers communication

In 2021, the Group did not recall any products sold
or shipped due to safety and health reasons, which
demonstrated customers’ confidence about the
products of the Group. During the year, the Group
did not receive any complaints on products or
services from customers. When the Group receives
any complaints on products or services, the
complainees of the relevant products and services
will convene special meetings to seek solutions
for the relevant complaints at that time, and the
handling method is replacing the defective products
or deducting the fees by customers.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



IRIG - 1 ERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

UTEBxRZEZFRENZEE

Topics concerned by our customers and the

Sustainability

HESMT
Social responsibility

RS
Operating performance

MEEREENAI: channels we used to communicate with them are
shown in the following charts:
RAEEE
Topic Concerned
AFEEE ETREZS

Employees’ health and safety

HEIRRESR
Comfortable eco-products

HEEER

Supply chain development

S
Customer
BEAN
Communication Channel

5 /8 2P 5 BEREEBSE
Regular meetings with senior and Client satisfaction survey

middle-manager

EHER KSR

28 TR Visits to clients’ operation
Factory visits headquarters
BEERBESEPL
Co-establishing cooperative centres with

clients

1.4.3 55 mEE 1.4.3 The Customer Satisfaction

TR —F o AEEER
BERN_Z_—FEID
Mg RR FEABE R RER
mIEHTIREE [ 2021 F I 548
BRI FR XFELRE
EREENTFADTERS
o] 288 7 Hf SR B AR BR DR 3
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In 2021, the Group was awarded the “2021
Sustainable Development Award” at the Adidas
2021 North Asia liaison office year-end meeting.
Meanwhile, the subsidiaries of the Group in
Cambodia have won two awards from Adidas
Cambodia liaison office this year, namely the
“Corporate Social Responsibility Award” and
“Lean Production Award”. The Group received the
“Trustworthy Partner Award” from Uniglo and the
“Best Innovative Breakthrough Award” from Anta
this year.
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TEAZERBEGEAERZ The below pictures show the trophies awarded to
Hho our Group by the customers.
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2. ANTI-CORRUPTION & ANTI-FRAUD
2.1 ANTI-CORRUPTION

In over two decades of Shenzhou Group’s history, the
founder and former chairman of the Group, Mr. Ma
Baoxing, and each senior management member have
always been focusing on “integrity” in establishing the
corporate culture. Integrity is the code of conduct and

moral standard of the Group.

Back in early 2000, Mr. Ma wrote the two Chinese

”»

characters “SH 15 (integrity)” and hung them in the centre
of the lobby, reminding all employees that it is the
principle and requirement of the Group. All employees
must abide by it and the Group also welcomes close

monitoring by related authorities and customers.
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The Group strictly complies with the requirements
of relevant local laws and regulations, such as the
“Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, and “Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery”.

In 2021, the Group had no law suit of corruption and
bribery. Meanwhile, the Group also did not receive
complaints on products or services due to the corruption
during the year. If the Group receives any complaints
on products or services due to the corruption, the
complained department of the relevant products and
services will convene special meetings to seek solutions
for the relevant complaints.

The Group has set up an internal audit department and
engaged Ernst & Young as external auditor to improve its
anti-corruption standard in preventing corruption.

The Group’s employee guidelines clearly states the
obligations of staff in anti-corruption, anti-bribery and
conflict of interest. Accordingly, employees should follow
the requirements.

The Group also plans to organise anti-corruption courses
for the integrity training of new employees, current
employees and senior management annually. At the
same time the promotion of anti-corruption reporting are
improved, and multi channels of reporting methods are
established, privacy protection system for whistle blowers
is enhanced.
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The anti-corruption procedures of the Group according to

the guidelines for the staff are as follows:

(1)

We offer anti-corruption and anti-bribery education
for key staff and major positions;

Suppliers and service providers which have
business relationship with the Company should
sign “Integrity Undertakings” and “Anti-commercial
Bribery Agreement”;

We have special email and phone line to allow
people from inside and outside of the Company to
report corrupt behavior;

Internal auditor and competent department analyze
data from time to time, conduct investigation and
visits, study features and pattern of corruption
behavior and implement and improve the prevention
measures and systems for anti-corruption;

We deal with workplace corruption in a timely
manner and report to competent authorities. People
who are suspected of committing the crime are
transferred to the public security organ;

We introduce relevant anti-corruption mechanism
and policy to the rules and procedures and business
process, such as explicit business process,
approval authority, establish accounts, etc;

We have diversified expedients for supervision and
establish complain and report mechanism to provide
reporting channel for internal staff and external
parties;

We engage in supervision by conducting regular
stocktaking and audit, price research and off-office
audit.
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The Group takes relevant measures in implementation
and monitoring of corruption prevention practices. For
example, when we sign contract with new suppliers for
the first time, suppliers must sign “Integrity Undertakings”
and “Anti-commercial Bribery Agreement” as well. In
addition, internal auditor and competent department
check email and receive reporting calls at any time
and record and investigate reporting matters. The
investigation results will be reported to relevant leaders
and departments and relevant employees undertake that
they will keep the personal information of the informant
confidential. Furthermore, relevant departments including
internal audit and legal affairs departments monitor and
review daily course of business, track and investigate the
abnormal information and circumstances identified.

If the staff of the Group notices corruption behavior, the
staff can report by ways of telephone, email or letter. The
relevant department of the Group will investigate or audit
the related department or staff according to the reporting
information and will punish the illegal behavior. If the case
is of serious nature such as constituting an criminal act,
the Group will transfer the relevant person to the public
security organ for legal sanction.

At the same time, the Group conducts extensive internal
promotion of legal knowledge and organises Directors
and employees to actively study the national anti-
corruption laws and regulations and the Company’s anti-
corruption policy. Interpreting and analysing relevant
documents and cases enhance the legal awareness
of employees and optimise the development of the
Company’s legal system.
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2.2 Anti-fraud Experience Camp

In 2020, the Group held the “Shenzhou Group Anti-
fraud Experience Camp” to regularly organise anti-
fraud promotional activities, with the purpose of
revealing the truth and characteristics of fraud crimes
in telecommunications network through the experience
camp as a promotion vehicle and a window platform,
so as to consolidate the anti-fraud awareness of the
Company and employees, effectively implement anti-
fraud measures and strive to reduce the occurrence of
telecommunication fraud cases. A desirable atmosphere
of anti-fraud promotion was further created to provide
valuable experience for the development of a fraud-free
enterprise.

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with
all relevant bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering laws
that have a significant impact on the Company.
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3. LEAN PRODUCTION AND INNOVATION

In order to expand the globalization layout of the Group, the
Group aggressively explore each category of new technology,
new material and new application of manufacturing technique,
and launch new products development and lean production.

Among other players in the textile industry, our Group process
with relative strong capability in technology innovation, advance
technology development. With our continuous effort in research
and development and the technology so developed, we have
built up our corporate’s core proprietary intellectual properties,
for which we use to operate our production business. Starting
from 2014, Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, was accredited as “High-New Technology
Enterprise”.
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The Group actively encourages patent applications by research
and development staff, introduces reward policies for the
grant of patents for inventions, steadily promotes patent
commercialization and endeavors to create its own brand
products.

At the same time, the Group establishes a comprehensive
relevant intellectual property management system, persist in
autonomy innovation, apply for intellectual property protection
aggressively, prior to complete the layout for intellectual
property development, avoid infringement of others intellectual
property and safeguard its own rights.

In 2021, the Group has applied for 111 patents, of which
79 were new utility patents and 32 were invention patents.
The Group obtained licences for 81 patents, of which 1 was
invention patent and 80 were new utility patents during the
year. By the end of 2021, the Group has applied for 584
patents in total, of which 173 were invention patents and 411
were new utility patents.

Among above patents, the main innovation has been
transferred into 42 series of production, approximately more
than 1,000 products.
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At the same time, the Group has participated in the
amendments of 6 national standards and the formulation and
amendments of 17 industry standards. The Group introduced
policies to encourage technological innovation, including the
Incentive Administration for on Scientific and Technological
Achievements and established a scientific and comprehensive
incentive mechanism on technological innovation.

In 2021, the Group had a number of improvement projects in
innovative technology or sustainable development, for example,
innovative improvements of garment manufacturing automation
equipment such as automatic folding machines, pocket folding
machines, automatic cord fastener sewing machines, etc.,
and the production line of pressing and softening integration in
dyeing and finishing workshops, etc.

3.1 Shenzhou International Textile Research Institute
The Group established Shenzhou International Textile
Research Institute in December 2018, and have the
workshop of academicians, which appointed two
academicians as consultants. One is mainly responsible
for the development and application of new fabrics and
new materials. And the other one is mainly responsible for
research on environment management as well as green
and environment protecting dying technology under the
condition of “reducing” resource occupation.
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3.2 Innovation center

The vision to be achieved by the Group through its
innovation center is to increase the added-value and
profitability of products, while developing the Company
into a sustainable operator through introducing our
ideology of environmental design in designing products
with our customers in the innovation centres, reducing
the use of fabrics and the pressure on the environment
caused by production emission.

° Design for Manufacturing and Assembly (DFMA)
and design production-friendly products as well as
increasing productivity

° Product diversification

° Shortening the cycle of product development and
saving the labor and cost deployed by Shenzhou

and its customers in R&D

° Integrating green elements in the design, reducing
the use of chemicals

° Increasing the product quality

° Ensuring a healthy and safe production environment
for the staff
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3.3 Enterprise Technology Center
The enterprise technology center of the Group has
relative strong capability in technology innovation, and
has remarkable achievement in innovation. We served as
the demonstration and steering role in the industry and
region, and were accredited as the “Provincial Accredited
Enterprise Technology Center”.

The below picture shows the award plaque of “State-
Accredited Enterprise Technology Center” received by the
Group:
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3.4 The Achievement in Innovation

In 2020, the Group received from the China National
Textile and Apparel Council the “6th National
Knitting Innovation Seminar Outstanding Journal
Articles” 2019 China National Textile and Apparel
Council Knitted Underwear Innovation Contribution
Award in 2019 for its research and development
and industrialization of the moisture-absorbing,
breathable and skin-friendly cellulose acetate
imitated silk fabrics used for knitted underwear. The
China National Textile and Apparel Council carried
out the evaluation activity of 2019 China National
Textile and Apparel Council Product Development
Contribution Award/Promotion Award in the whole
industry. To push forward the product development
work in the textile and apparel industry in China,
set an industry example of advanced enterprise in
product development, explore an innovative model
for product research and development, push up the
technology contribution rate and brand contribution
rate of the industry, facilitate adjustment in product
structure and promote industry upgrade and the
development of a great textile country. In 2021, the
Group has issued 4 articles, which are mainly about
design and development of fabrics, dyeing and
finishing skills, improvement of facilities, etc. in a
textile core journal.

The below picture shows the certificate of “Textile
Vision” 2019 China National Textile and Apparel
Council Knitted Underwear Innovation Contribution
Award received by the Group in 2019:
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The “Top 100 Zhejiang Innovative Enterprises cum
Zhejiang Innovative Personnel Award Ceremony”
was co-organised by Zhejiang Venture Capital
Association, Zhejiang Technological and Innovative
Enterprises Association and Sci-Tech & Finance
Times in Hangzhou. This evaluation activity aimed
to further identify a batch of core enterprises with
strong innovation capability, high research and
development level and outstanding growth potential
in an effort to create a favourable environment for
innovation and entrepreneurship. Meanwhile, in
the evaluation, enterprises were required to have
three years of establishment history or above and
proprietary intellectual property rights for the core
technologies of its key products (services), remain
profitable for two consecutive years with a growth
rate of no less than 20% for their sales revenue and
profit and be a High-New Technology Enterprise
supported by the government. Further, after the
four major evaluation sessions, namely enterprise
data collection, data review, measurement and
evaluation, and results application, the panel
eventually came up with a ranking based on the
scientific method of expert argumentation. 100
enterprises were selected as the Top 100 from 265
High-New Technology Enterprises in the province
participating in this evaluation. In 2019, the Group
ranked among the Top 100 innovative enterprises,
signifying the recognition and affirmation of its
continuous innovative capability, overall research
and development strength and market development
potential by the industry.

The below picture shows the certificate of
‘2021 Textile and Apparel Enterprise with Brand
Competitive Advantages in China” received by the
Group in 2021:
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3.5 Brand Building

Since January 2015, the registered trademark of
Shenzhou Knitting (registered number: 7226707), a
subsidiary of the Group, was recognized as a “Famous
Brand of Zhejiang Province” by Zhejiang Provincial
Administration of Industry and Commerce, signifying the
recognition of the Group’s development over the past few
years and reflecting the influence and reputation of the
Shenzhou brand in the industry.

To further enhance the development of foreign trade
brand and expedite the forming of the new advantage in
foreign trade, the Department of Commerce of Zhejiang
Province worked with provincial departments and bureaux
to start the selection for the “Zhejiang Export Famous
Brand” of 2021. It has been told that the award was
selected annually, and the effective period was three
years. The Department of Commerce of Zhejiang Province
announced 346 brands for the “Zhejiang Export Famous
Brand” of 2021.

The certificate of “Zhejiang Export Famous Brand” of
2021 for the Group is shown below:
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In addition, in 2021, the China Council for Brand
Development, based on the relevant national standards
for brand value evaluation and upon expert review,
measurement by a technical agency and review by
the brand evaluation publication working committee,
determined that the Group had a brand strength of 904
and a brand value of RMB27.818 billion.

The below picture shows the 2021 China Brand
Evaluation Notification Letter of the Group:
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4. THE HONOUR AND AWARD

4.1

Substantiality

Starting from September 2015, Shenzhou International
was included in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Index Series, which includes Hong Kong listed companies
with the most outstanding performance in terms of
corporate sustainability. The index is a cross-market
index covering leaders of corporate sustainability in
Hong Kong and Mainland. The constituent stocks are
carefully selected with reference to the rating results of
sustainability by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency,
an independent professional accreditation body, in
accordance to the framework it designed for sustainability
rating. This enables the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series to achieve objectivity, reliability
and of high investment significance, offering a series of
quality benchmark for the index funds under the theme of
corporate sustainability.

Below is the logo of membership of the Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Index Series of Shenzhou
International in 2020:

From 2018 to 2020, the Group was granted with an A
Sustainability accreditation of CSR Index Plus Mark by
the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency. To facilitate
organisations to facilitate implementation of corporate
social responsibilities (CSR), in 2008 HKQAA launched
the “HKQAA CSR Index”, with the initial support of
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited (HSBC). Now run by HKQAA, the Index provides
quantitative metrics to measure organisations’ maturity
level in practicing their social responsibilities.

The index is designed with reference to the ISO 26000
“Guidance on Social Responsibility”. The index will
measure an organisation’s maturity level in practicing its
social responsibilities from four different perspectives,
namely Corporate Governance, Social Well-being,
Economic Performance and Environmental Conservation.
More specifically, the quantitative metrics will contain
seven core elements and a total of 40 recommended
practices.
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Set out below is the symbol of the relevant accreditation
granted to the Group:
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In addition, the Group joined the activity of “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2019” in
2019, and was awarded the “EcoPartner” in the “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2019”, jointly
launched by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries (FHKI)
and Bank of China (Hong Kong) (BOCHK), in recognition of
the Group’s dedication and contribution to environmental
protection over the years. The “BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards” are jointly organized
by FHKI and BOCHK to recognize the environmental
achievements and contributions of manufacturing and
services enterprises, thereby encouraging enterprises to
incorporate environmental protection strategies into their
business development plans and daily operations.

The certificate of “BOCHK Corporate Environmental
Leadership Awards 2019” awarded by the FHKI and
BOCHK to the Group in 2019 is shown below:

EF M [ P2 5 [ # iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



IRIG - 1 ERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE-hE xEE2HRES
RITHAIRRERBEER N
WERESRITREN AR
EREXENSHEE EERTH
AFNREERAEENECREER
BI A B IR D B BE PR BY 1 28 5 A S
RENGZE UEBERIRFRD
THREEMFL - TR FE
B ERYBEERIA R
BREFBBIRETR  ES R m B
HWRALE SKEEARESL.

TEREZRITREBSERRD
IR ELERBFEENRSHD
=, .
=1

EMNBEER _E—hERZ
T TEFEEHSocietyNext
Foundation¥ % R (b ¥ 5 18 %%
FNNOESGA#E ] ° NINnnoESGA
B EEXEERE - HENE
BESG)#E > BBEERMNZ
AP FEERERTIESL
FEFEZEN EmAFE -RIBMH
SocietyNext Foundation ~ 2 B
EEHE XABBEMEHO
Kt TeaaANFRMEH
BhESH UKRE KTV ER
EAFEEBR I ENEE

In 2019, our Group has participated in the Sustainable
Financing Programme organized by HSBC, and was
awarded “Sustainable Financing Programme — Certificate
of Participation” by HSBC successfully. Enterprises who
acquire machine, equipment or installation with expected
carbon emission reduction based on the Business
Environment Council’s environmental merit assessment
result are eligible for the HSBC’s Sustainable Financing
Programme. Typical examples include: use of renewable
energy or energy source with less carbon dioxide emission
effectively, more energy-efficient machine or equipment,
sewage management system.

The below picture shows the “Sustainable Financing
Programme — Certificate of Participation” awarded by
HSBC to the Group:

Shenzhou International was won the “InnoESG Prize”
co-organized by SocietyNext Foundation and various
enterprises in 2019 and 2020. The “InnoESG Prize” is
to recognize the achievement of the listed companies
on Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) by
their implementation and fully support for sustainable
development. The award is co-organized by SocietyNext
Foundation, UNESCO HK Association Global Peace
Centre, Rotarian Action Group For Peace and Wofoo Social
Enterprises as recognition and acknowledge to the award
winner for their initiatives on sustainable development.
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4.2

The below picture shows the trophies of the “InnoESG Prize
and “ESG Care Label 2021-2022” awarded to the Group by
SocietyNext Foundation and various enterprises:

Investor Relations

Shenzhou International garnered the “Best IR Company”,
awards at the 5th, 6th and 7th Hong Kong Investor
Relations Awards (Large Enterprises) organised by Hong
Kong Investor Relations Association. These awards
acknowledge the excellent performance of the Company’s
management in investor relations, which is widely
recognised by the investor community.

The Hong Kong Investor Relations Award is organised
by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, with the
aim of celebrating excellence in IR relations aspect and
corporates and talents which adopt sound IR principles.
A total of more than 150 listed companies entered the
competition this year. The winning enterprises were
selected by buy-side and sell-side investors online.

The below picture shows the awards received by the
Group from Hong Kong Investor Relations Association
this year:

EF 3 1 R 52 [ #2 A& 5 IR 2 B Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



IRIE - HERELGHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIEZ—F > AEEEERRE In 2021, the Group has won the first place of Best Chief
14 #58 lnstitutional Investor | 7£ Financial Officer, the third places of Best Chief Executive
SENAT BB B R LR H g A Officer, Best IR Program and Best ESG Company, and the
REEENEE RARN P EEE Honored Company Award, by the internationally-known
EEMBRE L RETHA magazine “Institutional Investor” during the Annual Asian
HE-SL REREEBHEREE= Administrative Team Awards Ceremony

L RERE-HEREARAATSE

— B KRBEATRIE

HuE

B B PR 45 [ % A& 5 PR A ] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021 &% 167



168

IRIG - 1 ERESHRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE—HA - ZZEZERE
T FEE=F PNEIIMNEE
BEREE A SB AL o
TEBERAER) BRIAEN
JREBRAMEIFQ 557 - %R
ERBRAGTEDHE EHEEEHR
BRI -FERTARITESE
MIEZENRE U RBH F191E
EXRMNAEELAFEHEES
B RXHTEEMADINE & E
MEBEAEARNTEEZE S TZ
WHESH BT MEHAETS
e EEHB2,000% R L
o REEIN EmeE it
EEN M RABAERSHREAMN
BOHREEXRRAEBENZE

EiRe

TEZRERESELEAEEN L
HATEMASE2021 ) —EE4H
RAYEE AR

During the three consecutive years of 2019, 2020 and
2021, Shenzhou International was awarded the “Listed
Company Awards of Excellence 2020” — Main Board by
HKEJ. In 2020, “Listed Company Awards of Excellence”
awards were divided in to three main categories, i.e.
blue chip, Main Board and GEM. The assessment is
carried out by the adoption of the EJFQ “signals”, a
unique stock-tracking system developed by HKEJ, all the
candidates are screened based on four major criteria:
Piotroski F-Score, performance against the Hang Seng
Index of the same period, number of recommendations
from professional analysts and industry leaders, as well as
average annual growth in earning. The shortlist are then
assessed by a judging panel comprising industry leaders,
analysts and HKEJ’s editors, the results will then be
audited by KPMG. The most competent listed companies
were selected among over 2,000 listed companies in
Hong Kong, as such, besides as recognition of the
outstanding performance achieved, the awarded listed
companies can also be served as a meaningful reference
indicator for investors.

The below picture shows the trophy of “Listed Company
Awards of Excellence 2021” — Blue Chip awarded to the
Group by HKEJ:
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4.3 Corporate Governance:

In 2015, Shenzhou International was recognised for its
corporate governance practices. It was named as one of
the 2015 Best Corporate Governance Awards for Listed
Companies by Ta Kung Pao, and was selected as one of the
Private Companies with the Largest Market Capitalization on
the Hong Kong Stocks Ranking, the Mainland Enterprises
Category in 2014-2015 (2014-20154F & R A P 1 2 40 A9
EBRTHITENRATERD) by Yazhou Zhoukan.

Furthermore, during 2016, Shenzhou International was
awarded “Enterprise Award” in 2016 DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Awards 2016. This greatly encourages
Shenzhou International and proves that the community
is confident in the corporate governance of Shenzhou
International. Therefore, the Group will continue its
efforts to raise the level of corporate governance, so as
to meet the rising international standards of corporate
governance.

Below is the Group’s trophy of “Enterprise Award”
awarded by DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards in
2016:

Shenzhou International was awarded “The Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award
for Sustainability Excellence” by The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies in December 2018; a proof of
the Company’s excellence in many aspects, especially in
Board diversity, the active participation of Independent
Non-executive Directors, persistence on optimizing risk
management and internal monitoring and control, as well
as the excellence in deepening corporate governance
culture internally and externally.
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The below picture shows the trophy of “The Hong Kong
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards 2018: Award
for Sustainability Excellence” awarded to the Group by
The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies in 2018:

“The Hong Kong Corporate Governance Excellence
Awards” was an annual award organized by The Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies and the Centre for
Corporate Governance and Financial Play of the Baptist
University since 2007. “The Hong Kong Corporate
Governance Excellence Awards” aims at promoting the
highest standards in corporate governance in Hong Kong,
business morality and Board leadership; acknowledging
companies with excellent management; promoting for
best practices and results, so as to promote the strong
development in company governance culture. “The Hong
Kong Corporate Governance Excellence Awards” is to
acknowledge and recommend the excellent performance
of listed companies in terms of shareholders’ rights,
compliance, integrity, fairness, responsibility, reliability,
transparency, Board independence and leadership, and
social responsibility.
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The Group has been shortlisted as one of the “China
Top 500 Private Enterprises” and “China Top 500 Private
Manufacturing Enterprises” by the All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce for many consecutive years. In
2021, the Group ranked 189th among the “China Top 500
Private Manufacturing Enterprises” and 326th among the
“China Top 500 Private Enterprises”.

Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Group, won the “Top 100 Enterprises of Zhejiang
Provinces” and “Top 100 Manufacturing Enterprises of
Zhejiang Provinces” issued by the Enterprises United
Association of Zhejiang Province, and at the same time
“2020 Top 10 Honorary Export Foreign Trade Enterprises
Ningbo City” award plaque as well as the “2020 Top 50
Manufacturing Enterprises in Ningbo City” and “2020 Top
50 Taxed Manufacturing Enterprises in Ningbo City”.

The below pictures show the award plaque of “2020 Top
50 Taxed Manufacturing Enterprises in Ningbo City” and
the honorary certificate of “2020 Top 10 Honorary Export
Foreign Trade Enterprises Ningbo City”:

In 2021, Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, was shortlisted into the “2021 Top 100
Anhui Enterprises”, ranking 66th in the 17th Top 100
Anhui Enterprises list at the 2021 Top 100 Anhui
Enterprises Summit; ranked 39th in the “2021 Top 100
Anhui Manufacturing Enterprises” and shortlisted into the
“2021 Outstanding Anhui Prviate Enterprises”..
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MF2 r2021¢§%&%{§?§§%‘ The “2021 Outstanding Anhui Private Enterprises”
TEINGEE certificate is as follows:

RAEAFEREBRN TR —HEF During the year, the subsidiary of the Group, Marvel
KRB RACERIBERFIEE Garment Co. Ltd. was awarded the “Certificate of Tax
#ﬁ*Aﬁ REER) MBYMAH Compliance (Gold)” by Cambodia taxation department,
TEIEFEST T —F T which is effective from 2020 to 2021. The below picture is
EMBEREBE: the “Certificate of Tax Compliance”:
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Jianrong (B#%), aged 58, is an executive Director,
the Chairman of the Group and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is a senior economist. He is responsible for the
overall business development strategy of the Group and has over
41 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill (48 B143 45 k)
and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (71 N B8 3 &+ 4%
ARZEE ) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager of
the knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager and
the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group. He
has been acting as the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma is
the vice-chairman of China National Garment Association (H 5] Az 2%
#% &) and was awarded with Individual with Outstanding Contribution
in Textile Industry of Chinese Economic Reform (X Z B 454417
EZEHEMAY), “Charity Model of Ningbo (BFMEZIER)”,
“Charity Prize of Zhejiang — Individual” GHi3T 2 =% — {8 A #%) and
“Prize for Outstanding Charity Contribution in China” (F B Z& &2
HEEEE) . Mr. Ma is the brother-in-law of Mr. Hung Guanlin and is
a cousin of Mr. Ma Renhe (his father and Mr. Ma Renhe’s father are
brothers).

Mr. Huang Guanlin (FF#F) , aged 57, is an Executive Director and
the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 34 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (73T T %
KE),
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill

majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.

in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005. Mr.
Huang was the chairman of the Nomination Committee during the
period from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Ma Jianrong.
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Mr. Ma Renhe (§1Z#0), aged 62, is an Executive Director, a deputy
general manager of the Group and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is responsible for administration, dyeing and finishing
affairs of the Group and has over 45 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing
Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant. After
joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked as the manager and a deputy
general manager of the dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo
Weaving. He has been a deputy general manager of Shenzhou
Knitting since May 2002. From October 2005 to March 2012, Mr.
Ma was also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
subsequently redesignated as a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma
Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Mr. Wang Cunbo (E7Fif), aged 50, is an Executive Director
and a deputy general manager of the Group. He joined the Group
as the department head of the finance department of the Group
and financial controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004. He
was appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011 and became
deputy general manager of the group since 16 December 2016.
He graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology GHi;I T
XK,

bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1995.

majoring in biology and chemical engineering, with a
In the same year, Mr.
Wang studied at Zhejiang University of Technology where he
obtained a master’s degree in management in 1998. In addition,
he obtained the certificates of the PRC certified public accountant,
the PRC registered tax agent and the PRC certified public valuer
and senior accountant and the operating permit of the PRC public
certified accountant in securities and futures-related business. Prior
to joining the Group, he was a partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde
United Accounting Firm (58§ K Kk & & st = 7FA)
general manager of Ningbo Yongde Corporate Management and
Consulting Firm (288 k@t ¥ SIBAHETFEFT),
years of experience as certified accountant.

a deputy

and has over 6
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Ms. Chen Zhifen (BRZ %), aged 53, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 1 December 2013. She is a deputy general
manager of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing
departments, and has over 32 years of experience in the textile
industry. After joining the Group in April 1990, she worked as
the section chief, the manager of the garment manufacturing
department, the manager of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment
manufacturing departments, an assistant to the general manager
of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general manager of the
Group. During the period from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms.
Chen studied at Naval University of Engineering GB8E L2 KE2),
majoring in management engineering. She also graduated from TBM
Lean Sigma Institute with a certificate for completion of the Kaizen
Promotion Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing Excellence in
2007 and the College of Economics of Zhejiang University Gif 3T A Z2
#5575 B p) with a certificate for the senior seminar class for modern
entrepreneur managers in 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (& &), aged 57, studied accounting in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the People’s
Republic of China (Fam 8148 A 22) from 1982 to 1986 and obtained
a bachelor degree in Economics majoring in accounting. Mr. Jiang
started teaching at Zhejiang University of Technology (#7171 T 2 K £)
since 1986 and is currently a professor in the School of Economics,
Trade and Management (4 & EHEEER) of Zhejiang University of
Technology. Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in the University’s
MBA Education Centre and has been engaged by the Science
Technology Department of Zhejiang Province (#3124 &l & ) as
member of the pool of experts, and by the Zhejiang Provincial Audit
Department (7L & 28 51 FE) as a special auditor.

Mr. Jiang is currently an independent non-executive director of each
of Enjoyor Technology Co.,Ltd. (88T £l i& % & PR A &) (‘Enjoyor”)
(stock code: 300020), Zhejiang Jinke Tom Culture Industry Co., Ltd.
(MIeRSWBXEEZERHBBRAE) ("Jinke”) (stock code:
300459), Zhejiang Baichuan Conductor Technology Co.,Ltd (3T
BI)IBEERMBRAR) (“Baichuan”) (stock code: 832852) and
Shanghai Zhongxing Protection Technology Co.,Ltd. (&R =%
B R B FRA B)) (“Zhongxing”) (stock code: 835849). Enjoyor and
Jinke are listed companies of the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange of China. Baichuan and Zhongxing are quoted companies
of the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System of China.

Mr. Jiang was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Group on 1 April 2012.
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Mr. Zhang Bingsheng (GRIEZE L&), aged 59, joined the Group on
1 September 2018 as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 March
2021. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Department of History of
Fudan University (18 B K&Z)in July 1984. He obtained a doctoral
degree in International Law from School of Law of University of
International Business and Economics in 2004. From July 1984 to
March 1996, Mr. Zhang served as a lecturer of the Department of
Politics and History and the Department of Politics and Economics
of Ningbo Teachers’ College (8% EM#22F7%) . From March 1996 to
October 1998, Mr. Zhang served as a lecturer of the Department of
Politics and Economics of the Faculty of Teachers and Education of
Ningbo University (228 K2 8MEEF57) . Mr. Zhang served in Ningbo
University as Deputy Officer of the Faculty of Social Science from
October 1998 to April 2000, as Deputy Director of Science and
Research Administration Office from July 2005 to January 2006, as
Associate Dean of the Law School from April 2000 to July 2005 and
from January 2006 to November 2010. Mr. Zhang was promoted
to Professor in December 2006 and has served as the Dean of the
Law School of Ningbo University since November 2010 till now.
Mr. Zhang’'s main academic part-time positions include Standing
Director of Chinese Society of International Economic and Trade
Law Research (FA[EERA&E & 5 A2 38), Standing Director
of China Intellectual Property Research Society (HrEEI%0:H: &= #E i
7% &), Standing Director of Zhejiang Law Society GHiiI & 52 a),
Vice President of Zhejiang Intellectual Property Research Society (G
I8 FSEMMIEE), Vice President of Zhejiang Association for
Legal Education (HI & A2 B ML), Vice President of Ningbo
Law Society and Supervisor of the Academic Committee of Ningbo
Law Society, president of Ningbo Intellectual Property Law Research
Society (B R EREZIARE), the responsible person of
the National Characteristic Professional (Law) (BR#FEBE=HRE O£
E))of Ningbo University, the responsible person of the National
Undergraduate Education Comprehensive Reform Pilot Professional
(Law) (AR AR BB iF S ERAMEZE C52)) of Ningbo University,
and the responsible person of Zhejiang First Class Discipline (A, Law)
GiI&—7RER (A%E352)) of Ningbo University. Mr. Zhang’s
main social part-time positions include an arbitrator of eac Ningbo
Arbitration Commission (B {Hh#E Z 8 g),Shaoxing Arbitration
Commission (fAE{HFZE®), Qingdao Arbitration Commission
(FBM#ZE®)and Shenyang Arbitration Commission (&R fh
HZEB8E), and a lawyer of Zhejiang Alljoin Law Firm Gifi;I & &l #2
BfZE#5F) . Prior to joining the company, Mr. Zhang had served as
an independent director of Ningbo Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (Z &k
BRI ABFEAT)and an independent director of Zhejiang Tengtou
Landscape Co., Ltd (H/IRREEEMZHBRAE). Both terms of
office have expired now. He has been an independent Director of
Zhejiang Reclaim Construction Group Co.,Ltd. Gl I & BB ERER
R BRAT) ("Reclaim”) (002586). Reclaim is a listed company of
the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange of China.
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Ms. Liu Chunhong (B|FAT%Z 1), aged 52, joined the Group on
1 March 2021 as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Liu graduated from Donghua University, formerly
known as China Textile University, with a bachelor of mechanical
engineering in textile machinery in 1991 and a master’s degree
in 1997 in mechanical engineering. In 2000, Ms. Liu obtained a
doctorate degree in business management from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University. Ms. Liu is currently a professor of business and
management and doctoral supervisor at Donghua University.

She joined Donghua University as the deputy head of the Master
of Business Administration Education Centre in March 1997, where
she was responsible for the start-up, planning and operation of the
entire programme. Ms. Liu was the director of the department of
finance of Donghua University from April 2002 to March 2003, the
dean of the International Culture Exchange School from April 2003 to
December 2009, and the assistant to the president since September
2007, during which she also served as the dean of the School of
Adult Continuing Educational and Online Education and the dean of
the Raffles Academy of Continuing Education. From December 2009
to April 2019, she was the vice president of Donghua University,
during which she also served as the dean of College of Fashion
and Art Design and the dean of the Shanghai International College
of Fashion and Innovation, and was the vice-chairwoman of the
Shanghai Donghua University Education Development Foundation
and the executive president of the Donghua University Alumni
Association. From July 2019 to December 2020, Ms. Liu was also
the chairwoman of Shanghai Shanghu Digital Technology Limited (_E
BRI BRAT]). Currently, Ms. Liu is the chief researcher
of the Shanghai International College of Fashion and Innovation,
Donghua University, as well as the chairwoman of the Shanghai
Fashion Accessories Society, the vice-chairwoman of the Shanghai
Association for Science & Technology of Changning District, and a
director of Shanghai Anoky Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300067).
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Mr. Liu Xinggao (2|E&Z %), aged 53, joined the Group on
1 March 2021 as an Independent Non-executive Director and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
from Tianjin University in 1991, a master's degree in engineering
from Zhejiang University in 1997, and a doctorate degree in
engineering from the college of Control Science and Engineering of
Zhejiang University in 2000. He is currently a professor and doctoral
supervisor at the College of Control Science and Engineering of
Zhejiang University.

Mr. Liu was a post-doctoral fellow at the Department of Control
Science and Engineering of Tsinghua University from 2000 to 2002
and a visiting scholar at Department of Process and Control of
Newcastle University in the United Kingdom in 2001. Mr. Liu is
currently a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics
Engineers and the Institution of Engineering and Technology. Mr.
Liu was an awardee of the Zhejiang Natural Science Fund for
Distinguished Young Scholars in 2010 and obtained the Grade A
engineering management honour (the highest honour) granted by
Sinopec Assets Management Co., Ltd. in 2017. Mr. Liu was awarded
the First Prize for the State Scientific and Technological Progress
Award in 2014, the Outstanding Award of Science and Technology
Progress by the Chinese Association of Automation in 2019, and
the Second Prize for the State Scientific and Technological Progress
Award in 2020. He returned to work at the College of Control
Science and Engineering of Zhejiang University as an introduced
talent in 2002, where he has worked since.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (BR7ZE), aged 51, joined the Group
in September 2008. He is currently the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 26 years of
experience in auditing, financial controlling, company secretarial
and accounting. Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in China Business
Management. Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax
Adviser in Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Lan (B&/&), aged 56, is a deputy general manager of the
Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such as
cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 33 years of
experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (EEEA##), aged 60, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the Group’s garment factory in Anhui,
and has over 34 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department (& 7%
—&R8), assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.
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Mr. Yan Delin (S1&#), aged 67, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, in charge of the operations of the Group’s garment
factory in Cambodia and has over 33 years of experience in textile
industry. He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as the head of the equipment
division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant, the
head of its office, and a deputy general manager of joint venture
companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (RMBIEHAE),
during which, he served as the general manager of a Cambodian
company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After joining the
Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy head of the
office of Ningbo Weaving and has been an assistant to the general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2005. He graduated from
the Correspondence College at the Party School of the Central
Committee of CCP, majoring in economic management.

Mr. Jiang Tao (GIiE), aged 55, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the Uniglo Business Department of
the Group. He has 26 years of experience in knitting and weaving
industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Faculty of English at Shanghai
University (E/8K2),
Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai Dongfang Rimian
LB ABEBRAR). After joining the Group
in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant to the general

majoring in English for international trade.
Company Limited (

manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for the sales to
Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (4288), aged 58, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for the Group’s technology
and quantity affairs, and has over 33 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy
factory manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant (2% b BREE
&) , in charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager
of the production and operation department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving.
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Mr. Hu Yonghai (#1k8), aged 56,
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of

is an assistant to the

fabric technology, and has over 33 years of experience in textile
industry. He obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology GHr T T 2 K £2)
with a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as an
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs of fabrics and technology.

Mr. Ma Bin (E#), aged 51, joined the Group in 2001.
he is an assistant to the general manager and the manager of the

Currently,

NIKE Business Department of the Group. He is fully in charge of
the operation and project management and customer relationship
maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma has 22
years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the Group,
he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department of
European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University (8 B A22)and
later obtained his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (/B4 AE T
EIEE[R) . Before joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the business
development manager of the Sealand Securities.

Mr. Song Qing (5REE), aged 52, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the ADIDAS Business Department
of the Group. He is fully in charge of the general management
and system construction of the ADIDAS Business Department of
the Group. He assists the general manager with other aspects of
operations and has 24 years of experience in the textile industry.
In 1994, Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer
Science and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical University
(FEILTEKRS).
National University of Singapore in 2004 and graduated from the
NTU-SJTU Joint MBA (MBA) Programme in 2008. Having joined the
Group in January 2007, Mr. Song has 10 years of work experience

He obtained a Master of Technology from the

in Singapore. Beginning in 1997, he worked as a senior software
development engineer for a software development firm for a year. In
1998, he joined Yonghua Industrial Company Limited (Gk ZE T ZEFA
AFER/AT) of the textile industry and served as its IT Manager and
Chief Information Officer (CIO) successively.
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Mr. Xu Huiguo (f#EE), aged 69, joined the Group in 2010. He
is currently a deputy general manager of the Group in charge of
the infrastructure construction affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has
over 49 years of experience in management. Mr. Xu obtained an
undergraduate qualification in economic management from the Party
School of the Central Committee of CPC (3t fIREK)and is a
qualified engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he was the team leader
of the wiring team (48 &%) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau (2 &
#/5), a manager and the secretary of the party branch of Ningbo
Electric Maintenance and Installation Company (% E 2518 EZR
8/ E)), the general manager of Ningbo Power Transmission and
Transformation Company (B8R %E B E/AF)), the chief of Beilun
District Electricity Bureau (b #t8/5) and the general manager of
Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang Honghui (1341 #&), aged 53, is a deputy general manager
of the Group and is responsible for the production planning of
the Group. He has accumulated over 32 years of management
experience in textile industry. He joined in Shenzhou Weaving in
February 1990. He once served as the manager of trims office of
the production and operation department and accessory department
of Ningbo Weaving, vice head of production planning department,
head of production planning department, and was responsible for
the procurement and management of auxiliary materials as well
as production planning and management of the Group. He was
appointed as the vice general manager of the Group in January
2018. His main duties included: assisting the general manager
to work, executing the guidance, direction, supervision and
management on daily production and operation of the Company.
This includes improving the production management system,
participating in the formulation and planning of the plan of the Group
yearly, allocating the orders from each of the clients of the Group,
preparing the production plan, tracking production progress, to
ensure the completion of production task.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
garment trading. The primary activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position and principal risks
and uncertainties facing the group are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement, Financial Review and Business Review sections
respectively from pages 12 to 19, pages 31 to 37 and pages 28
to 30 of this annual report. The future development of the Group’s
business is discussed throughout this annual report including in the
Chairman’s Statement and Future Prospect and Strategies from
pages 12 to 19 and 41 to 43 of this annual report. In addition,
more details regarding the Group’s performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and
policies, as well as relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers, are provided in this annual report in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report. The discussion above forms part of
this Report of the Directors.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 205 to 323.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKDO0.57
(equivalent to approximately RMBO0.47) per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 13 June
2022. However, the proposed payment of the dividend shall be
subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be
held on 30 May 2022 and subject to such approval having been
obtained, the payment of such dividend is expected to be on or
around 23 June 2022.

Interim dividend of HKD1.06 (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.88)
per share was declared for the six months ended 30 June 2021 (for
the six months ended 30 June 2020: HKDO0.90 per Share) to the
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on 14 September 2021. The
interim dividend was paid on 28 September 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

BOOK CLOSURE

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 25 May 2022 to Monday, 30 May 2022, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to establish the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24 May 2022.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 8 June 2022 to Monday, 13 June 2022, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to establish the identity of the Shareholders who are
entitled to the said final dividend which will be resolved and voted
at the AGM, all transfer forms, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 7 June 2022.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. In deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board will take into account the Group’s earnings performance,
financial position, investment requirements and future prospects.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB31,709,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the authorised or issued share capital of
the Company are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB25,558,486,000, of which RMB700,550,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the Latest Practicable Date
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Zhang Bingsheng

Ms. Liu Chunhong (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Liu Xinggao (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Chen Xu (resigned on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (resigned on 1 March 2021)

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association, Ms.
Liu Chunhong and Mr. Liu Xinggao who were appointed by the Board
as Independent Non-executive Directors on 1 March 2021 and the
appointments were approved at the AGM held on 28 May 2021.

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Ma Jianrong, Ms. Chen Zhifen and Mr.
Jiang Xianpin shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election thereat.

In addition, Mr. Jiang Xianpin has been the Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company for more than nine years. The
Board has accessed the independence of Mr. Jiang, and considered
he still can be regarded as independent even he has served at the
Board for a relative long time as he met all the standards related to
independence assessment set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Separate resolution to re-appoint Mr. Jiang as the Independent Non-
executive Director will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for
shareholder’s approval.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of its Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they
are all independent.

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there are
no changes to information required to be disclosed by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) for the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which will be automatically
renewed for another term of three years subject to compliance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules
until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the respective service
contract. According to the respective service contract, it may be
terminated at any time by either party giving the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
will be automatically renewed for another term of three years subject
to compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract, it may be terminated at any time by the Independent
Non-executive Director giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

Under the respective service contracts, each of the Executive
Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus
as the Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided
that the aggregate amount of the discretionary management
bonuses payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial
year of the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the
Group after taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate
amount of the discretionary management bonuses but before non-
recurring items for the relevant financial year.

None of the directors offering themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’
AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company, other than for any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such persons. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against the Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of
their duties or in relation thereto.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Continuing connected transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 36 to the financial statements, no Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
members of the Senior Management of the Group are set out on
pages 173 to 182.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



EFGHRS
Report of the Directors

=
ol

EERBETRABRSATR
15 O 5 R 3

R_E_—F+_BA=+—H REZESFHK
HAERA (M58 5 R HRE R P)) SBXVERE 7K
FENWENETEARANEEMERZME
RAB (TEESZFTY) » WAR RS 5 ARG 1R B
EI02FMEFE 2B MATE 5 SRR
Fregs L RA (TEHRA) REHAF
EFETEFXNZIRETR ((B5X5
SR EMEARBMEBZFT BRAAAF
EERERSTHRABHEAR LR KREBERE
H (ZEsRPEHRAABXVEZEBE) 2R
MPEERDREEEZ BT RKE (B
REZSRPERIZZSFRXEARFE
FURSTHRABHEANRGRIFER ZEx
Ra)

REQBEBRFZEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Securities Trading Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

HEATBEEIT

&iE st SR KRERLER ki & B &2 '8 73 LE(%)

Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company

ERELE 1 S EEER 639,328,200 42.53%

Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Interest of controlled 639,328,200 42.53%
corporations

BCMEE: RPEEE S 71,675,000 4.77%

Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Interest of controlled 71,675,000 4.77%

corporations
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2021, 639,328,200 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
78.37% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
14.59% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 7.04% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly

owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang

Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma

Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father

of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed

to be interested in the 639,328,200 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2021, 71,675,000 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 77.30% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 22.70% by certain senior management
of the Group including Mr. Wang Cunbo and Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are
executive Directors). MCC, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe,
an executive Director and a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be interested in the 71,675,000
Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Securities Trading Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g



EFGHRS
Report of the Directors

%%H&iﬁ?zk’&ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ“#ﬁ&

KRB

RZEB-_—-—F+ZA=+—H T AL

(ZRBEFRIN EEARTREEF KR
B 1R P 53361F 7 B 2 RN % MATsC# 14
KRB BEITRAE% U L2 I !

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2021, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
Directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

AT BT

&iE et S RkiELER i3 & E f& 45 & 53 LE(%)

Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company

1 2R 1 EmEBA 639,328,200 (L) 42.53%

Keep Glory 1 Beneficial owner 639,328,200 (L) 42.53%

TEE 1 RELERER 639,328,200 (L) 42.53%

Splendid Steed 1 Interest of controlled 639,328,200 (L) 42.53%
corporations

JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2 SEEEER 75,367,826 (L) 5.01%

JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2 Interest of controlled 75,367,826 (L) 5.01%
corporations

1,872,399 (S) 0.12%

1,872,399 (S) 0.12%

22,841,683 (P) 1.51%

22,841,683 (P) 1.51%
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(L) - Long Position, (S) — Short Position, (P) — Lending Pool

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2021, 639,328,200 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is owned as to 78.37% by Splendid Steed, 14.59%
by BMX and 7.04% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is deemed to
be interested in the 639,328,200 Shares held by Keep Glory.
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2. The Shares held by JPMorgan Chase & Co. were held via different

BREBERER entities in the following capacities:
18 E 51
Number of Shares Capacity
4,401,264 (L) RPEEE S
4,401,264 (L) Interest of controlled corporations
2,064,801 (S)
2,064,801 (S)

44,624,663 (L)
44,624,663 (L)

BREKE

Investment manager

1,466,224 (L)
1,466,224 (L)

KRR AERIRIRRENAL

Person having a security interest in shares

327,507 (L)
327,507 (L)

TN

Trustee

26,815,954 (L, P
26,815,954 (L, P)

) ZEEHAIEA
Approved lending agent
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
and “Connected continuing transactions” below and “Related party
transactions” in note 36 to the financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a

party during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of major suppliers and customers of the Group
accounting for procurement and sales for the year ended 31
December 2021 was shown as following:

LEREEZ
B9 k(%)

Accounting for

LSRR
B9 (%)
Accounting
of procurement for of sales

Percentage (%) Percentage (%)

BAMHER/&BE The largest supplier/customer 22.11 29.68
FAMHFER,ZR&5  Summation of five suppliers/customers 38.71 87.48
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Please refer to Note 4 of the financial statements for details of the
top four customers.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors or
any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the best of the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any material interest in these suppliers and
customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

According to rules on disclosure in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
several related-party transactions disclosed in Note 36 of financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules. The following transactions between
the connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the
Company had been entered into and/or continuously carried on,
and the Company had made related disclosures according to the
rules on disclosure in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Other related
party transactions would not constitute connected transaction or
continuing connected transactions of the Company.

ER i [ P 5 [ #% iR B PR 2 5] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2021 g

193



194

EFGHRS
Report of the Directors

F TR Ea L %

a.

RiEMEAERRBEETEEMEN
B3
ARBEENBARERPMNHEHE

RAF (TR R -E—NE

+ B+ EEHREEFEMNEBERR
RE)(TEENEBE)) B:I 7T —DHWE
WA EWH:E (A EWRZEL) REM
AEwZ ANBEERRELEERE &
ETESMFHEMNSE HPRRTYWE
BIRRXNMEHBAEE S -_—_F+ =
A=+—HiI-BRHEERZE IR _iE
BE FIMEERENEREEARES
AMA_T_TFNA—BN_ZTZE
FtA—BeR MBI TEEMRE
RERNBNRERMBHESEIMNETR
ZEHMNEHBAIATRMNBEER LR
—EAEMBMUKLIETAE S £
HENEXWERNESEERHTER
A AE BA WD 2 R AR Y AR 2N 05 %0 A 7
E-AABEEBEEREETTRMN
EFRUBEBIE = ABEUMER
RrmZHT BEEZEHESAARE
24,157,2607T (BHEEZIGER) > 72
ZRFEEFEASERBREALUE
EEERREBILE=AABEMUY
(EREERENT SRS URBE G
BREET -BUGEMENEERS
R EAAEBAFTEE -FNE
¥ HPTESEERREREER
EEBMBABRELEEEREARAT
(TEREEXE]) DRIBERS0%R20%HE
w0 FIL R A iRAI S 14A.07(4) & &R
NEXBREAL - AEER AEH
BERENEXRBEMAEREAEY
EHT NS ARE24,102,4687T (&
HEFE 2 12 (ER) -

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

a.

Leasing some production properties and facilities under
a new lease

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd.
a new lease agreement of new property (“New Lease

(“Shenzhou Knitting”) signed

Agreement”) with Ningbo Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Properties”) on 24 December 2019. According
to the New Lease Agreement, Shenzhou Properties leased
clothing production factory buildings and staff quarters to
Shenzhou Knitting with a term from the date of completion
and delivery of the new property to 31 December 2022. Since
the lease agreement included two buildings, so the actual
commencement date of the lease agreement was 1 April 2020
and 1 July 2020 respectively. Shenzhou Knitting could exercise
its right of renewal for a further term of three years at or below
the then market rate. Shenzhou Knitting may terminate the
New Lease Agreement by giving no less than three months’
notice to Shenzhou Properties. The above rent collected by
Shenzhou Properties shall be determined by market price and
cost incurred for renting out the relevant property plus a 5%
profit. The corporate management had complied with process
approved by the Board to determine the market rent collected
by independent third parties on similar properties. The annual
rents were proposed to be RMB24,157,260 (including the
relevant value-added tax) and were determined with reference
to market rates for leasing similar properties and production
facilities from independent third parties under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of their businesses
in Ningbo, the PRC and with reference to the valuation
report. The independent valuer has also confirmed in the
valuation report that the above rents are fair and reasonable.
Shenzhou Properties is owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong,
an executive Director, and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (“Rongrong Industrial”), an
associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong. As such, Shenzhou Properties
is a connected person pursuant to Rule 14A.07(4) of the
Listing Rules. During the year, the Group paid a total rent
of RMB24,102,468 to Shenzhou Properties for leasing of
properties under the New Lease Agreement (including the
relevant value-added tax).
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Renew the leasing of some production properties and
facilities

Shenzhou Knitting signed a principal lease agreement with
Shenzhou Properties on 24 December 2019 (the “Principal
Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhou Properties
agreed to lease clothing production factories to Shenzhou
Knitting with a term from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022. Shenzhou Knitting could exercise its right of renewal
for a further term of three years at or below the then market
rent. Shenzhou Knitting may terminate the Principal Lease
Agreement by giving no less than three months’ notice to
Shenzhou Properties. The above rent collected by Shenzhou
Properties shall be determined by market price or cost incurred
for renting out the relevant property plus a 5% profit. The
corporate management had complied with process approved
by the Board to determine the market rent collected by
independent third parties on similar properties. The annual
rents were proposed to be RMB13,160,328 (including the
relevant value-added tax) and were determined with reference
to market rates for leasing similar properties and production
facilities from independent third parties under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of their businesses
in Ningbo, the PRC and with reference to the valuation
report. The independent valuer has also confirmed in the
valuation report that the above rents are fair and reasonable.
Shenzhou Properties is owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong,
an executive Director, and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (“Rongrong Industrial”), an
associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong. As such, Shenzhou Properties
is a connected person pursuant to Rule 14A.07(4) of the
Listing Rules. During the year, the Group paid a total rent of
RMB13,160,328 to Shenzhou Properties (including the relevant
value-added tax).
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Details of the above continuing connected transactions are
set out in the announcement of the company on 24 December
2019.

The Independent Non-executive Directors had reviewed and
approved above continuing connected transactions, and
confirmed the transaction: (1) being operated in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the group; (2) being operated
in normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (3) in accordance with the relevant terms
agreed which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

According to the implemented work, the auditor of the
Company also wrote to confirm that they are not aware of
any matters that cause them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions are: (1) without approval of board
meetings of the Company; (2) not in accordance with
pricing policies of the group on all major aspects; (3) not in
accordance with terms agreed in the relevant transactions on
all major aspects; and (4) exceeding annual caps announced
on 24 December 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December
2021 and as at the date of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
Emolument policy on the remuneration of the Directors and the
employees of the Group is reviewed periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, the Group’s performance and individual
qualifications and performance.
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 205 to 323, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

MBESFHESHPEMARHEN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment risks for trade and bills
receivables
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
trade and bills receivables of approximately
RMB3,502 million, which accounted for
8.3% of the Group’s total assets.
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Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of trade and
bills receivables included, but were not limited to, obtaining an
understanding of and evaluating the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit risk, and
testing the effectiveness on a sample basis; checking the ageing
of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 and subsequent
settlements to bank receipts; inquiring of management for the on-
going business relationship with the customers based on trade
records; assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology by examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
reviewing the assumptions, including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine the expected credit losses.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

MREFFHEEHPRMAREHN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment risks for trade and bills
receivables (continued)
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Management performed periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
receivables and the sufficiency of provision
for impairment based on information
including the credit profile of different
customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships
with the relevant customers. Management
also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order
to estimate the expected credit losses
for the impairment assessment. No credit
loss allowance was provided based on
management’s impairment assessment.

RiZBEREEGEBREATHRBRA R RE
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A high level of management estimation was
required when assessing the impairment
of trade and bills receivables under the
expected credit losses model.
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The accounting policies and disclosures
for trade and bills receivables are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

MREFFHEEHPRMAREHN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Provisions for excess and obsolete
inventories
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The balances of inventories and the
provisions for excess and obsolete
inventories as at 31 December 2021
amounted to RMB6,771 million and RMB136
million, respectively. The gross inventory
balances were material to the consolidated
financial statements and significant
management estimate was required when
assessing the adequacy of provision.
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The accounting policies and disclosures
for inventories and the related excess and
obsolescence provision are included in notes
2.4, 3 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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We assessed the processes, methods and assumptions used to
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develop the provision for excess or obsolete items. This included
comparing management’s calculations for consistency against those
used in the prior year.
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We evaluated the reasonableness of the percentages and other
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parameters adopted in the calculation of provision by comparing the
net realisable value with selling price achieved subsequent to the end
of reporting period.
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We assessed, on a sample basis, whether items in the inventory
ageing report were classified within the appropriate ageing bracket
by comparing the individual items selected with the underlying
records which indicated the ageing.

BMEFERMBER BREFENERBRUHNIRG BEIE
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We observed physical condition of inventories during stock take to
identify slow-moving, damaged, or obsolete inventories, and inquired
management if appropriate inventory provision had been provided for
those inventories.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain profes